


DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the agenda for December 5, 2017.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the minutes for October 17, 2017.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the minutes for November 7, 2017.
CONSENT AGENDA

I Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures including 201 Fair
Employment Practices, 202 Anti-Harassment, 203 Dealing with Discrimination, 204
Employee Bullying, 205 Employment Disabilities, 206 Drug and Alcohol Free
Workplace, 207 Reasonable Alcohol Drug Testing, 208 Discipline Related to Alcohol
and Drug Abuse, 209 Prohibition of Workplace Violence, 210 Employment of
Relatives, 211 Employee Dating, 212 Code of Ethical Standards, 213 Political Activity,
214 Solicitation, 215 Work Stoppage, 216 Outside Employment, 217 Dress and
Grooming, 219 Reporting Convictions, 220 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination
Act (GINA), 221 Telecommuting; and the addition of Policy 222 Whistleblower
Protection which removes the associated text from Policy 219 and places it
appropriately into its own policy.

[l For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $879,747.27 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $805,123.02.

IIT For possible action, cancelation of the December 19, 2017 Board of County
Commissioners Meeting.

IV For possible action, approval of First Reading General Business License. Applicant
is Jonathan Deitrich, owner of a home based business, The Supply SGT, at 450 S E
St., Virginia City, NV 89440.

V' For possible action, approval of Treasurers Report for October 2017.

VI For possible action, approval of First Reading Business Licenses:
A. TACTICAL CONTROLS - General / 943 W. Overland Rd ~ Meridian, ID
B. VERTECH INDUSTRIAL SYSTEMS, LLC - General / 4409 E. Baseline Rd ~
Phoenix, AZ
C. ZERO CHAOS - General / 420 S. Orange Ave ~ Orlando, FL
D. EXPRESS JANITORIAL - General / 418 S. Rock Blvd ~ Sparks, NV
E. DELTA MOLD - General / 9415 Stockport Pl. ~ Charlotte, NC
F. HDR - General / 6805 Double R Blvd ~ Reno, NV
G. APEX - General / 4400 Cox Rd ~ Glen Allen, VA




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

H. CONCRETE VALUE CORP OF NEVADA - General / 695 Edison Way ~ Reno,
NV

[. JOHN GHILIERI - Contractor / 3455 Thornhill Ct ~ Reno, NV

J. MY FRIENDS - General / 2995 Scottsdale Rd ~ Reno, NV

K. NATHAN OSBORNE, DBA: STIX & STRIPS - General / 6016 Plumas ~ Reno,
NV

L. MOORE THAN LOCKS - General / 7565 Halifax Dr. ~ Reno, NV

M. SILVER SAGE WATER CO, LLC - General / 129 Ashley Way ~ Reno, NV

N. TACOS EL GORDO - General / 5330 Torobie Dr. ~ Sun Valley, NV

O. KNA SOLUTIONS LLC - General / 2035 Sunset Lade Rd ~ Newark, DE

P. FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICE CENTER - Contractor / 260 Freeport Blvd ~
Sparks, NV

Q. EDEGARDO CANDIDO - Handyman / 44 “G” St. ~ Virginia City, NV

R. ELRINGKLINGER SILICON VALLEY, INC - General / 2 Max-Eym-Strasse ~
Dettingen Erms, Germany

S. NORTHSTAR ELEMENTS, LLC - General / 1215 Alexandria ~ McCarran, NV
T. PEARLY CAKES MERCANTILE - General / 465 S “C” St ~ Virginia City, NV
U. PAC VAN INC. - General / 9155 Harrison Park Ct. ~ Indianapolis, IN
V.SAN-EI TECH LTD. - General / 7-1-15 Kashiwa ~ Chiba, Japan

W. RAPID CONSTRUCTION INC - Contractor / 3072 Research Way ~ Carson
City, NV

X. PRECIOUSE HOLDING, DBA: BAM!DOG HOT DOGS - General /1795 Laurel
Ridge ~ Reno, NV

Y. SOFTWARE SPECIALISTS INC - General/ 401 Smith Dr ~ Cranberry Township,
PA

Z.PRISM SYSTEMS SOFTWAREM, INC - General / 200 Virginia St ~ Mobile, AL
AA.ESC, Inc. - General / 1922 N. Broadway Ave ~ Springfield, MO

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

A resolution honoring Bruce and Linda Larson & Botcha-Caloop’s as the 2017 Storey
County business of the year.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):

Presentation by Ron Radil with Western Nevada Development District.
RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE BROTHEL LICENSING BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Work Card appeal for Haley Hartman.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS




15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution 17-479 regarding the request by the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry to approve the Findings of Fact
pertaining to the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds in an amount not
to exceed $25,000,000 for the purpose of assisting in the financing of constructing and
equipping a facility owned by Fulcrum and operated by Fulcrum BioEnergy to be
used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products located at
3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center and/or the improvements to and
equipping of the facility owned and operated by Fulcrum used for the preliminary
sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located at 350 Saddle Court in
Mustang, Nevada, both locations being in Storey County, Nevada. Approval of the
County is required pursuant to NRS 349.580(2).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of Communication Tower lease extension to SBA
Communications for an additional 65 years when the current lease expires in 2034.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of TRI Public-Private Partnership Schedule of Project
Revenue and Net Revenue and Supplementary Information for the year ended June
30, 2016.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of Storey County Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended June 30, 2017.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval and acceptance of the Trial Court Improvement (TCI) grant from the
Nevada Administrative Office of the Courts in the amount of $29,456.92 (Project
Total) for a Jefferson Audio Video Arraignment System for the courtroom. Actual
requested amount is $20,619.92. Match is $8,8837.00 to be shared equally by the Storey
County District Court and Justice Court. (Justice Court Special Fund will be used to
provide $4,418.50 of the match.)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Continue to January 2, 2018, First Reading of: Ordinance No. 17-279 amending Storey
County Code Title 16 Subdivisions to adopt new codes for land subdivisions, parcel
maps, division of land into large parcels, surety requirements, land readjustments,
boundary line adjustments, and reversions to acreage; Ordinance No. 17.280
amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including chapters 17.03
Administrative Provisions, 17.10 Definitions, 17.12 General Provisions, 17.15 Public
Zone, 17.24 Agriculture Zone, 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.30 Commercial-Residential




21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

Zone, 17.32 Forestry Zone, 17.34 Light Industrial Zone, 17.35 Heavy Industrial Zone,
17.40 Estate Zone, 17.44 Special Planning Review Zone; and 17.84 Signs and
Billboards; Ordinance No. 17.278 amending Storey County Code 17.56 Planned Unit
Developments to revise the procedure for approval of planned unit developments;
and approval of Resolution No. 17-474 to the Board of County Commissioners with
recommendation by the Planning Commission adopting a design criteria and
improvement manual setting forth certain development and design standards and
guidelines for residential and non-residential planned unit developments, multi-
family residential complexes, and other uses; Resolution No. 17-461 to the Board of
County Commissioners with recommendation by the Planning Commission
determining and consolidating all planning fees, including removing certain fees from
code and placing them into resolution. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any
person may complete and return to the board or planning commission a statement
supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning
ordinance.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review of monetary payments, described as buyouts, to two department heads in
December 2016, January 2017 and June 2017 by the County Manager. The Board may
take action, including but not limited to, determining whether the county manager
had authority to make the payments, setting a review of the county manager’s job
performance, referring the matter to an outside agency for evaluation for violation of
NRS, or determine whether to try to recover part or all of the payments.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review of monetary payments, described as buyouts, to fire chief in December 2016,
and June 2017 by the County Manager. The Board may take action, including but not
limited to, determining whether the county manager had authority to make the
payments, referring the matter to an outside agency for evaluation for violation of
NRS, or determine whether to try to recover part or all of the payments.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between the Storey County Fire
Protection District (Employer) and the Storey County Firefighters” Association [AFF
Local 4227 (Union) amending language in Article 1 Sections 1(a) and 1(b) of the 2017-
2019 collective bargaining agreement pertaining to supervisory and non-supervisory
bargaining units.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the purchase of body cameras for the Storey County Sheriff’s Office.




27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Authorize the County Manager to sign a Grant of Easement/ License to Switch
Business Solutions, LLC for the purposes of installing and maintaining twelve (12)
above ground utility poles at specified locations within the Storey County Right-of-
Way (ROW) along Ireland Drive and Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center
and situated in Storey County. Switch will also run fiber-optic wire between said
poles for purposes of transmitting and receiving data to/from sources outside our
prescribed ROW.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Special Use Permit 2017-044 request by the applicant Eco Compliance Corporation to
construct and operate a medical waste thermal destruction plant and potential
commercial power generation from waste. The subject property is located at 475
Pittsburgh Avenue, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-051-54.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Division of Land into Large Parcels File 2017-045. The applicant is requesting two
existing large parcels over 40 acres will be divided and reconfigured to a total of five
large parcels over 40 acres. The subject properties are located at McCarran (McCarran
Ranch area of the River District), Storey County, Nevada, existing APNs 004-161-16
and 004-111-06.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Variance 2017-046 request. The applicant requests a variance to the required 50-foot
south yard setback allowing the south setback area to be reduced to 15 feet for a
portion of the principal building being a mechanical room, and to 35 feet for the
remainder of the principal building’s south exterior wall. This variance does not apply
to any other side of the subject building or property. The property is located within
the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center at 475 Pittsburgh Avenue, McCarran, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-051-54.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Licensing Board Second Readings:

A. BARRY-WEHMILLER DESIGN GROUP - General/ 8020 Forsyth Blvd ~ Roseville,
CA

B. WTD HOLDINGS, INC. - Contractor / 2255 Justin trail ~ Alpharetta, GA

C. INTERNATIONAL WORKERS GROUP ~ General / 26 Center Rd ~ LaGrange, GA

D. MOUNTAIN MUNCHIES VENDING CO. - General/ ~ Truckee, CA

E. MARLOWE HEINZ - General / 355 N “F” St. ~ Virginia City, NV

F. MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC AUTOMATION - General/ 500 Corporate Woods Pkwy ~
Vernon Hills, CA




G. CHROMALOX INC. - General/ 103 Gamma Dr ~ Pittsburgh, PA

H. BOART LONGYEAR CO. - Contractor/ 2455 South 3600 West ~ West Valley City, UT
. TESLA ENERGY, DBA: SOLARCITY - General/ 3055 Clearview Way ~ San Mateo, CA
J. ADECCO USA, INC - General/ 10151 Deerwood Pk ~ Jacksonville, FL.

K. COBALT CONTRACTING LLC - General/ 5669 Courtney Plummer Rd ~ Oshkosh,
WI

L. ACME CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY - General/ 330 se Salmon St ~ Portland, OR

M. DIANDA CONSTRUCTION INC - Contractor/ 5485 Reno Corporate Dr ~ Reno, NV
N. THERMOLD INSULATION - Contractor/ 2995 White Pine Dr ~ Washoe Valley, NV
O. REYNOLDS BATTERY SVC, INC - General/ 1390 N. McDowell ~ Petaluma, CA

P. SAKANA, LLC - General/ 7655 Town Square Ln ~ Reno, NV

Q. TECH PLUMBING & HEATING INC - Contractor/ 2601 Warm Springs Ct ~ Carson
City, NV

R. TECHNOSOFT SERVICES, INC. - General/ 13400 Bishops Lane ~ Brookfield WI

S. ISLAND ICE, LLC - General/ 6137 Torrington ~ Reno, NV

T. AMERICA RENTS - General/ 10450 S. Virginia St ~ Reno, NV

U. TECHNICOAT MANAGEMENT, INC - Contractor/ 6879 Speedway Blvd ~ Las
Vegas, NV

V. SUMMIT LINE CONSTRUCTION, INC - Contractor/ 441 W. Power Line Rd ~ Heber
City, UT

W. TRUE NORTH SOLUTIONS LP - General/ 8822 S. Ridgeline Blvd ~ Highlands
Ranch, CO

X. ENCORE STEEL, INC - General/ 3420 S. 39th Ave ~ Phoenix, AZ

Y. BANGKOK CUISINE, LLC - General/ 55 Mt. Rose St ~ Reno, NV

Z. MIDWEST ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, INC - General/ W238 N. 1800 Rockwood ~
Waukesha, WI

AA. DEVIN GALLOWAY, DBA: IN THE ROUGH RECDORDS - General/ 333 Territory
Rd ~ Dayton, NV

BB. CHEF YORKEY, LLC. -General/ 881 Golfers Pass Rd. ~ Incline Village, NV

CC. INFERNO PIZZA TRAILER - General / 5885 Wishbone CT ~ Sun Valley, NV

32. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
33. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

e Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

* Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

* Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

e Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

* Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.




e Inaccordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 11/30/2017; Virginia City
Post Office at 132 S CSt, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia
City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer













Exhibit A - Board approved CBA Article 1 from August 15, 2017
ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION

[. The Employer hereby recognizes the Union as the exclusive collective bargaining unit for all
Employces in the Supervisory and Non-Supervisory bargaining unil engaged in fire
prevention and suppression in the Storey County Fire Protection District (District). The
bargaining unit, Storcy County Fire Fighters® Association IAFF Local 4227, represents both
the Supervisory and the Non-Supervisory bargaining units. This Agreement complies with
NRS 288 by separating supervisory and non-supervisory employees into separate units as
follows:

4. Bargaining Unit A (Non-Supervisory): Pursuant o the provisions of the Local
Government Employee Management Relations Act, Statutes of Nevada, the
District recognizes the Unton as the exclusive bargaining agent for all non-
supervisory District employees listed in Section 2 of this Article.

b, Bargaining Unit B {Supervisory): Pursuant to the provisions ot the Local
Government Employee Management Relations Acl, Statutes of Nevada, the
District recognizes the union as the exclusive bargaining agent for supervisory
District employees listed in Section 2 this Article.

2. The following job classies) shall be covered by this Agreement:

6. Senior Firefightet’ AEMT - Non Supervisory Unit
b.  Senmior Firefighter/Paramedic - Non-Supervisory Unit
¢.  lire Captain - Supervisory

3. In the event the Employet creates a new job classification that will be placed in cither
harguining unit or amends the job requirements of an existing job classification within cither
bargaining unit, the Employer will notify the Union as to their intended action and atlow Union
input prior to adoption. Where the propoesed changes or change impacts matters within the
scope of mandatory hargaining as specified in NRS 288 and this Agreenment, upon request
from the bargaining agent, the Employer will enter into negotiations to the extent required by
law or this Agreement.

Page 4 of 5



Exhibit B — CBA Article 1 as amended per this MOU
ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION

I. The Employer hereby recognizes the Union as the exclusive collective bargaining unit for all
Employees in the Supervisory and Non-Supervisory bargaining unit engaged in fire
prevention and suppression in the Storey County Fire Protection District (District). The
bargaining unit, Storey County Fire Fighters' Association [AFF [ocal 4227, represents hoth
the Supervisory and the Non-Supervisory bargaining units.

3%

The following job class(es) shall be covered by this Agreement:

a. Senior Firefightert/AEMT -~ Non Supervisory Unit
b. Senior Firefighter/Paramedic - Non-Supervisory Unit
¢. Fire Captain - Supervisory Unil

3. In the event the Iimployer creates a new job classification that will be placed in either
bargaining unit or amends the job requirements of an existing job classification within either
bargaining unit, the Employer will notify the Union as te their intended action and allow Union
input prior to adoption. Where the proposed changes or change impacts maiters within the
scope of mandatory bargaining as specified in NRS 288 and this Agreement, upon request
[rom the bargaining agent, the Employer will enter into negotiations to the extent required by
law or this Agreement.

Page 4 of 4

Page 5 of §









4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for September 5, 2017.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Minutes for September 5, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

5. CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $692,763.13 and accounts payable
claims in the amount of $5,063,677.80.

II For possible action, approval of the Treasurer Report for September 2017.
111 For possible action, approval of the Justice Court Quarterly Report.

IV For possible action, approval of Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including: Policies 301 Personnel Role in Hiring, 302 Candidates and Recruiting, 303
Job Announcements, 304 Applicant Eligibility, 305 Examinations and Interviews, 306 Reference
Checks, 307 Applicant Investigations, 308 Selection and Screening, 309 Orientation, 310
Probation, 311 Rehire, 312 License and Certs, 313 Casual Employment, 314 Volunteer Program,
and 1002 Definitions.

V For possible action, approval of Interlocal Agreement between Storey County and Washoe
County for the River District Lunch Program.

VI For possible action, approval of Business License First Readings:
A. ATLAS CONULTING GROUP,LLC - General / 71 W Main St. Freehold NJ
B. FULCRUM, LLC-General / 1105 Williamsburg Dr ~ Mobile, AL
C. MOTAN, INC. - General / 320 N Acorn Street ~ Plainwell, MI
D. RENO CARSON MESSENGER SERVICE. - General/ 185 Martin St. ~ Reno, NV
E. TSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. - General / 8800 Global Way- W. Chester, OH
F. VWR INTERNATIONAL, LLC General / 738 Space Island Rd. Sparks, NV
G. ZEPHYR COMMUNICATIONSOF NV - General / 2187 Main Street Gold Hill

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for October 17,2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)




14. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE DISTRICT BOARD

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Payment of retirement claim for one year of service up to
$41,346.59 based on PERS estimate, as requested by Rob DuFresne.

Deputy District Attorney Anne Langer joined the meeting via teleconference.

Chairman McBride stated that a couple of weeks ago he was contacted by Rob DuFresne with a
request to purchase him a year of retirement. Chairman McBride asked him if he was short in years
of retirement. Mr. DuFresne explained that he is not short - he is fully vested in the system; it is his
understanding that years have been purchased for other employees in the past. Chair McBride
advised him that neither staff nor the Chair had authority to give additional retirement benefits and
this would be an item to be taken to the Board.

Marie DuFresne was present on behalf of her husband. She stated that her husband was unable to be
present today due to a prior commitment. She explained that he is not asking for anything out of the
ordinary as three other individuals received similar buyouts this year.

Vice-Chairman McGuffey explained that he has recently become aware of this issue. He feels that it
is an excessive amount for a bonus and shouldn’t be given to employees.

Commissioner Gilman stated that it appears does not believe that any money should be spent outside
of the purview of the Board - this is the Commission’s responsibility under NRS. Previous “buy
outs” did not come before this Board - Commissioner Gilman was not aware of this. This gentleman
is entitled to a lot of benefits from the union retirement plan. These types of issues could come before
the Commission and should be a line item if going to be allowed along with a procedure to be
followed.

Mr. Loomis added that the agenda item is specific to the request for PERS claim and not changing or
creating policy. This is relevant but cannot be discussed today.

Chairman McBride said currently there is no policy to give a bonus or buy additional retirement
years for employees. It has been perceived by past practice that there should be some entitlement. It
was explained that in the past the County has bought service for employees, get them into the PERS
system and off County payroll which was cost effective due to high salaries and then bring in
someone at the “bottom of the ladder”. Storey County employees are entitled to a 100% tax-payer
funded retirement with benefits.

Public Comment:

Marie DuFresne: In talking about excess, isn't it excess to give one employee an $80,000 bonus on
top of a year at the end of their term. She asked the Board if they approve the Treasurer’s report
monthly, and if they approve that report shouldn’t you know about the previous purchases. How do
you not know when the Board approved the previous Treasurer reports?

Nicole Barde: The possibility of “misappropriation of funds” has been brought up as well as the fact
that in order for money to be paid out of the County it would be on the Treasurer’s Report. When the

3




investigation into how this could have happened without (the Commission’s) knowledge, will a
report come back to the Board and made public? Agenda items regarding (bonuses) have been
approved in the past.

Chairman McBride: This agenda item is regarding Mr. DuFresne’s request and not past practice. The
Board will only speak on Mr. DuFresne’s request.

Outside Counsel Robert Morris stated he was asked by District Attorney Langer to be here should
issues about policy or past practices come up and agrees this Item is solely for Mr. DuFresne’s
request. Staff can be directed to come back with an item regarding past practices. There is a
retirement incentive program - this is different than a bonus which is being requested in this item.

Chairman McBride: Commissioner Gilman has requested that past practice regarding this be looked
into with a report brought to the Board. What does the Board feel regarding this item?

Commissioner Gilman: Does not believe it would be appropriate to establish precedent at this Board
to enter into programs after the fact.

Vice-Chairman McGuffey: Prefers not to make a decision without coming up with a policy. Right
now his decision is no - if there was a policy in place that could sway his opinion.

District Attorney Anne Langer added that a policy would be after the fact and not retroactive.

Commissioner Gilman: Is not aware of a precedent that indicates the Board should entertain further
retirement benefits for employees. Staff and the legal department should provide feedback.

Motion: I make a motion to deny the application for $41,349.56 based on PERS estimate presented by
Rob DuFresne, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

16. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
6. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Community Chest & Library Director Erik Schoen:
e Construction of the new building continues on track for completion in February.
e Go to ccnevada.net for information regarding the October 27t fundraiser at Pipers.
+ Thank you to Commissioner McGuffey for organizing TRI businesses to come to Virginia City
to visit non-profits, which are being run very well.

IT Director James Deane:
¢ Hardware has been purchased for the new system replacing the AS400 at a cost $100,000.
Currently $88,000 has been spent, which is under budget.
e December 1% is the estimated date for hardware to be up and running and development
testing with Tyler and Devnet.
e Has attended presentations with Harris, Tyler, and Devnet. Devnet is opening a support
center in Carson City.




Justice of the Peace Eileen Herrington:
¢ The number of citations coming is an indication of growth in the County and the opening of
USA Parkway.
e This brings an increase in fines with over $40,000 for the first quarter.
e Traffic citations were up to 1,300 for the last quarter of the fiscal year.
o All of this has an impact on the Court. Costs are offset by use of special funds.

Mr. Whitten: This is an indication of more volume of people and cars in the TRI area, not that the
Sheriff’s Office is becoming more aggressive.

Tourism Director Deny Dotson:
e V&T Rail Commission Board met last Friday. New Chairs will be set next week. Looking
forward to great changes for next year. The Polar Express team is in place.
e The Red Run Event was held last week. It came out pretty well. A lot of history was learned
through this event.
* Thomas Train will be held the next two weekends.
* Upcoming events will be the Halloween and Veterans Day parades.

Fire Chief Jeff Nevin:
» Drop box collections have been set up at all fire stations in response to the devastating fires in
California. Items needed: gift cards, dry goods, clothing, pet supplies.
e This week is high school homecoming. Friday night will be the annual bon fire held at the Ice
House. This will only take place pending weather conditions. The bon fire will be monitored
by the Fire Department.

Community Outreach Director Cherie Nevin:

¢ The Lockwood Community Senior Center Open house is October 24th at 12:30 PM. Call the
day before for reservations.

e There is a lot of information on the County website and facebook regarding the sewer project.
A letter will go out to all residents with all information. This will be an 18 month project.

e There will be street closures with the sewer project. This is a very complex project and there
will be unexpected situations.

* Attending a mass-fatality planning workshop in Washington state along with other quad-
county representatives.

Director of Planning/Human Resources Austin Osborne:
» Work is finishing up on Title 16 and 17 updates, along with other items dealing with Planning,
¢ The latest updates are on the website.
¢ Up-coming Planning Commission meetings to discuss updates are: October 19 in Lockwood;
November 2, Mark Twain; November 16, Virginia City.
¢ The Lands Bill is moving forward.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis:
» Update on Sutro Springs Road litigation: the plaintiff has requested to stipulate to dismissing
the lawsuit. There is an opportunity to recover costs and some attorney’s fees.




County Manager Pat Whitten:

e There will be and are impacts with the sewer project. Interruptions, including water service,
can be planned or unexpected - this is going to happen.

o Congratulations to Deny Dotson and Katie Demuth in hosting a successful meeting with the
Reno-Tahoe Territory tourism group in the County Slammer Museum.

e The County has hired Martin Azevedo as full-time Fire Marshal.

¢ The Commission meetings of November 215t and December 19t may be dismissed. There is
opportunity for special meetings if necessary.

7. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Vice Chairman McGuffey:
o The V&T Rail Commission elected Deny Dotson as Chair.
o T-Mobile is close to signing agreement for cell service on the Highlands tower - possibly by the
end of the year.
e Great turnout last weekend at St.Mary’s Art Center for the fall gallery.
¢ The Back in Time fundraiser at the Fourth Ward School was big success.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and Possible Action to approve contract to
purchase Pipers Opera House from the Storey County School District for $300,500.00 and other
consideration.

District Attorney Keith Loomis presented this item. In order to sell School District property, the
District must obtain two appraisals - property cannot be sold for less than appraised value. The
County will meet the $300,500 and provide other consideration. An Interlocal Contract will provide
that the School District will have use of Pipers for up to 30 days per year at no charge.

The School District will have to approve a Resolution proposing the sale and the publish the
Resolution twice. Any objections must be heard prior to the sale.

Commissioner Gilman asked if a structural report was available on the building. Any structural
damage should be known up front.

Mr. Whitten: The County has a historic structures report. This will need to be updated. The County
Engineer has identified issues which appear to be issues the County can better address than the
School District. The County has already fixed some issues identified this year. Mr. Whitten would
also like to protect the Opera House from falling into private hands.

Public Comment:

Kris Thompson, TRI Project Manager: This is a great move by the County to protect the Opera
House for posterity. He suggested that the County has an infrastructure fund and perhaps those
funds can be used to improve the structure.

Sam Toll, Gold Hill Resident: Is it the position of the County or Mr. Whitten to protect the Opera
House from falling into private hands.

Mr. Whitten: It's mine.




Mr. Toll: Concerned that estimates he has heard could be up to $2 to 3 million to renovate the
property. There is also concern with the County owning and maintaining historical properties which
may suggest to owners of other (historical) properties that this is a direction the County wants to go.
Is it appropriate for the County to purchase properties with or without plans for future use? More
money may be received if the property was put on the open market.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Thank you for considering this purchase. What is the
County’s plan for Pipers? Is the County willing to put money behind and into it? What will make a
difference in preserving this building?

Todd Hess, Storey County School District Superintendent: Thank you to Mr. Loomis for the great
direction. Per NRS two appraisals were obtained. The School District purchased the Opera House
for $282,310 in 2014 with the intention to not own it forever. The County was not in a position at the
time to purchase. The School District does not have the resources to maintain it.

Chairman McBride: Commended the School District for taking on this building in 2014. Chair
McBride reviewed the history of the Opera House while on the non-profit Board. Several million
dollars have been put into the building and foundation, in structural support, and other areas. The
County has access to apply for grants for assistance. We have a responsibility and moral obligation
to look after the history of Virginia City. Chair McBride said he is in total support of the County
taking over this building.

Vice-Chairman McGuffey: Feels the goal is to get a Board in place and apply for grants to assist with
repairs. When it was in private hands, the people meant well but were unable to generate enough
funds to maintain it.

Commissioner Gilman: Industry here is driven by tourist dollars - properly done, Pipers could be a
major draw.

Mr. Whitten: Does not doubt the figure of $2 - 3 million worth of work, but probably does not need
to be done immediately. We will work down the list. There are a number of options for funding of
this work. Purchase funds will come from two areas. One, Toys R Us had a 50% abatement on
personal property tax with agreement that if they left sooner than the 10 year commitment - which
they did - they would pay back to Storey County approximately $250,000, with limited parameters on
what it could be used for. This would be the “lions share” of funding.

Sam Toll: It was suggested that a plan would be to create a 50C3 entity to take over - is that the
plan?

Mr. Whitten: The uses have to be looked at. There are four County “treasures” being operated by
501C3 groups - which might even be here without these groups. This would be at the top of the list
for Pipers.

Mr. Toll: With the investment in this building, it is in everyone’s best interest to have a more solid,
defined plan than we may do this or that.

Chairman McBride: The Eureka Opera House just had a windfall of funds from mining taxes.
7




Mr. Loomis explained this is an offer to the School Board and they can accept or reject the offer.

Motion: [, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, moved to approve the contract for the purchase of the
Pipers Opera House from the Storey County School District and authorize the Chairman to sign,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Review of the 1¢t Quarter 2017 Unaudited Budget to Actual
Review

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher discussed and reviewed the 2017 1t Quarter Unaudited Budget. At
25% of the year, revenues are up and expenses are low, continuing with the way things were during
the 4t quarter of last year. The General Fund is currently at 35% of revenue and 21% expenses.

Community Development has requested to hire a licensed building inspector with electrical
background.

Mr. Gallagher reviewed the few departments that are over in percentages. Overall Mr. Gallagher
feels very good about the first quarter.

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Cooperative (Local Public Agency)
Agreement between the State of Nevada Department of Transporation and Storey County for the
Six Mile Canyon Emergency Repair Project.

Cherie Nevin stated that as a result of the winter storms Six Mile Canyon sustained severe damage
and was closed for several months for emergency repairs. Six Mile Canyon is considered a major
collector to a State Highway allowing the County to seek reimbursement from Federal Highways,
through NDOT, for some of the costs. This Agreement allows for reimbursement of approximately
$255,113 once funding is made available through Federal Highways.

Chairman McBride: Is the total amount were entitled to?

Ms. Nevin: This is 100% total amount for repairs. For the permanent repairs later, the County will
receive 95%. It is unknown when the funds will come.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve the Cooperative (Local Public Agency) Agreement between the State of
Nevada Department of Transportation and Storey County for the Six Mile Canyon Emergency Repair
Project, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner
Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)




10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Accept receipt of two motorcycles from Washoe County,
free of charge, through a Department of Homeland Security grant for response and use in back
country operations.

Mr. Whitten presented this item on behalf of the Sheriff. Washoe County had two motorcycles
available to the first agency that wanted them. The intended use would be in the back roads only.
The motorcycles are street legal and free, and will save wear and tear on vehicles. The County has at
least four qualified deputies to operate these motorcycles.

Sergeant Eric Kern: These are BMW motorcycles with fairly low mileage. The Sheriff indicated that
deputies will be doing some training with Carson City Sheriff. Some of the back roads are very
rough on vehicles.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I motion to accept receipt of two motorcycles from Washoe County, free of charge, through
a Department of Homeland Security grant for response and use in back country operations, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action regarding Resolution
17-475 setting Storey County Sheriff's Office Jail parking lot as location for transaction of internet
sales as required by AB 297.

Deputy District Attorney Loomis stated that the Legislature passed AB297 stating that a location for
internet transactions must be designated. The Sheriff has requested that the parking lot at the jail be
the designated place.

Mr. Whitten: The parking lot is well lit and has cameras - it is the logical place for this.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve Resolution 17-475 and authorize the chairman to sign, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and Possible Action on approval of contract
to purchase real property from Kimberly Neal located at 10 South B Street adjacent to the County
Courthouse for approximately $355,000.00.

Deputy District Attorney Loomis: This is a proposed contract for purchase of the property north and
adjacent to the Courthouse for use as additional office space and parking. An appraisal was done in
August 2017 with a value of $355,000. The seller, Ms. Neal, has requested changing the date of
closing from December 15 to November 1, 2017. The Preliminary Title Report has not yet been
received. Mr. Loomis would like to review this Report before closing and is recommending the

9




contract be amended to state escrow shall close on or about November 1, 2017, and in no event prior
to the County’s opportunity to review the Preliminary Title Report.

Mr. Whitten: This property has been on the County’s radar for years. Most of the land north of the
Courthouse is owned by this property. Ms. Neal leased this area to the County when there were
parking issues last winter. This area is prime for parking. There is a need for space for the Justice
Court and other departments can also make use of this property.

Commissioner Gilman: Feels this is an appropriate purchase and logical move in order to obtain
more space.

Chairman McBride: This property slipped through the County’s fingers years ago. This will play
nicely into the acquisition of the Opera House, when approved. Access will be easier through the
Union Street side entrance.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ make a motion to approve the entry into the contract for the purchase of real property
belonging to Kimberly Neal and authorize the Chairman to sign, paragraph 5 will be amended to
provide that escrow will close on or about November 1, 2017, but in no event prior to the County
opportunity to review the Preliminary Title Report, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Modification to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC -
Storey County Development Agreement by amending the development agreement master site plan to
include certain parcels located within an area previously transferred from Washoe County to Storey
County in 2014. The subject parcels include APNs 005-121-01, 005-121-02, 005-121-03, 005-121-04, and
005-121-05.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.

Austin Osborne presented this item - request to modify the development agreement between Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center and Storey County to include parcels totaling approximately 2,500 acres,
zoned commercial/industrial. This was land transferred from Washoe County to Storey County in
2014. Only the portions owned by TRI Center and zoned IC are subject to this request. Mr. Osborne
reviewed all conditions agreed to by TRI, including agreement not to allow medical marijuana uses
on this land and to include that restriction to all of the Industrial Center.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde: Is the Master Plan being altered to accommodate this annexation?

Mr. Osborne: There are no changes to the Master Plan. This is an area in and around TRI Center that
the Master Plan states this land should be used for industrial, commercial - those sort of uses.

10




Karen Woodmansee, Comstock Chronicle: Is this land owned by Storey County, now going to be
owned by TRI? Would the “infrastructure agreement” apply to this property?

Chairman McBride: This is privately owned land transferred from Washoe County into Storey
County.

Mr. Whitten: Yes - the (infrastructure) agreement will apply.

Kris Thompson: Appreciates Storey County’s efforts getting this property moved into Storey
County. This property will generate a lot of retail business.

Mr. Whitten: During the process, Washoe County has been very cooperative and supportive.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: His biggest concern is the river and does not want to see companies
backed up to the river. He would like to see this as a green-belt area.

Mr. Osborne: These river-front properties have been acquired and are managed by the Nature
Conservancy just for that purpose.

Motion: In accordance with recommendation by staff, I Commissioner McGuffey, motion to approve
modification to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC - Storey County Development Agreement by
amending the development agreement master site plan to include APNs 005-121-001, 005-121-02, 005-
121-03, 005-121-04, and 005-121-05 as legally described in Exhibit A enclosed herewith, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

27. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Road Abandonment. The applicants are requesting an
abandonment of a portion of “O” Street. The applicant requests that the eastern four feet of “O”
Street along the property line of Lot 9A, Block 116 of Virginia City, for a distance of 75 linear feet be
abandoned to accommodate proposed construction of a garage. The property is located at 97 South
“O” Street, the northeast corner of “O” Street and Taylor Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada
and having Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-255-02.

Vice-Chairman McGuffey recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.

Planner Kathy Canfield presented this item. This application is made to correct and error when the
permit was issued for construction of a two-car garage addition. It was discovered that the addition
is 3 feet into the right-of-way. All required noticing was done and responses to objections were
answered. Even with the abandonment, the general requirements for right-of-way are met. Property
owner has agreed to an easement.

Mr. Osborne indicated changes have been made to work-flow and structure to insure this will not
happen again.

Public Comment:
None

11




Chairman McBride said errors were made by the County and applicant, and does not see any
problem.

Ms. Canfield read the Findings of Fact:
The Applicant requests an abandonment of a portion of “O” Street. The applicant requests
that the eastern four feet of “O” Street along the property line of Lot 9A, Block 116 of Virginia
City, for a distance of 75 linear feet be abandoned to accommodate proposed construction of a
garage. The property is located at 97 South “O” Street, the northeast corner of “O” Street and
Taylor Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and having Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 001-255-02.

The Abandonment complies with NRS 278.480 relating to Abandonment of a street or
easement.

The Abandonment complies with all Federal, State, and County regulations pertaining to
vacation or abandonment of streets or easements, including NRS 278.240.

The Abandonment will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
abutting properties or the surrounding vicinity.

The Abandonment will not cause the public to be materially injured by the proposed
abandonment.

The conditions of approval for the requested Abandonment do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Chapters 17.12.090, General Provision - Access and
Right-of-Ways, or any other Federal, State, or County regulations.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I,
Commissioner Lance Gilman, move to approve an abandonment of the eastern four feet of “O” Street along
the property line of Lot 9A, Block 116 of Virginia City, for a distance of 75 linear feet and the area of
abandonment be combined with the property located at 97 South “O” Street, the northeast corner of “O”
Street and Taylor Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and having Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 001-255-02, (the following read by Chairman McBride): Additionally, the Final Map must
delineate a four foot wide easement along the west boundary of the adjusted parcel (i.e., over the
street abandonment area) which shall be exclusive for above-ground hanging fiber optic,
telephone, cable, and television utilities. The portion of the residential/ garage structure located
within this easement area must not exceed 20 feet in height in order to not conflict with the
overhanging utilities. The easement area must not allow utility poles, boxes, or other ground-
mounted apparatus that would conflict with the residential structure built thereon,

Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote:

Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

12




28. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2017-041. The applicants are requesting a
variance to the side yard setback for the construction of a one-story garage attached to the existing
residence. The applicants request the side yard setback be reduced from the required 10-feet to the
proposed 1-foot. The property is located at 97 South “O” Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-255-02.

Vice-Chairman McGuffey recused himself discussion and vote on this item.

Planner Kathy Canfield presented this item. With the abandoned four feet, applicant is requesting a
one foot setback from the property line which reflects the one foot garage over-hang into the right-of-
way. The garage will be 13 feet from the pavement edge to garage wall.

Public Comment:
None

Mr. Osborne: Updates in zoning requirements will include “loosening restrictions” for building
garages in Virginia City on 50x100 lots, rather than going through the variance process.

Ms. Canfield read the Findings of Fact:
The applicants are requesting a variance (Variance 2017-041) to the side yard setback for the
construction of a one-story garage attached to the existing residence. The applicants are
requesting the side yard setback be reduced from the required 10-feet to the proposed 1-foot.
The property is located at 97 South “O” Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-255-02.

An abandonment of 4-feet by the 75-feet length of the west property line (Abandonment File
2017-040) has been approved for the applicant which permits this Variance application to
proceed.

Because of errors made on submitted plans and measurements at the site, the granting of this
Variance resolves the inadvertent construction of a garage foundation encroaching onto public
right-of-way, without requiring the removal of the constructed foundation.

The subject property is located within R1 Residential zoning with an existing residence as a
primary use and the proposed garage as attached allowed accessory use.

That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights of the applicant.

The Storey County Public Works Department reviewed the site and determined that no above-
ground or below-ground public utilities exist in the area subject to the variance.

That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
area of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the area of the subject property.

13




The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
regulations.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140 Variances and
17.16 R1 Residential Zones when all Conditions of Approval are met.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives and policies of
the 2016 Storey County Master Plan.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the
Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I Commissioner
Lance Gilman), move to approve Variance 2017-041 to reduce the side yard setback from the required
10-feet to the proposed 1-foot. The property is located at 97 South “O” Street, Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-255-02, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Modification to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC -
Storey County Development Agreement, in accordance with Section 5.2, by accepting and approving
the application of the amendments made to Title 17 of the Storey County Code set forth in Storey
County Ordinance 17-275 (see Enclosure B) within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, amendments
which prohibit the use of land within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center as a marijuana cultivation
facility, as a marijuana testing facility, as a marijuana manufacturing facility, as a marijuana
distributor, as a retail marijuana store or as a facility from which a facility or organization from which
a person may obtain marijuana and marijuana related products.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself discussion and vote on this item.

Planning Director Osborne presented this item - a request for TRI Center to accept the restrictions of
the approved amendments to Ordinance 17-275 within Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.

Public Comment:

Sam Toll: Reviewed the background of marijuana in the 1900’s. This industry (marijuana) is subject
to triple taxation. The County turning its back is contrary to what the intent of the voters of the State
of Nevada, and Storey County, made clear in question 2. It is disappointing in light of the fact (the
County) is not getting much in the way of tax revenue from TRI.

Chairman McBride: The Federal Government still deems marijuana a “schedule one” drug. The
County has a good relationship with the Federal Government - receiving assistance in funding
various projects. Would not like to see a revocation of funding because the County was disobeying
Federal law. If the Federal Government relaxes prohibition in the future, the County can look at this
again. Ido not believe the companies in the Industrial Center want “pot shops” set up where they’re
doing business.

14




Louise Pena, River District resident: Does not want to see the County pass something that would be
so harmful to people in the River District. Allowing any part of marijuana distribution in that area is
putting everyone at a disadvantage - especially with the current traffic issues. Does not want to see
Storey County allow this in the Industrial Park.

Mr. Whitten: An agreement with the owners of the park states that subsequent laws passed don’t
necessarily pertain (to the park) unless agreed to at the County level. There are 15 rural counties -
none have enacted recreational marijuana. Restrictive use of marijuana is allowed in this county -
this cannot be eliminated.

Kris Thompson: It was agreed by all parties that the Industrial Park must comply with all Federal
law. If allowed, it would seem - under the Development Agreement - that everyone could come
after TRIC and the County. TRIC supports the County on this issue.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to
approve modification to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC - Storey County Development
Agreement in accordance with Section 5.2 by accepting and approving the application of the
amendments made to Title 17 of the Sorey County Code set forth in Storey County Ordinance 17-275
within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, amendments prohibiting the use of land within the Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center as a marijuana cultivation facility, as a marijuana testing facility, as a
marijuana manufacturing a facility, as a marijuana distributor, as a retail marijuana store or as a
facility for which a facility or organization from which a person may obtain marijuana and marijuana
related products, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Workshop related to Property Tax Relief.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher: The County is looking at what type of relief can be obtained -
including real property tax reductions, rebates (both apply to ad valorem), utility fees (including tax
gas), and anything that could provide relief for residents. The County must look at implementation,
which starts Department of Taxation with discussions and others about what the procedures may be.
Whether or not there are legal issues needs to be determined.

Commissioner Gilman: It sounds like the County is still researching and looking at how this may be
accomplished.

Mr. Gallagher: Property tax relief will be on a percentage of what is originally put in. Businesses
contribute about 65% and will get 65% back; centrally assessed is 22%; and residents and everyone
else, would share about 12-15%. We continue looking for another way - nothing has been found yet.
Once legality is established - will the Department of Taxation allow it?

Commissioner Gilman: This County is moving towards incredible prosperity. I want to see a vehicle

that allows residents to participate in the County’s financial successes and will be extremely
disappointed if we do not come up with a way to reward (the residents).

15




Vice-Chairman McGuffey: There’s been discussion that lowering taxes is hard to do and raising taxes
is even harder. Once a year, Alaska sends out checks to every resident for the pipeline - maybe
something like that can be considered. We want to fulfill promises made.

Mr. Whitten: ‘The problem is finding meaningful relief. A lower tax rate will be seen by the “big
boys”. The rebate is sort of the same thing - big companies would benefit most, the average taxpayer
would see minimal, to hardly any, relief. The idea of a check (as in Alaska) is fascinating and will be
pursued further. The County is committed to find a way to get this done.

Commissioner Gilman: Believes the County spends about 85% of income in union support - for all of
the community unions who share in the County’s growth through automatic payroll increases and
other guarantees. If the County is doing this, the most important faction is the residents - people
who are paving the way.

Chairman McBride: That figure is not just the unions, all County employees are part of that figure.
As the County gets closer to expiration of abatements, and new with new companies that do not have
abatements, there will be a “windfall” of revenue. Tesla, paying the most taxes, will be the biggest
winner of a tax rollback. Abatements do not last forever - everyone should get a benefit when the
abatements expire.

Commissioner Gilman: Thinks some companies in TRI have received incentives, but only two have
received abatements. There is a strong mix of income from TRI.

Chairman McBride: Before the growth in TRI, there were only volunteer fire departments in several
areas where now there are paid, fully staffed fire stations - going from a small part of the budget to a
good portion of it for these services. It's a cost of doing business and the residents are well-taken care
of. The County is not near its (tax rate) cap and has been able to maintain a moderate tax rate. Other
counties continue to raise rates.

Commissioner Gilman: The County has done a great job. Excess revenues are growing and will be
available - it would be nice to plan how to have everyone in the loop.

Mr. Whitten: No action was anticipated today.

Public Comment:
Sam Toll: Does the Comptroller have an abated tax figure the County has received for 2016-17?

Mr. Gallagher: The abated taxes for 17-18 are about $10 million. It was $6 million the year before.
The more property Tesla builds on - the higher the assessed valuation.

Mr. Toll: The Department of Taxation has no way of quantifying where tax revenues are generated
from. One problem is - if you can’t measure it, you can’t manage it. A lot of the taxes collected are
“one time”, not recurring. What is it we’re dealing with, how to figure that out, can a check be
written to every resident in the County? Without real numbers, making any decision is dangerous.

16




Kris Thompson, TRI Project Manager: Property values and sales data in the region are tracked by
TRI. Property values since the Tesla deal, have gone up over 20%. It seems the increased property
taxes based on increased valuations could be turned back to Storey County residents. A government
that is succeeding should be able to turn some of that success over to its residents.

Chairman McBride: Even though values of companies have gone up in three years, it is based on a
ten year, rolling average on the property tax cap. Property taxes may have actually gone down
because of the convoluted Legislative action.

Mr. Whitten: The answers lie with the Legislature.

Mr. Thompson: Is there a point that property tax relief can be enacted - can it be defined? There has
to be a point where taxes can be lowered or a rebate given to residents.

Keith Loomis: The Nevada Constitution states the rate of taxation shall be equal across all properties.
This is one roadblock distinguishing between residential and commercial users.

Mr. Whitten: The Alaska pipeline probably is not a refunded tax. How can a “pot of money” not tied
to taxes be distributed in a way acceptable to the Board and meaningful to the people of the County?

Mr. Loomis: The Alaska pipeline idea is a thought.

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading for General Business License, Applicant is
Michelle Haley, owner of Virginia City Cigar and Bar located at 69 C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

On behalf of the Sheriff, Pat Whitten said approval of the General Business License for Michelle
Haley is recommended by the Sheriff’s Office.

Public Comment:
None

Chairman McBride disclosed he has a General Business License in proximity to this business, and his
vote on this matter would not affect applicant or any other business in proximity to this business.

Commissioner Gilman disclosed he has a General Business License in proximity to this business, and
his vote on this matter would not affect applicant or any other business in proximity to this business.

Motion: Approve Second reading for General Business License, Applicant is Michelle Haley, owner
of Virginia City Cigar and Bar located at 69 C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

21. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

17




22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading for On-sale Liquor & Cabaret License.
Applicant if Michelle Haley, owner of Virginia City Cigar and Bar located at 69 C Street, Virginia
City, NV 89440.

Board member Sheriff Antinoro absent.

Pat Whitten on behalf of the Sheriff, stated the applicant was found to have no disqualifying history.
Applicant has been operating on g temporary license since September 19t%h. Applicant has a six year
lease with no irregularities seen in the lease agreement. All fire, health, and safety approvals have
been obtained.

Approval is recommended by the Sheriff’s Office.

Public Comment:
Sam Toll: Encourages and welcomes the new business and points to the irony of embracing a
business like this. They sell alcohol and tobacco, clearly two dangerous substances.

Chairman McBride disclosed he has a Liquor and Cabaret License in proximity to this business, and
his vote on this matter would not affect applicant or any other business in proximity to this business.

Commissioner Gilman disclosed he has a Liquor and Cabaret License in proximity to this business,
and his vote on this matter would not affect applicant or any other business in proximity to this
business.

Motion: [ make a motion to approve the second reading, On-sale Liquor and Cabaret License for
Virginia City Cigar and Bar located at 69 C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

23. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Letter to Congressman Mark Amodei, Senator Dean
Heller, and Senator Catherine Cortez-Masto supporting Congressional bill action which serves to
clarify language in Public Law 113-291 conveying to Storey County approximately 1,745 acres of land
in and immediately surrounding Virginia City and Gold Hill which is identified as having clouded
federal ownership, as well as any other Congressional bill which serves to convey said lands from
federal ownership to Storey County.

Austin Osborne said the County is working with the Porter Group, Congressman Mark Amodei,
Senator Dean Heller, and Senator Catherine Cortez-Masto in efforts to get the Lands Bill approved.
The support of this Board in writing a letter will help this effort. It is believed that in 2018 something
will be done to get this approved and the transfer of these lands can begin.

Public Comment:
None

18




Motion: I, Commissioner, Jack McGuffey, motion to send this letter to Honorable Congressman
Mark Amodei, Honorable Senator Dean Heller, and Honorable Senator Catherine Cortez-Masto
supporting Congressional bill action which serves to claify language in Public Law 113-291
conveying to Storey County approximately 1,745 acres of land in and i8mediately surrounding
Virginia City and Gold Hill which is identified as having clouded federal ownership, as well as any
other Congressional bill which serves to convey said lands from federal ownership to Storey County,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2017-008 by Insurance Auto Auctions. The
applicant requests a use variance allowing a previously permitted non-conforming use to remain in-
place under its existing ownership conditions. The proposed use subject to the variance request is
outdoor storage of inoperable motor vehicles and auctioning of those inoperable vehicles at portions
of subject property located at 4086 Peru Drive, McCarran (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center), Storey
County, Nevada, APN 005-071-16.

Continued to December 19% or January 2nd.

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2017-034 request by the applicant
CEMEX Materials Pacific (property owner Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC) to construct and
operate a ready mix batch plant at 1000 Peru Drive, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s
Parcel Number (APN) 005-051-08.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.

Planner Kathy Canfield presented this item, a Special Use Permit Request for vacant land in TRI. The
Applicant CEMEX Materials Pacific (property owner Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC) requests to
construct and operate a ready mix batch plant at 1000 Peru Drive which will serve the surrounding
community. Project is consistent with the zoning ordinance and Master Plan. This is an approval for
something permanent.

Public Comment:
None

Ms. Canfield read the Findings of Fact:

The following Findings of Fact are evident with regard to the requested special use permit when the
recommended conditions of approval in Section 4, Recommended Conditions of Approval, are
applied.

This approval is for a Special Use Permit (File 2017-034) for applicant CEMEX Materials Pacific
(property owner Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC) to construct and operate a ready mix

batch plant at 1000 Peru Drive, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 005-051-08.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the McCarran
planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion supporting this finding

19




for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.E of this staff report and the contents
thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

The subject property is located within an existing industrial neighborhood in the McCarran
area of Storey County. The zoning is based on the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance
which identifies this property as I-2 Heavy Industrial. The proposed ready mix batch plant
requires a Special Use Permit.

Granting of the Special Use Permit, with the conditions of approval listed in Section 4 of this
report, will not under the circumstances of the particular case adversely affect to a material
degree the health or safety of persons/property in the neighborhood of the subject property.
The project is expected to meet the safety and health requirements for the subject area. The
use will also be subject to building and fire plan review in order to ensure compliance with
federal, state and other codes.

The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply with all federal, state and
county regulations.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum requirements
in the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Sections 17.37 I-2 Heavy Industrial and 17.62
Special Uses.

Granting of the Special Use Permit will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons working in the
neighborhood or area of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the
public welfare or materially injurious to property improvements in the neighborhood or area
of the subject property.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of the staff report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the
Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I Commissioner
Jack McGuffey, move to approve Special Use Permit 2017-034, a request by the applicant CEMEX
Materials Pacific (property owner Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC) to construct and operate a
ready mix batch plant at 1000 Peru Drive, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number (APN) 005-051-08, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded
by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

29. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Business License Second Readings:

A. AHAUS TOOL & ENGINEERING, INC - General / 200 Industrial Parkway ~Richmond, IN
B. BAUMBACH ENTERPRISES, LLC. -General / 1700 Marietta Way ~ Sparks

C. GLOBAL ASI, INC - General / 17870 New Hope St., Fountain Valley ~ CA

D. GRANITE PROPANE- General / 2685 Almond Dr. Silver Springs, NV

E. INTERSTATE CONCRETE PUMPING-General/ 11180 Vallejo Ct. French Camp ~ CA

F. LEADEC ES, INC. - General / 9595 Kenwood Ave, Cincinnati ~ OH

G. LELAC'S FILIPINO BAKERY. - General/ 720 Baring Blvd, Sparks ~ NV

H. MASTER SERVICE PLUMBING, INC. - Contractor / 325 Sunshine Lane, Reno ~ NV

20




[. ONSTREET CONCESSIONS - General / 385 Freeport Blvd. 21, Sparks, NV

J. STRAIGHT UP! PLUMBING - Contractor / 260 Freeport Blvd ~ Sparks ~ NV

K. SUPERIOR DRAIN SVC & HOME REPAIR -Home Business / 266 N C Street, VC ~ NV

L. THE BURNT ORANGE. - General / 1630 Elk Run Trail ~ Reno ~ NV

M. TRUCKEE MEADOWS OFFICE CLEANING INC -General / 820 E Second Street, Reno~ NV
N. UNARCO MATERIAL HANDLING - Contractor/ 701 16th Ave E., Springfield ~ TN

O. UTICA ENTERPRISES, INC. -General/ 5750 New King Drive #200, Troy ~ MI

P. WOODPECKERS - General / 2160 Alamo Square Way, Reno ~ NV

Q. 4D SYSTEMS, LLC. - General / 4130 Market Place, Flint ~ MI

On behalf of Community Development, County Manager Whitten requested items A through Q be
approved.

Motion: Approve items A through Q, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

30. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Virginia City Resident, Richard Bacus: Addressed the current problem with the feral horses in
Virginia City. There are at least 8 people in town that are watering and/or feeding the horses. Has
tried to contact Chris Miller from Department of Agriculture. Something has to be done. Someone is
going to get hurt.

Mr. Whitten: The County is aware of the problem. Efforts to contact Department of Agriculture have
gone unanswered. A scheduled meeting has been cancelled.

Sergeant Kern: Added that the Sheriff’s Office is actively investigating any complaints regarding
watering and feeding the horses. His advice is that people continue to report any incidents to the
Sheriff’s Office to help build the paper trail. The consequences are up to $1,000 fine and/or up to six
months in jail.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Asked when a debt is not a debt? There has been some
discussion on the Highlands chat board. Mr. Thompsen has stated online that the money owed to TRI
is not a debt, it is a limited profit sharing agreement. Would like clarity - does the County owe TRI a
debt for the infrastructure?

Mr. Whitten: The Developer Agreement has been explained previously. It is not just taxes, it is plan
review and permitting, and more. Each year there is an independent audit of revenues resulting
from TRI properties. Formulary expenses (fire and police expenses, and many more) are deducted
from the gross revenues to get a net revenue. The developer builds - as example - new fire stations,
having costs which goes into the amount of money the County is subject to pay back to TRI, at the
rate of 35 cents on the dollar. A debt is a debt when the County’s debt management firm says it’s a
debt. This has not been said about TRI - it is not on the debt management reports. There is an
agreement between the County and TRI that they build specific infrastructure - these items go back
into the items subject to payback at zero interest. This is revenue sharing and economic
development.

21




Ms. Barde: Regarding unapproved bonuses - please do not bury the report.

Jay Carmona, VC Highlands resident: Requested that an alcohol checkpoint be set up on the Grade
just outside of town.

Kris Thompson, TRI Project Manager: He has posted a link to the Capital Improvement Agreement
on the Highlands blog - the Agreement contains the specific terms. Second, the agreement is referred
to as a public-private partnership, and is has been a great partnership. Lastly, this meeting above all
others, points out the level of transparency.

Louise Pena, Rainbow Bend resident: The horses have split the community in Rainbow Bend. You
are either on one side or the other. If you tell Mr. Chris Miller that you are afraid that the horses are
going to get hurt, he will respond. She added that she is intrigued with how open the Commission
meetings are run.

Mr. Whitten: A follow up to clearing some of the banks (along the river) in Rainbow Bend. Not in
Lagarmisino - which is the Corps of Engineers area. There were issues with who was going to be
used to clear up the riverbanks - this may not get done this year, but please keep requesting this.

Ms. Pena: Will not give up. If we can dumpsters from Waste Management and homeowners to
volunteer - this may work.

Mr. Whitten: Congressman Amodei’s representative is available downstairs to listen to constituent
concerns after this meeting.

Sam Toll: Suggests that (the Commission) return to the letter of the NRS statutes that state public
comment shall occur at the beginning of every meeting and at the end.

Referring to taxes, fees, and licenses as profit - creates a disturbing tone. Government is not in the
business of making money.

31. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned by the call of the Chair at 1:57PM

Respectfully Submitted,
-~

\
By [ .
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer

22










4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTON: Approval of the Minutes for September 19, 2017.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Minutes for September 19, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTON: Approval of the Minutes for October 3, 2017.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Minutes for October 3, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

6. CONSENT AGENDA:
I For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $584,285.09 and accounts
payable claims in the amount of $2,738,451.98.
Il For possible action, authorize the County Manager to sell approximately 154 sections of 12
foot “K-Rail” on an “as is; where is” condition to Ames Construction in the amount of
$27,720.00.
I1I For possible action, approval of Resolution 17-476, a resolution to direct the County
Assessor to prepare a list of all the taxpayers on the secured roll in the County pursuant to
NRS 361.300(3).
IV For possible action, approval of Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2017-18 Secured
Tax Roll for Exemptions.
V  For possible action, approval of general business license first reading, applicant is Carol
Maley, owner of Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.
VI For possible action, approval of cancellation of the November 21st meeting.
VII For possible action, approval of Business License First Readings:
BARRY-WEHMILLER DESIGN GROUP - General/ 8020 Forsyth Blvd ~ Roseville, CA
WTD HOLDINGS, INC. - Contractor / 2255 Justin trail ~ Alpharetta, GA
INTERNATIONAL WORKERS GROUP - General / 26 Center Rd ~ LaGrange, GA
MOUNTAIN MUNCHIES VENDING CO. - General/ ~ Truckee, CA
MARLOWE HEINZ - General / 355 N “F” St. ~ Virginia City, NV
F—ED-EGA-R-DQ—GArN-D}DO—IE{axad-y-Ma-n—l=l—8—/—a—\.lif«gima-Gi-t-y—N3vL REMOVED
. MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC AUTOMATION - General/ 500 Corporate Woods Pkwy ~
Vernon Hills, CA
. CHROMALOX INC. - General/ 103 Gamma Dr ~ Pittsburgh, PA
BOART LONGYEAR CO. - Contractor/ 2455 South 3600 West ~ West Valley City, UT
CALLE TACOS - General/ 2880 Kieztke Ln ~ Reno, NV
TESLA ENERGY, DBA: SOLARCITY - General/ 3055 Clearview Way ~ SanMateo, CA
ADECCO USA, INC - General/ 10151 Deerwood Pk ~ Jacksonville, FL
. COBALT CONTRACTING LLC - General/ 5669 Courtney Plummer Rd ~ Oshkosh, WI

2

monNwp@

il il s:




PROTOZ

xg=<c-

<

Z.

ACME CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY - General/ 330 se Salmon St ~ Portland, OR
DIANDA CONSTRUCTION INC - Contractor/ 5485 Reno Corporate Dr ~ Reno, NV
THERMOLD INSULATION - Contractor/ 2995 White Pine Dr ~ Washoe Valley, NV
REYNOLDS BATTERY SVC, INC - General/ 1390 N. McDowell ~ Petaluma, CA
SAKANA, LLC - General/ 7655 Town Square Ln ~ Reno, NV

TECH PLUMBING & HEATING INC - Contractor/ 2601 Warm Springs Ct ~ Carson
City, NV

BDE ENGINEERING GMBH - General/ 10 Industrie Strasse ~ Germany

ISLAND ICE, LLC - General/ 6137 Torrington ~ Reno, NV

AMERICA RENTS - General/ 10450 S. Virginia St ~ Reno, NV

. INFERNO PIZZA TRAILER, LLC - General/ 5885 Wishbone Ct ~ Sun Valley, NV

TECHNICOAT MANAGEMENT, INC - Contractor/ 6879 Speedway Blvd ~ Las Vegas,
NV

SUMMIT LINE CONSTRUCTION, INC - Contractor/ 441 W. Power Line Rd ~ Heber
City, UT

TRUE NORTH SOLUTIONS LP - General/ 8822 S. Ridgeline Blvd ~ Highlands Ranch,
CcO

AA. ENCORE STEEL, INC - General/ 3420 S. 39th Ave ~ Phoenix, AZ

BB. BANGKOK CUISINE, LLC - General/ 55 Mt. Rose St ~ Reno, NV

CC. MIDWEST ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, INC - General/ W238 N. 1800 Rockwood ~
Waukesha, WI

DD. DEVIN GALLOWAY, DBA: IN THE ROUGH RECORDS - General/ 333 Territory Rd
~ Dayton, NV

EE. CHEF YORKEY, LLC. -General/ 881 Golfers Pass Rd. ~ Incline Village, NV

FF. TECHNOSOFT SERVICES, INC. - General/ 13400 Bishops Lane ~ Brookfield WI

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for November 7, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION (No Action-No Public Comment): Committee/Staff

Reports.

VRWPA representative, Valerie Lebel-Flatley:

Thank you the Commission and especially to Commissioner Gilman for support of the
Cooperative Agreement regarding the wild horse issues.

It would be helpful if all of the Commissioners could sign a letter rescinding the termination of
the Cooperative Agreement.

There is a rally tomorrow in Carson City.

The cattle guards in Lockwood need to be cleaned out before drainage issues occur. The
guards deter horses from entering the community.

Mr. Whitten: Acting Public Works Director Jason Wierzbecki is looking in to the issues with the

cattle guards.

Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin:

A blood drive is being held today in the parking lot.

3




e Grant funds of approximately $80,000 have been awarded to the County from State Historic
Preservation Office. Approximately $50,000 will go to St. Mary’s Art Center for structural and
drainage issues. The rest of the funds to the Cemetery Foundation for construction of the
Visitors Center porch.

Project Manager Mike Northan:

e A final set of drawings and scope of work have been received for the Virginia City Highlands
mailboxes. A couple of contractors have expressed interest in this project.

e A site visit was made to the area of the communication tower project. There is some potential
commercial interest that may put resources toward this project.

e A huge amount of insurance work took place over the last two weeks, including at the
Courthouse, the building department, and the District Attorney’s Office. Work will begin at
Station 71 this week.

e Thank you to all department heads and personnel for patience and understanding while the
work is being completed.

Wastewater Project Coordinator Mike Nevin:
e  Week 9 of this project has started, with approximately 345 days left for completion.
o Work continues on Washington Street and along Flowery.
e The intersection of Washington and L will be completely re-done. The V&T Railway tunnel
runs under this intersection causing some issues that have been addressed.
e Mr. Nevin presented statistics regarding equipment and products being used in this project.

Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne:

e Work continues with the Porter Group in Washington DC on the Lands Act. The Porter Group
is working with offices of Congressman Amodei, and Senators Heller and Cortez-Masto on
this issue. The Bill is being written along with BLM, who is working with them, and is looking
to be positive for the 2018 session of Congress with no real issues expected. There may be an
option to go through the initial Lands Act and create administrative clarification without going
through the Congressional process.

o Title 16 and 17 will be discussed at the Planning Commission meeting on November 16% with
action to be taken at that time.

o Carson River Water Subsconservancy received bids to conduct the Master Plan flood study in
Mark Twain.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
¢ The November 21st Commission meeting has been cancelled. The next regular meeting will be
held on December 5, 2017. '
e Introduced and welcomed Carol and Mark the new owners of the Virginia City RV park.
* Read the following statement from the Porter Group regarding the zip code issued into the
record:
“ As we’'ve mentioned in previous updates, language to create a single, unique ZIP code
for all of Storey County is currently in a bill - HR 756, the Postal Service Reform Act of
2017 - which has been unanimously approved by the House Oversight and
Government Reform Committee. Other Committees in the House also have jurisdiction
over parts of this bill and we are pushing them to complete their work on it as soon as
possible so it can be sent to the full House floor for a vote. Congressman Amodei has

4




also been helpful in pushing the other Committees to act on HR 756 yet, to date, no
timeline has been given to Porter Group or Congressman Amodei as to when we might
expect the bill to move next.

In addition to that, we are also pursuing other legislative vehicles that we might be able
to attach our ZIP Code language to. These include both appropriations bills and
authorization bills. It is our view that the more exposure we get for our ZIP code
language, the better chance we have to get it enacted into law. It is still our strong
opinion that we will get a new ZIP code for Storey County by the end of the 115t
Congress.”

The County will take responsibility for re-paving portions of roads where sewer work is being
done and is outside of the area being re-paved by the contractor.

Community members are encouraged to take up Mr. Nevin's offer to tour this (wastewater
improvement) project. Itis a very intrusive project, however in the last two weeks there have
only be a handful of complaints. The contractor, Ames Construction, is great to work with.
Updates are provided weekly on the County website or by calling 847-INFO.

In regards to tax relief, a suggestion was made to look into what is done in Alaska with
pipeline program and checks being sent to residents. There is a lot to be looked at but there
may be some potential in this type of program. It may take an act of the Legislature. The
District Attorney’s Office is working to find viable solutions (to tax relief).

County Manager Whitten on behalf of Jason Wierzbecki, Acting Public Works Director:

Mark Twain road project is just about complete.

An unpaved section of “O” Street has been paved.

The Community Center/Pool parking lot has been striped.

New street signs for all streets in Virginia City have been picked up. These signs denote
“north” and “south”.

Working with Mr. Nevin and the contractor in determining sewer and water locations for the
wastewater project.

Farr West Engineering has completed the survey of property around the mailboxes in the
Highlands.

Working on playground options for Lockwood Park.

8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action-No Public Comment)
Commissioner Gilman:

Reported on his recent trip to Washington DC to attend the Nevada Local Elected Officials White
House Convention. This is a new program being developed by the Administration looking for
“grass roots” input into decisions being made in Washington DC. This convention will be held
for each state. Discussions took place with the County’s lobbyist regarding the Lands Bill and
Zip Code issues. There was an opportunity to meet and speak with every major Federal
department. An invitation was extended to communicate with each of these Federal
departments on any issues, concerns, or requests that are important to the County.

He left Washington with an optimistic outlook that de-regulation is being looked at the Federal
level.




Vice Chairman McGuffey:
e The annual Homeowners Association meeting was held in the Highlands with new Board
members voted on. Information provided at the meeting by Chairman McBride and Mr.
Osborne was greatly appreciated.

9. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Update of the Devnet and Tyler software/hardware
installation.

James Deane, IT Director, gave an update on the installation of software for the Devnet and Tyler
systems which will replace the County’s mainframe.

e Flooring is in and power has been run in the new data center.

¢ The machines are built and ready to be plugged in.

¢ Working with both companies to consolidate server requirements.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher: The County is at about $200,000 in costs at this time and will get close
to the $400,000 shortly. The Assessor is approximately 35% into the building of software. The Clerk
and Recorders offices are just getting started.

Public Comment:
None

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Authorize the County Manager to move and/or dispose
of pending personal property located at 141 North C Street in Virginia City, NV (more commonly
known as the Fire Department Training Room/ Building) by the following sequential steps:

-Move the main portion of the existing building from its current location to a location to be
determined down at the County Jail property located at 911 Highway 341 in Virginia City for possible
use as County office workspace. Estimated cost of moving the building has been quoted at $18,000.
with the rear “tag” portion being demolished. Ball park estimated cost of placing on a foundation,
building additional office square footage and making the building compliant with the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990 are $82,000.00 for a maximum out-of-pocket cost not to exceed $100.000
for the shell building. Future use will create additional tenant improvement cost which will depend
on the ultimate tenant. Relocation location would be subject to approval by the Comstock Historic
District Commission. If this is unsuccessful, we would then;

-Take bids for the sale of the structure with the provision that if a bid is accepted, the County
will sever the structure from the foundation. Buyer will pay the cost of moving the structure subject
to requiring relocation within the Comstock Historic District conditioned upon approval by the
Comstock Historic District Commission. A recommended minimum bid would be $6,000 to cover the
cost of severing the building. If this is unsuccessful, we would then;

- Dispose of the personal property unit (building) thru a public bid process with the proviso that if
a bid is accepted, the County will sever the structure from the foundation requiring removal to a
location outside the Comstock Historic District conditioned upon approval by the Comstock Historic
District Commission. A recommended minimum bid would be $6,000 to cover the cost of severing
the building with the buyer paying for the actual move of the building. If this is unsuccessful, we
would then;

-Make application to the Comstock Historic District Commission to demolish the building.




County Manager Whitten presented this item. This building is next to the Fire Department and was
last used by the IT Department.
e The building has been used as a training facility, a command center, and such.
e Significant environmental issues have been discovered, including radon, mold, and asbestos
(intact).
e The County and the Comstock Historic District (CHD) would like to save the building.
¢ There are some insurance funds to help with remediation, if possible.
e A process has been determined by the Historic District and the County on how to handle this.
Options include:
1. Move the main portion to a foundation at the jail, with additions made to include ADA
compliant restrooms, etc. Estimated cost to “shell it out” is $100,000 - including moving,.
2. Take bids for sale. Buyer would pay cost of moving to a required location with the
Comstock Historic District.
3. Sell it and with approval from CHD, move to a location outside the District;
4. Apply to CHD to demolish the building.
e Priority is to seal and/or mitigate the site. There would be a bid process for this.
* Once mitigated, there are several potential ideas for use of the site - including living quarters
for Fire staff or additional town parking.

Public Comment:
Steve Ayer, Virginia City Resident: What is the cost for just remediating the problems? The
building has been handy for the Fire Department forever.

Mr. Whitten: It would probably be in same range. The problem is the lack of ADA compliance, other
“out of code” hazards, and so many other issues, that moving it makes sense. In the future, we will
discuss potential living quarters for the Fire Department. The old bank building is now being used as
a training center.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, move to
approve the County Manager to consider the relocation and/or disposal of the personal property
located at 141 North C Street in Virginia City by the outlined, sequential steps, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution No. 2017-477, acceptance of quitclaim deed of
dedication between EP Minerals, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, to Storey County, a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada, where EP Minerals, LLC is to dedicate, release, remiss,
and quitclaim to Storey County to have and hold for public use as a public street, including rights,
title, and interest in the real property located at McCarran, Storey County, Nevada and described in
Enclosure A hereto.

Austin Osborne said there is a portion of Electric Avenue - a road in TRI - that needs to have the land
underneath conveyed to Storey County. Currently, EP Minerals technically owns the land - which
would be deeded over to the County to be taken care of like any other road in the County. This will
apply to the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Development Agreement.




Mr. Whitten explained this action will enable the installation of a signal, paid for by NDOT, on
Electric Avenue. The County will be responsible for maintenance of the road and the signal light.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to
approve Resolution No. 2017-477, acceptance of quitclaim deed of dedication between EP Minerals,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, to Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada, where EP Minerals, LLC is to dedicate, release, remiss, and quitclaim to Storey County to
have and hold for public use as a public street, including rights, title, and interest in the real property
located at McCarran, Storey County, Nevada and described in Enclosure A hereto, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Voting System Agreement by and between
Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. and Storey County, NV for the purchase of a voting system, licenses
and related services with a total purchase price of $127,217.

County Clerk Vanessa Stephens: This contract is for replacement of the current voting system with
an up-graded system. Reimbursement of $59,000 will be paid by the State, plus additional for
training and the poll-book system. $100,000 was budgeted for this purchase.

Public Comment:
Steve Ayer: How is security provided?

Ms. Stephens: It will work like the current system, with a paper audit trail that is verified after each
election. It's the same system - just smaller and lighter.

Motion: I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to approve the Voting System Agreement by and
between Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. and Storey County, NV for the purchase of a voting system,
licenses and related services with a total purchase price of $127,217, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between the
Comstock Historic District Commission, Storey County and the Nevada State Preservation Office.

Community Outreach Director Cherie Nevin: The County is working with the Nevada State
Preservation Office to develop a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)governing the County’s
relationship with them under the Certified Local Government (CLG) program. This program
supports and strengthens local historic preservation programs. The County has been CLG status
based on its status as a National Historic Landmark. The MOU is beneficial if the County is
requested documentation of this relationship. This continues the course of business and how the
County interacts with the programs.




Public Comment:
None

Motion: As recommended by staff, | move to approve the Memorandum of Understanding between
the Comstock Historic District Commission, Storey County, and the Nevada State Historic
Preservation Office, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of revised County Manager’s job description and
discussion on enacting complimentary county policies on agreements and contracts.

Outside Counsel Robert Morris requested action on this item be continued to January 2, 2018, giving
the Board opportunity to discuss, implement changes, possibly establish a retirement incentive
program, and to take public comment. A current policy, number 042 - Contracts and Agreements,
along with other policies, interface with the County Manager position. The proposed job description
includes administering the preparation of board meeting agendas. The Board is requested to not
consider the current County Manager’s job performance as part of this item.

Proposed changes have been made to the existing policy 042. This policy states all contracts shall be
reviewed by the District Attorney, County Manager, and Comptroller - Mr. Morris is not sure this is
being done. This policy should be looked at to see if this is what the Board wants. Mr. Morris
reviewed other proposed changes to the policy and is looking to the Board for direction. The
requirements should be clear.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde, Storey County resident: Does a retirement policy currently exist?
Mr. Morris said he is not aware of any.

Ms. Barde: Does the policy on budgets contain compensation or is there a separate compensation
policy? Retirement incentive is a small piece of compensation. Is the County Manager allowed to
provide compensation above certain thresholds?

Mr. Morris replied that compensation is covered more by the contracts with employees. There are
some employees that are not covered by contracts.

Mr. Osborne: (The County) does have a policy on compensation and on retirement. The County is
on PERS and does not manage a retirement system like a private company. PERS manages the
retirement program. Everything being discussed is in a policy. Adjustments can be made to each of
these policies.

Mr. Whitten: Look at the job description for structure and then address the policies - which can be
adjusted. This process is being worked on to shore up the practices that need to be set as policy. The
Board is cautioned to be careful at how restrictive they get. The County is known for getting things
done - a lot of times there is opportunity to get something done and there is a timing element.




Sam Toll, Gold Hill resident: Appreciates the direction being taken in this process. Be mindful of
being more transparent. There is a responsibility to the taxpayers. Suggests the County Manager’s
authorization for spending funds should be zero, as the Comptroller is steps away. Future County
Managers may not have same approach to spending money as Mr. Whitten.

Mr. Gallagher: There is a lot of legal and financial liability in signing contracts. As example, on the
Tesla Agreement, the Deputy District Attorney informed Mr. Gallagher he had no signatory abilities.

Mr. Whitten: Looking forward, does not propose any changes in the language, but cautions the
Board and the public, that the County Manager and Comptroller will not always agree with each
other.

Chairman McBride: Agrees with Counsel Morris on a $10,000 threshold. If the limit was lower, the
Board could be hearing many requests at each meeting.

Mr. Whitten: Some contracts deserve Board action regardless of amount.

Mr. Morris: Another addition to the policy states: “nothing in this policy prohibits the County
Manager from having the Board review, vote on, and sign on contracts and change orders” - giving
the County Manager the ability to give the Board contracts that are less than $10,000 if he thinks it’s
appropriate. This policy does not prohibit the Board from requesting certain agreements, contracts,
change orders be approved by vote of the Board. There is a 10% percentage on change orders.

Mr. Whitten: The Board may want to look at having another workshop.

Mr. Loomis: Chapter 332 - Public Bidding and Purchasing for Local Governments - states the
authorized representative of the local government shall request bids. Mr. Loomis suggests this
should go into the policy or the proposed job description. Other department heads could be directed
to request bids.

Mr. Morris: Will make that change before the next meeting.

Commissioner Gilman: This is a very important document in making plans for a future position.
[t is appropriate to take time and focus on the detail.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: The County Manager runs and oversees the County and its department,
and does not want to “tie his hands behind his back”.

Motion: [ make a motion to continue [tem 14 to January 2, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

15. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading for Off-sale Liquor License. Applicant is
Carol Maley, owner of Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

10




Mr. Whitten stated that Sheriff Antinoro has recommended approval of this first reading for Off-Sale
Liquor License. The business is operating on a temporary license.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve first reading for Off-sale Liquor License for Virginia City RV
Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

17. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Continue to December 5, 2017, First Reading of:
Ordinance No. 17-279 amending Storey County Code Title 16 Subdivisions to adopt new codes for
land subdivisions, parcel maps, division of land into large parcels, surety requirements, land
readjustments, boundary line adjustments, and reversions to acreage; Ordinance No. 17.280
amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including chapters 17.03 Administrative Provisions,
17.10 Definitions, 17.12 General Provisions, 17.15 Public Zone, 17.24 Agriculture Zone, 17.28
Commercial Zone, 17.30 Commercial-Residential Zone, 17.32 Forestry Zone, 17.34 Light Industrial
Zone, 17.35 Heavy Industrial Zone, 17.40 Estate Zone, 17.44 Special Planning Review Zone; and 17.84
Signs and Billboards; Ordinance No. 17.278 amending Storey County Code 17.56 Planned Unit
Developments to revise the procedure for approval of planned unit developments; and approval of
Resolution No. 17-474 to the Board of County Commissioners with recommendation by the Planning
Commission adopting a design criteria and improvement manual setting forth certain development
and design standards and guidelines for residential and non-residential planned unit developments,
multi-family residential complexes, and other uses; Resolution No. 17-461 to the Board of County
Commissioners with recommendation by the Planning Commission determining and consolidating
all planning fees, including removing certain fees from code and placing them into resolution. In
addition to provisions of the NRS, any person may complete and return to the board or planning
commission a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and
zoning ordinance.

Mr. Osborne: This is first reading of Ordinances amending/up-dating Titles 16 and 17 and various
other matters dealing with fees and other planning issues. The Planning Commission has not yet
approved these amendments. Continuance of this item to December 5, 2017 is requested.

Public Comment;
None

Motion: Based on the recommendation from staff, I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to
continue the following to the December 5, 2017, meeting of the Board of Storey County
Commissioners, to be held at the Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, 26 South “B”
Street, Virginia City, Nevada, First Reading of: Ordinance No. 17-279 amending Storey County Code
Title 16 Subdivisions to adopt new codes for land subdivisions, parcel maps, division of land into
large parcels, surety requirements, land readjustments, boundary line adjustments, and reversions to

11




acreage; Ordinance No. 17.280 amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including chapters
17.03 Administrative Provisions, 17.10 Definitions, 17.12 General Provisions, 17.15 Public Zone, 17.24
Agriculture Zone, 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.30 Commercial-Residential Zone, 17.32 Forestry Zone,
17.34 Light Industrial Zone, 17.35 Heavy Industrial Zone, 17.40 Estate Zone, 17.44 Special Planning
Review Zone; and 17.84 Signs and Billboards; Ordinance No. 17.278 amending Storey County Code
17.56 Planned Unit Developments to revise the procedure for approval of planned unit
developments; and approval of Resolution No. 17-474 to the Board of County Commissioners with
recommendation by the Planning Commission adopting a design criteria and improvement manual
setting forth certain development and design standards and guidelines for residential and non-
residential planned unit developments, multi-family residential complexes, and other uses;
Resolution No. 17-461 to the Board of County Commissioners with recommendation by the Planning
Commission determining and consolidating all planning fees, including removing certain fees from
code and placing them into resolution. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person may
complete and return to the board or planning commission a statement supporting or opposing the
proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ATION: Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A1-2017 request by
the applicant Basalite Concrete Products, LLC,, to increase the annual mining capacity from the 1999
Storey County approved 200,000 tons per year to 500,000 tons per year. The project includes
identifying a new area of surface mining activities approximately 12 acres in size adjacent to existing
mining areas at the top of the mountain owned by the applicant, and approval of a future
watchman'’s dwelling. The property is located at 1150 N. Pinenut Road, Mark Twain area, Storey
County, Nevada, APNs 004-291-09, 13, 25, 45 and 47.

Planner Kathy Canfield presented this item. This is an amended Special Use Permit to the original
issued in 1999. The request is to increase capacity to 500,000 tons per year in increments. It will take
about 5 years to reach this number. The potential for a watchman’s dwelling as well as equipment
replacement needs are included in this request. This is a 20-year Special Use Permit. The conditions
in the permit were setup consistent with those of Comstock Mining. The Planning Commission
recommended approval.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Attended the Planning Commission and did not see anything detrimental
(with this request). Some residents did bring an issue of noise.

Public Comment:
Sam Toll, Gold Hill Resident: Does the increase in volume have a financial impact on the County?

Ms. Canfield: Generating more rock and quarry would have additional sales tax.

Jeremy Anthony, General Manager, Basalite Concrete Products: Would anticipate a positive
financial impact to the County.

Mr. Whitten: Potentially, no (impact on the County). Will follow up with the Comptroller’s Office.

12




Chair McBride: There is no known expense. Basalite is a long-established business, with no known
problems with the mine.

Mr. Anthony: The Plant Superintendent is looking into and currently addressing complaints of
noise.

Ms. Canfield read the findings of fact: The following Findings of Fact are evident with regard to the
requested special use permit when the recommended conditions of approval in Section 4,
Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

This approval is for an Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A1-2017 request by the
applicant Basalite Concrete Products, LLC., to increase the annual mining capacity from the
1999 Storey County approved 200,000 tons per year to 500,000 tons per year. The project
includes identifying a new area of surface mining activities approximately 12 acres in size
adjacent to existing mining areas at the top of the mountain owned by the applicant, and
approval of a future watchman’s dwelling. The property is located at 1150 N. Pinenut Road,
Mark Twain area, Storey County, Nevada, APN 004-291-09, 13, 25, 45 and 47.

The Amended Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
Mark Twain planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion supporting
this finding for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.E of this staff report and the
contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

The subject property is located within I2-Heavy Industrial and Forestry zoning in the Mark
Twain area of Storey County. The project is identified as Large Operation per Section 17.92 of
the Storey County Zoning Ordinance. A Special Use Permit is required for both the zoning
districts and the Large Operation use.

Granting of the Amended Special Use Permit, with the conditions of approval listed in Section
4 of this report, will not under the circumstances of the particular case adversely affect to a
material degree the health or safety of persons/property in the neighborhood of the subject
property and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to
property improvements in the neighborhood or area of the subject property. The project is
expected to meet the safety and health requirements for the subject area.

The Amended Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety
hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply with all federal,
state and county regulations.

The conditions under the Amended Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in the Storey County Zoning Ordinance Section 17.35 - 12 Heavy Industrial
Zone, Section 17.32 - F Forestry Zone, Section 17.92 - Mineral Exploration, Mining, and
Extraction and Section 17.03.150 Special Uses.

Certain mineral and surface property rights exist across the county and the Zoning Ordinance
serves to protect those rights. The Zoning Ordinance also recognizes and serves to abide by
the Mining Law of 1872 which provides mineral property owners the right to mine where the

13




property is a mine patent pursuant to Title 30 of the United States Code Section 29, or an
unpatented mining claim located pursuant to Section 23, as well as the right to milling and
ancillary uses pursuant to Section 42(a).

The county has a diversified economy including agriculture, commercial, industrial, tourism,
recreation, and mining. Permitted uses under these categories are found to be economically
and socially beneficial to the county, directly and indirectly, when they are appropriately
regulated so that they do not cause substantial adverse impacts to adjacent uses and are not
detrimental to the health, safety, and general welfare of citizens, property owners, scholars,
and businesses in the county.

The provisions of the Zoning Ordinance serve to address and mitigate potential adverse
impacts that mining and related activities may have on the natural and historic environment
and adjacent land uses (e.g, residential, commercial, tourism, etc...)as they now exist or as they
may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions and policies
of the county master plan, Title 17, and any other plan, program, map or ordinance adopted or
under consideration, pursuant to an official notice by the county or other governmental agency
having jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

This project is not located within the Virginia City National Historic Landmark, nor is it part of
the Comstock Historic Preservation Area identified in Chapter 17.92 of the Storey County
Code.

This mine has been in operation for approximately 71 years. The 2016 Storey County Master
Plan states the mine should be a continued use and Storey County should protect the long-
term well-being of the quarry mine.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the
Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, move to approve Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A1-2017, a
request by Basalite Concrete Products, LLC, to increase the annual mining capacity from 1999 Storey
County approved 200,000 tons per year to 500,000 tons per year. The project includes identifying a
new area of surface mining activities approximately 12 acres in size adjacent to existing mining areas
at the top of the mountain owned by the applicant, and approval of a future watchman’s dwelling.
The property is located at 1150 N. Pinenut Road, Mark Twain area, Storey County, Nevada, APN 004-
291-09, 13, 25, 45 and 47, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Business License Second Readings:
A. ATLAS CONSULTING GROUP,LLC - General / 71 W Main St. ~ Freehold, NJ

B. FULCRUM, LLC-General / 1105 Williamsburg Dr. ~ Mobile, AL

C. MOTAN, INC. - General / 320 N Acorn Street ~ Plainwell, MI

D. RENO CARSON MESSENGER SERVICE. - General/ 185 Martin St. ~ Reno, NV

E. TSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. - General / 8800 Global Way ~ W. Chester, OH

F. VWR INTERNATIONAL, LLC General / 738 Space Island Rd. ~ Sparks, NV

G. ZEPHYR COMMUNICATIONS OF NV - General / 2187 Main Street ~ Gold Hill, NV

14




H. SISSYS BBQ & MORE, DBA - General/ 1378 S. Spruce ~ Tulare, CA
I. REBECCAS WILD KITCHEN, LLC. - General/ 257 Artesia Rd. ~ Wellington, NV
J. RENO TAHOE CATERING COMPANY - General/ 313 Flint St ~ Reno, NV

Mr. Whitten presented this item on behalf of Community Development, requesting all items A.
through J. be approved.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve Items A. through J., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Mr. Whitten: Has been advised that it is not necessary to read all names of approved Second
Readings for business licenses. Unless the Board requests, this will not be done in the future.

21. PUBLIC COMMENT (No action)
NicoleBarde, Storey County Resident: Asked why the “pipeline bond” did not pass?

Mr. Whitten: What he has heard is that the approach using a “tax increment area” is on life-support.
The shortage of time to get this through the Special Session created a lot of vagaries in the bill,
including the nature of a tax increment area and ways to fund parts of this project. Another
approach, or a combination, is being sought. From the County’s perspective, this deals with an ultra
conservative set of restrictions on bonding capacities and debt service coverage. There is another
governing restriction - a 15% rule - that will not let it go, stating not to rely on an increment area for
more than 15%. This is not enough to meet the criteria. Other ideas are being looked at. Legislative
intent is being debated. To change the role to the State being responsible and take the County out of
first position would require new legislation.

Commissioner Gilman: It's premature to explore what vehicle may be used - there are a number of
options.

Ms. Barde: Inregards to the tax rebate discussion, understands there is a regional approach that will
take into account all revenue and expenses in Northern Nevada associated with economic growth

and then re-apportion it back out.

Mr. Whitten: This comes up in every economic cycle. The County is watching and is aware there is
all kinds of “flack” out there right now. This not just a regional issue, but also a “turf”, issue.

Ms. Barde: Asked that the Commission just keep everyone informed.

Commissioner Gilman: (The County) has had incredible success. All parties surrounding the County
would like a piece of that action - this will be an on-going issue.

15




Kris Thompson, TRI Project Manager: On the pipeline: the bond has not yet been heard by the
Board with jurisdiction. All discussions are pre-hearing, this is negotiation. It is typical in floating
public bonds that the people applying for the bonds have to satisfy those paying it back - in this case
would be some of the businesses or all of TRI. The local government authority, in this case Storey
County - the State, the Department of Taxation, and the bond counsel and investment advisors have
to be satisfied. Counsel wanted to take a more conservative approach and brought in concepts from
other laws and types of bonds - this is being worked on now. There are a number of ways to still go
forward and they are hopeful.

Mr. Thompson reviewed revenues coming into the County before and after the beginning of TRI,
which almost quadrupled the County budget.

Sam Toll, Gold Hill Resident: Suggested the people who will need the water that will flow through
the pipeline are the ones who should finance the $35 million.

Mr. Toll commented that his vision of a workshop is sitting down around a table and “hashing out”
ideas. When it is an issue that will affect County government and the public, it may be a good idea to
have an actual workshop after hours.

Mr. Toll understands that Fire Marshal duties have been transferred to Community Development
from the Fire Protection District, reflecting a shift of budget of $900,000 from Fire District to
Community Development. Is this accurate? If so, what’s happened to the Fire District budget?

Mr. Whitten: Not much - it will not be anywhere near those numbers ($900,000). Contracted out
through an interlocal agreement rather than transferred, is a more accurate statement. The plan is to
have those duties performed by Community Development. In the past few years, funding support
has been provided from the General Fund to the Fire District for to help out with some of that work.

Mr. Toll: The Fire District isn't under budget and public safety isn’t being affected? Are employees
transferred from the Fire District to Community Development still County employees?

Mr. Whitten: Services are not being risked. There was a question whether or not Fire District
personnel are “true” County employees - the persons transferred to Community Development are
County employees.

22. ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 12:50 PM

Respectfully submitted,

oy a0 AR h e ncd

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer

16




















































functions can be performed without the presence of a supervisor, adhering to established work hours
may not be an essential function. Therefore, reasonable accommodations to the contrary may be
necessary.

2. A “disability-related inquiry” is a question (or series of questions) likely to elicit
information about a disability. Generally, disability-related inquiries are not allowed
during the hiring process. Examples of disability-related inquiries not permitted
include:

1. Asking whether the employee/applicant currently has or has ever had a disability,
how s/he became disabled, or inquiring about the nature or severity of an
employee’s/applicant’s disability;

2. Asking an employee/applicant a broad question about his/her impairments that is likely to
elicit information about a disability;

3. Asking an employee/applicant whether s/he is currently taking any prescription drugs or
medication; and

4. Asking about an employee’s/applicant’s genetic information.

Other examples of prohibited disability-related questions include, but are not limited to, asking about
an  employee’s/applicant’s  prior  workers’ compensation history, and asking an
employee’s/applicant’s coworker, family member, doctor, or other person about the
employee’s/applicant’s disability.

Questions that are not likely to elicit information about a disability are not prohibited under the
ADA. These types of inquiries include asking employees/applicants about their general well-being,
whether they can perform the essential job functions, whether they currently use illegal drugs. The
employer may also ask an employee, but not a job applicant, about non-disability-related
impairments such as how s/he broke his/her arm.

3. A “medical examination” is a procedure or test usually given by a health care
professional or in a medical setting that seeks information about an individual’s
physical or mental impairments or health. Medical examinations include, but are not

limited to:

o Vision tests conducted and analyzed by an ophthalmologist or optometrist;
blood, urine, and breath analyses to check for alcohol use;

o Blood pressure screening and cholesterol testing; nerve conduction tests;

o Range-of-motion tests that measure muscle strength and motor function;

° Pulmonary function tests;

° Psychological tests designed to identify a mental disorder or impairment;
and

. Diagnostic procedures such as x-rays, CAT scans, and MRIs.

Procedures and tests that employers may require that are generally not considered
medical examinations include:

. Blood and urine tests to determine the current illegal use of drugs;
. Physical agility and physical fitness tests;
° Tests that evaluate an employee’s/applicant’s ability to read labels or

distinguish objects as part of a demonstration of the ability to perform
actual job functions.

4. Under the ADA, an “employee” is an individual employed by an employer. Generally,
an individual is an employee if the employer controls the means and manner of his/her
work performance. Where more than one entity controls the means and manner of how
an individual’s work is done, the individual may be an employee of each entity.

Page 17 of 50





































































AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: __ PAW

SUBJECT: Outside Employment

I

Policy

In order to maintain a work force that is fit and available to provide proper services and
carry out functions of the employer, employees are prohibited from engaging in outside
employment which presents real or potential conflict with or negatively impacts their
employment with the employer.

Conflicting Employment
Outside employment may be classified as in conflict with the employer’s interests if it:

1. Interferes with or negatively impacts the employce’s ability to perform his/her
assigned job.

2. Prevents the employee’s availability for work beyond normal working hours,
such as emergencies or peak work periods, when such availability is a regular
part of the employee’s job.

3. Is conducted during the employee’s work hours.

4. Requires the services of other employees during their normally scheduled work
hours.

5. Makes use of the employer’s telephones, computers, supplies, or any other
resources, facilities, or equipment.

6. Is represented as an activity of the employer or an activity endorsed, sanctioned,
or recommended by the employer.

7. Takes advantage of the employee’s employment with the employer, except to
the extent that the work with the employer may demonstrate expertise or
qualification to perform the outside work.

8. Requires the employee to schedule time off at specific times that could disrupt
the operation of the employer.

9. Involves employment with a firm that has contracts or does business with the
employer. Exceptions to this policy have been identified in policy 212, Code of
Ethical Standards.

Procedure

. Each employee will determine whether s/he believes the proposed outside employment

may conflict with his’/her employment with the employer.

. An employee must notify his/her Supervisor-orDept—Head supervisor or department head

of the outside employment if such outside employment may be reasonably perceived to be
in conflict with his/her employment, or if the employee is unsure about a perceived
conflict.

. In order to determine if there is a conflict with the employee’s duties, the supervisor or

manager may request information, such as:

. The outside employer’s name;
Page 40 of 50




































TYNIA
(4

abeq

HIINSVIIL

JFTTOALAWOD
YINOISSIWWCD YEINOISSIWWOD NYWAIVHD
:6I8UOTESTWWOD JO pIeog Ajuno) A3z03s aul Aq pasozddy
LS°298°¢€ 1 pasIngsTa
00" 1I030NpaQ 03 I9jsuell Ias()
00" 18112 deag 1Ta uo piazx spaa 2alkordum
[ :3tsodeg 30911Q @vkordug
0L EBE’E :8)d8yy askorduz
00~ EX09YD I030oNpaa
L8 BLY 1841d9 I0J IIFsuerl Iasn
Junowy asfead # p=aa
/# dug
1T :8dnoxp TTOIAR4
LT/TE€/0T :®83ed pua-porIiad LT/T0/TT :33ed Xoauyd Tetoads :adAy Troxkeg

z9381bay oayp
W3LSXS TIO¥AWd AINNOD

Te3oL

Te3joL
1Rl0L
Tel0L
Te30L
TR30L

Te3oL

# aa
/A23yD

ZZ:9¥:ST LI/TO/TIT :uny
AZIOLS WOTS0ud :3day



JIANSVHIL

JITTOALIWOD

YINOISSIWWOD HYANOISSTIWWOD NYWAIYHD

—_——ee

iSIJUOTSSTWWOD JO pieodg AIuno) Aaziolg ay3z Aq pascxddy

v6°'vLE'6 pasINgsSTa Te3aol
L9°S0S'T iI030MpaQg 03 I8IBUBRIL IISN [RIOL
00" 18174 dea 11a uo paszx spaa ssAorduz Telor
00" :31sods@ 309x11Q 3akoTdwi Tejol
6L°T99°9 18303y aakorduy Tezor
00" 18303YyD z030npag Teljol
8P LOB'T $841L4d I03J 1ajsuex] I3s( TeIOL
unowy s3dea # paa@ 4 aa

/¥ dug  /yoeyd

¥ :sdnoin T1101AR4
LT/6Z/0T :93BQ pPUD-POTIag LT/Z0/1IT :33ed Xdayd Teroads :addl [10z4eg

TYNT S a93stboy oaud TSPLO*ST LT/Z0/TIT :uny
4 abeq WALSAS TT0¥A¥Yd ALNNOD AZ¥OLS Y0TS0¥d :aday



YTANSVIAL

YITICULINWCD

HINOTISSIWWCD YANOISSIWWOD NYWAIVHD

{SIJUOCTSSTUWOD JO pieod Ajuno) A31038 8yl Aq paasoixddy

BZ TTIT 'WvLY ipasIngeTd Telcl
YL WLB'E 11030Upag 03 J2ISURL] ISS) TEIOL
sz ouz’st 18114 deg I1Q uO PISIX Spaa 2afordmy TejoL
06°8BBY“Z8Z :31sodeq 302x7qg 93AoTdwy TE3OL
88°668 :8)03uyD @2dordug TRIO0L
SS°BEL'ZIT i 8)D3YD Iojonpag [e3loL
96°6€£8°8S i8d14% 107 ISIJSUBRIL IIJIBN TRIOL
Junouy 93ded # paa # aa

/% dwz /308y

6 8 L 9 S§ % £ Z 1 -:sdnoxp troxkeg
LT/6Z/0T :33BQ pus-poTIag LT/€0/1T :33eq 09uwd zernbay :adiy Troaked

TYNTI 238168y yoay) L0*80:ST LTI/TO/TT :uny
S abeg WELSAS TTIONAVA ALNNOD AHNOLS VOTS0Nd :3day



FTANSYIIL

YITTOELINOD

YINOISSIWWOD YINOISSTWNOD NVYHEIVHD

{SIUOTSSTWWOD) JO pieog Ajuno) Aa103s 3yl Aq paroxddy

OV 6SC'06¢€ :pasIngstg [ej0L
Z6'0ET’E 11090Npag 03 Iajsuell I35[) [e30L
ST L69 ST 9113 dag Xt uO padIX Spag IdAoTduz TeloL
$L°'868°'L8Z :3Tsodag 203xTq a2AoTdwm Te3OL
06'0TS‘2 :sx00yD @akoTduz TeRjIOL
S8°896 ‘'¥T 1 8)29yD I030MpaQg TeIOL
vL ZS0°99 $8dLd¥ 103 X3ISueIil I9SN TeIOL
Junowy ssked # paa # aa

/# duz  /302ud

6 8 L 9 S ¥ € ¢ 1 :sdnoip 110aked
LT/ZT/TT :33BQ PU3-POTIdg LT/LT/TIT :93eQ X03uD xenbay :adAl TToxhed

AYUNINITIIG x93sTbay oayd SZIES:IST LI/ST/TT :uny
S abeq WILSAS TIOJYAVYd ALNNOD AFHOLS Y0TS0¥d :3day



TYNIZ
4

abeg

FEANSYIIL

JITTOALANWOD

HINOISSINNOD YINOISSIWWOD NYWAIVHD

LT/ez/1t

:$I3UOTSSTWWOD JO pieod Ajuno) Aazels syl Aq paasocaddy

80°82S'T ipasangsIa TeloL
00" 1I030MpPaQ 03 IX9ISUBIL IBS[ TRIOL
00" :97td dag XTQ uo pIaiX spad 93kordudm TRIOL
00" :q3tsodeq 10917@ 33kordum tejor
o0 TeE’T :§303yp @ador1dwzm TeloL
00" isy08Y) 103d0paq [e1icl
80°LET 18414"% IOF I3ISuell Ias) TeIOL
Junowy sakea # pag # aa
/# dua  /3o3yd
:sdnoxn Tr10xAeg
f33ed pus-poTIsd LT/€2Z/TIT :93BQ XO3YD TeI0ads :adil TroxAeg
ae3stbey oayd GZ:6EFST LT/ZZ/TT :uny
WELSAS TI0HAYd AINNOD ATJOLS v0T1S0¥a :adex



VINOISSTIWWOD

q4Lva NOTLVZIYOHLAVY ONVY MITAIN IO LNIWIDATTMONIOY

ZE'TIBL'9LS TYIOL SMDIEHD QHdAl

LT/%T/TT 2ZE€°18L'ILS
L0-Z6 WaSN INITYIMES Z4# OF¥ Xvd ZETBL'9LS

NOILdI¥DSEd #EOIOANI qIVa TYIOL LNNOWY
ADFHD  ¥DFHD
JYILSTOIA SMOIHD TAJAL
T abeg AINNOD AZ¥OLS

NOILONULSNOD SHEWY 0S506
812V 8T0C

IWYN JOONIA #QUOOTN NVIX WIGWON
TYDSIS ADHHD

LT/¥T/TIT : ®3eq uny

06€THEd :ON 3a0day






T

vZ 681

00-"82¢

¥9° %
Q0" 08¥%’¢
00" 0ST

90°I08°ST

00°0ST
CS°STT
00"0sz’1
€879
00°00T"T

09°€€2'T

98" 1€

Lo ' v6z

06°ST

00°'00L

CO 6ET
4 4

LY TET

TYLOL
ADFHO

abed

P8 E6TE
PZ 68T

00°8T
00°0t2

9%
00°0SY'S
00°0ST
€5°006 'L
€5°006°L
00 0ST
06°STT
00°0SZ’'T
€8°9
00°CO0T'T
9E LLY

9€°559
88°00T

98" 1€

YL ve
Lk 4
vLT YL
25701
85° 8T
LL s
08" €T
25" 01
8581
LL'g
08°ET

06°ST

oorooe
00°00S

00°6€T
S6°2%
BB €0T
65°LZ

LINOOWY

SLLTB
L9928

BL9C8
8LI9Z8

99928
$9928
BLLZ8

LoLes
LoLzs

T8LZE
oeLzs
svLze
£€LZ8
6328
6beLz8
6¥LZ8
6vLCe
0vLZ8
JoLze
90LZs8
90LZ8
€69¢28
€698
£6928
£6928
£6928
£6928
£6928
£692Z8
vggzs

8eLZe
8ELZS

T1LZ8
LvLze
Z69ce
76928

#SNWAL

L1/22/11
L1/22/11

Lr/ze/t
LI/ze/1t

Lr/ee/tt
Lr/ee/It
Lt/ze/11

Lr/ee/tt
LT/Z2/T1

LT/T2/11
LT/22/11
LT/TT/1t
L1/zz/11
Lt/ze/Tt
LT/22/11
Lt/ee/Tt
LT/TE/T1
Lt/ze/T1
LT/ze/
Lr/zz/1t
Lr/zz/1
LT/2e/11
LI/TT/11
Lr/ze/tt
LT/z2/11
Lr/ze/11
LI/Te/1t
LT/eT/Ta
LT/ZZ/T1
LT/Ze/T1

L1/22/11
LT/Te/11

Lr/ze/n
Lr/zT/TT
Lt/ze/1t

LT/zz/1T

COA-{e}

TO000-92ZELITCYE

QINTd SNVIL 86SS9AAUIL

LTIO0Z ST/TT-2/7TT
aNnaay

SANVL FTIW IAIS
WEIQ ¥4 WYXE SNYId

LIdZdnN ALITIIN
LIddn ALITILIN

WIIQ ¥3d SNYId FJId
SIOATIALEVYO
YOLVNIELIV -9€ aA¥YNOS
HONZNEIINODITIL
SITTddNS SWE
TYOISAHd Z¥IH MEN 614
TUYDISAHd E¥IH MEN 01D
SANIDOVA VA

TIATIL d03 SYD

dOHS

HD

dOHS

AYANOYT vL LS
AYANOVT SL LS
AYANONYT ZL LS
A¥ANQNT TL LS
A¥ANAYT YL LIS
A¥ANOVT SL 1S
A4ANNYT ZL 1S
A¥ANAYT TL 1S

X SAD0T WWD

AT VST
JAI¥EHS SANSSI VHD

SEDFIIJHINON
HO¥O0L O¥OIW - dOHS
SIITddNS SWA

SEITddNS SWa

NOILAI¥DSHd HDIOANI

LT/22Z/11 ¥ALSIDAY ADIHD

ALNNOD AHYOLS

dTHSVENIYYA ODTIHD

ONI ¥HATSA¥HD dHOACA NOSIYD

SIMIT ILOJS 'TIINANG
WYd 3 MENANY 'IIId¥n9
I TYIDVEWWOD ¥IAAD0T IN1d

4 YIDIN¥LVA ‘ATINVIE

OTT INIOdXIVIH

NILIVW ‘OU3AEZY

ONI ‘dSIdd¥EINT NOXY

ONI ‘DTEIDETE YON¥L *® 01OV
IA¥AS FONHATINODETHL LRIV

TYNOTLYNYILNI MOVAY

SSEANTTIM ANV HLIVIH DIV

aTvdd9 ‘' OJYONILNY

ONI 00S7TY

ONI D07 ENIdTY

QLT ‘EFIZNEXOVA ‘NOSITIV
ONI Odd0DTV

JEZTHOHLNAV SANIIEAVYD NYTIV

ONI NON SVOY¥IV
JOANIA

Lt/te/Tt
STETEd

ZLc06

TLS086

0LS06
69506
89506

L9506

99506
S9506
¥9506
€9506
€9s06

19506

08506

655086

85506

LSS506

95506
S5506

»5S06

€5506

YTEWNN

ADFHO
33eQ uny
OoN 3xcday



4

L6 EDT
€E0°2Z8

S9°6EY

00°0ST

88°8¢2

00°0ST

S6°09L

SS'€EBY

86 °8SL'Y

€L7LTT

0% LS

6v°2C6

TYLOL
ADEHD

abeg

3v° 901t
¥ 0V
LO*SLT
00°S6
L vy
66° v
[ 28 4
€1°98
68°69
68°ST
TS*98€E
SeTeLT
9E°6S
-E8° 11
-1€°29
LY PP
SETLT

LEEOT
€0°¢8

96°¥S
96 %S
96°vs
26°60T
S6°9S
06°60T

00°0ST

eg- 28
00°9ST

00" PPT
00" 9
S6°09¢L

PETPIE
12 69¢E

¥9'LYL
0S°5¢2
9T 0VS'T
¥ PYL’C
¥0-TL

ELTLTT

LT %9
-LL" 3
9% ST
LT B9E
20" 08

LNOOWY

69928
69928
69928
63928
69928
69928
69928
69928
69928
69928
€9928
69928
69928
69928
69928
€9928
€99¢8

80LZ8
s9LZs8

6£LZ8
6ELZ8
69LC8
60LzZe
S69¢8
se9ze

6LLE8

IELze
csLee

6L928
6L9Z8

€LLee

vLoze
€L92e

89928
89928
899¢Z8
899¢8
89928

ETLEB

soLze
soLze

LsLz8
LSLZ8
LSLZ8

H#SNWAL

Lt/ee/1t
LT/2e/1t
Lt/zz/1T
LT/zT/TT
LT/2T/TT
LT/22/TT
Lt/zZ /1T
Lt/ze/1t
Lt/ze/1T
Lt/2ze/1t
Lt/ze/1t
Lr/zZ/1T
Lr/Te/1T
LT/2T/1T
Lt/ze/1t
Lt/ze/1t
Li/eze/1t

L1jze/1t
Li/ee/1T

Lr/zz/11
Lt/22/1Y
L1/ze/Tl
Lr/ee/1t
Lt/ez/Tt
Lr/ze/1t

LT/22/11

Lr/ze/1t
Lr/ze/1t

Lr/ze/it
Lr/zz/1it

Lr/ezez/1t

Lr/zz/1t
Lr/ze/1t

Lt/zz/it
Lt/ez/tt
Lt/zz/1t
L1/2T/1T
LT/zZz/T1

LT/2T/1T

LT/22/1T
LT/2Z/1T

LT/zz/IT
LT/2Z/11
Lt/zZ/TT

31vd

# 0/d

SLN ANELLVE TI8TS¥A
AATYA €T2290S

SEILTIA 8Y669FUTA
JYEJITVO LS6€9Md

dOSNIS B8Y669¥4

LNIW €d9Y0

YILTIS IV -SAYOA

0%90 LSEE9Md

JOSNES ISNVHXE -T1T1959¥d
¥OSNIS E£TZZ90S
SAIYILIVE €E€YTSHEd
dINTd SNYY¥L L6SS9¥d
LTHE LTLM FEIA

IXS9 TIO SZ09%0S

N¥d TIO SZ0S9 0S

SLTEE A €PTISHII

YAVdES JILYM TINS €PTISVES

Z X SINV4
HONVY I¥dd 008 NOISINJTEL

TIYL EDIA¥NES ¥HLUYM
d0I440 ZI€ HOIA¥IS HELYM

SYIATOOD ¥ALWM HED
INTIVW ¥ILTIL HILYM TL IS
LINIVW ¥IITIS ABTIVM 2L IS

WAId ¥YEd WV¥XZ SNYId

JdIHD
30ILON DOITHEAd

NOQ T$ X SETLLOE »%T
NOd T$ X SETLIOE 9

LT0Z IDO INWY¥D dOLS NSA

CISUNESIA ILNIWHSINYYD
JESUNESIA LNIWHSINYYO

STAIL -0LDE
SEVIL -5209908
SHAIL -SLS990S
SAYIL -B6SS9¥d

HYILNED JOINES

SHOEIdHLAOW

WILSAS TT0¥ TTEMOL
LITIFD

AZA WWOD B896ZTT196L6 ANI
Md TLP6ZTTIS96L6 ANI
1I 86509096L6 ANI

NOILAI¥OS3d FADIOANI

LT/2TT/TT ¥ALSIDAY MNDFHD

ALINAQOD AZAOLS

ONI A1ddNS OLNV LLOITIA
arAva ‘auna

NOILWYO&IOD S€a HSIA

ONI ¥SN SHOIVA

ADWIL ‘STX¥ND

{JA) ZFTOINO¥HD MDOLSWOD

LYANNOS AAELEAWID MO0LSWOD

ONI LSEHD ALINNWWOD

AZN J0 IDIAYES NOILOETTOD

ONI Z¥IL DRWO

d¥00 A1ddNS SdIHD

ATddNS AVVLINYS TVALNHED

YOANIA

LI/1T/IT
STETEd

¥8506
€8506

28506

18506

08506

6L506

8LS06

LLSDE

9LS0E

SLS06

vLS06

£LSDE

YHENAN
ADIHD

@3eg uny

ON 3x0day



0073966°1

6" 11
00°0€T
00" sz

60°8TT

80°S6L'T

L30T
00°009°€
0s-¢e
80°810°T
£EE€°803
00°S9
00°<0¥%
18°vZ9
ST ETT
SZ'V8T'T

€6°1T8

00'9LT
8s'8
€9°'€0E’2Z6
¥S° 102
T8°LZ9'T

IYLOL
MDFHO

[ abegd

0S'es8t
OT'EE€T'T
¥8°¢

00" 09t
9S80T
b6 11

00 0€ET
00°'sz
65°1¢€

6L ES
=65 TLT
B8S°VEE
-8L° Ll
[V 44
65°E67'T
T LLT
BE PZT
L9'0tz
00°009°€
0s-2s
80°8TO'T
£€°809
0D S9
00°S0Y
T8 929
ST ETT
ST ¥8T‘T

6L°T9S
v1°0S2

00°9LT
8578
€9°€0€°26
»S 102
99°8LE

LNONOWY

8e9ce
869z8
865286
86928
B63SZ8
zeLze
L63Z8
oocezs
piLZE
p1LZE
PILZE
viLcs
pILZS
Y1iLZ8
SsLes
ssLes
ssLze
LeLes
TTLZ8
TSsLzs
zL9ze
€SLeT8
0tTLZE
cLLZ8
9vLES
L9z8
0L9Z8

0gLCe
96928

6zZLz8
zoLes
vELZE
zoLes
€99¢8

#SNYEL

LT/22/11
LT/22/11
Li/ee/Tt
LT/22/11
L1/22/11
LT/22/1t
Lt/zz/Tt
L1/22/11
LT/22/11
LT/zZ/11
LT/Z2/T1
LT/Te/Tt
Lt/zz/tt
Lr/zz/tt
LI/TT/11
LT/22/11
Lt/z2/1
Lr/ze/tt
LT/Z2/T1
LT/TT/T1
LT/Z2/11
Lr/ze/Tt
LT/22Z/11
Lr/zz/1t
LT/2Z/11
Lr/ze/tt
LT/ze/Tt

LT/TT/T1
Lt/ze/tT

LI/22/1T
L1/2e/11
Lt/zz/1t
Lr/zz/1t
Lt/ee/1t

JIVa

SAITd4NS SWH

S3ITdanNs SWE

SEITd4ANS SWa

SEITddNS SW3

SEITddNS SWE

SADIA

AONVYNILNIVHW LNZWdINOT
MATIAZY LAYHD TVOIAEW WO
AL AV -ZLLM

INIOL N ZL-1IM

LIX 6tzeoud

JYEAYA ATV -6€£229¥4
LIQEYD dOHS

AYYE JIV -TLONE
INIZWIINOE 40Ld¥T ANVEA L
YENOL YITTOILAWOD

JD0LS LI

LY /8OLS W14 AZVOIS/L¥TIN
LOT ONIXAVd LS NOSJYD

€ NOIIVLS H¥Id LINJIEINI
2T00 "d savod

INI¥ ¥EMOL € MY2d JNOd
ATIIIIYND -OSMT

S¥S ® S¥YH 6

ONIHOLV¥E JSIW

SHITddNS TYIOLINYL

SIA BET DIY 08¢

Q3 TI0L 00T
ANYd0¥d EDONEAISIY 2ZL LS

IDINEIS
SAIYILIVE a

L0-T6 YASN FOVIdTA

SEIYELLIVE

NOILAI¥DSHa FDIOANI

LT/22/1T ¥IALSIDIA XDIHD
ALNNOD AT¥OLS

OTT SINIAZ NI AIndIT

ONI ISISSV-3JIT
NI SEOIAMES ENIT FOVNONWT
SNOS ¥ SII¥ND N 1

00 ® YATHOW NHOL

OT11 4dr

OTT JFOINOS TLI

NI LOW OJNI NIVINNOW NOYI
TYES A¥AINTS NIVINQOWIILNI
ONI ONYEQ¥O¥d 10dS IOH
al1 ‘IVH

OTT SINFWISIANI 41D

S3d ¥ ELIWYAL NISYH LVEdD
WOL ‘KAFESNYHD

0D NOILONAYLSNOD FLINVIED
YFAONIVAED

WNETOYLId I3S/ILYD NIATOD

dT SYOTTIRIIL

071 'SNOILVDINAWWOD D&
ANYAHOD TUNZLSVSE
ONIZHENIONT LSEM JyaYA

NIJ TYIDYIWHOD INVHUIAZ

YOANZA

LT/1z/1t

90906

S0906
¥0906
€03506

20906

10906

00306
66506
86506
LESO06
96506
S6S06
V6506
£6506
26506
T6S06

06506

68506
88506
LB8S06
98506
S8S06
YEEWNN

ADEHD
a3eq uny

STETHd ON 31xoday



ONI SIM0g AUNLIA £2906

00°08 00°08 ¥8928  LT/2ZZ/1T LI0Z ST/TT1-Z/1T
d OTIONY ‘ININLZEd z2906
09°€E9 09°€E9 £€8928  LT/2Z/TT LT0Z OT/2T-€T/1T
071 VIAIW INO¥ALNO 12906
00°059°T 00°0S9°T oLLz8  Lt/2TT/1T LT0Z TE€ 1D0 - 1 14dS
NYOP ‘ANJ0HgS0 02906
¥0°2Z1 ¥0°2T 6TL28  LT/TT/IT aNnazE 1I1s0dIa
WOINOY¥EA ‘NI¥O 61906
€T°L22 [ A 44 LELZB  LT/ZZ/T1 301240 ¥¥ITO
07T '10dd3d VYLV IALISIIO 81906
S0°9 50°9 €9L2Z8 LT/22/1T
ONI 10d3d ¥FDIZI0 L1906
oL LOY¥ 68° 9% 8TLZ8  LT/ZZ/1T HOSNIS 8Y669 AMII
66°9T RILZB  LT/ZZ/TT INSD v62%5 ONINNWYI
EL"BYT 8TLZ8 wr/zz/tt FOUVHD FYOD TT9S9TVUIA
9L ¥ 8TLZ8  LT/2ZZ/11T L¥SD Savod
66°%C 8TLZ8  LT/ZZ/1T NOO IVEH -dOHS
66792 8TLzZ8  LT/2ZZ/11 ¥IOVES €VD -SAYOA
LE'0Z 8TLee  L1/TT/IT aN719 'SIIE XdH dOHS
86°6TT 8TILEZ8  LI/ZZ/1T SHOSNES TT959¥d
SISTYA¥AINE OLOY ATTIIZN.O 91906
SLT9TT SL9TT 8vLzg  L1/zZ/1T VILIVAY -ZLIM
DIAYNES VALIWOAIEES VAVAEN ST906
SE"ST9°CT SL V0B’C t9Lz8  Lt/TT/TI T0-ZETSO-LI-EPZd WIWID
00°000°S T9LZ8  LI/ZZ/TT TI¥ ¥04 NOILONAEd T
00°GSR‘Z 1928 Lr/zZ/TY T0-L86P0-9T-E¥2Zd WIVID
0T 0¥8°T ToLZ8  LT/2Z/TT T0-¥¥9%0-9T-Eved WIVID
0S°STT T9Leze  Lr/TT/TT TO-€Y9V0-9T-EvZd WIVTD
1d SNI XONIOW 2ITHAd AEN 71906
LB 66L'S LB 66L'S 9TLZ8 Li/zz/1t FSYHD¥NA ¥IL¥M LDO
SANNOY¥D % DATE NIWAVY AEN ETS06
00°LLY'T 00°LL9'T sL92Z8  LT/ZZT/TT TYINEA ELYWNI ADNIOYIWE
07T TYINIA SdW zZ1906
S5 86 32 LTLZ8 Lt/zz/1t TEILS WANOVIW -dILYM
90°€6 LILEZ8  LT/ZT/TT ONIEWNTd HD
dNIYA EN¥L HSNOH ANNOW 11906
007001 00°00T STLE8  LT/ZZ/T1T aNNd3d 1ISOdAd ¥ILYM
¥ADTY ‘NOSTHIOW 01906
95°%9 80 LY veLze  L1/2Z/T1T
8Y LT vaLee  Li/zZ/1t
VAVWYL ‘NYDIW 60906
BSTLL LT LE €8L28 Lijzz/1t
9L 6F SELz8  LI/2T/IT Savd ONILI¥M
8S 66T SELz8  LI/zT/1T Savd ¥SdA ‘dINLS ¥Md
S6°2Z8T 06928 LT/2Z/11 SOSIA ¥+AAD ¥ FENOL
8L°91T pLLz8 LY jez/it
89°99 66928  LI/ZT/IT SHI1ddNS FOIdd0
19°S¢€ 66928 LT/TT/1T SHITddNS FDIddo
S9°€ 89LZ8  LT/ZZ/TT
9€°6L 89128  LT/22/11
NI SNOILNTOS FDIJ0 O¥LEW 80906
0S°S0T 05" LT 18928  LT/TT/1T
00" 88 18928  LT/ZT/1T L10Z ST/T1-2/1T
NOISNWVW XWADVYIW L0906
00°s82°2 00°582'¢2 08928 LT/2Z/1T WANIVLEY JIEWADEA
TYIOL LNOOWY H#SNWAL FLYC # 0/d NOIIJI¥DSHA ADTOANI AOANIA FIFWON
¥OEHD ADEHD
LT/22/1T ¥ALSIDIY XDIHO LT/12/1T ¢ @3eq uny

v abea ALNNOD AZIOLS STETEd :ON 3a0day




Zv 8veE’1 ozLze L1/Te/1t ¥9T TISA / STI¥ DHA¥-Md

69°¥29°'1 9zLze LtT/zT/TT 9%Z 7ISA / 0L® 9TW Md
0717 WNETIOYIAd SYWOHL S¥906
00°99 0099 ZvLe8  LT/TZ/TT W TOYINOD VIVEEN IITIOL
dWILYWNEHL ¥¥906
€8°LTE 66°2Z91 szLezs Lt/zz/Tt SEYL NIOYWONE -¥IMIS
8 %S szLzs L1/ze/T1 SYOLDEANNOD % HSOH
$10Na0¥d TO0d IOIAIANS £9906
00" LEL 00°LOL 38928 L1/22/11 L10Z ST/TT-Z/1T
00°0€ 98928 Ltr/zz/1t
SHSIYdUELNE NV¥Id NAS Z¥906
00°8L 00° 8L LL9Z8  Lt/zT/TT dI TIYD
III 0 DINIWOQ ‘ENOTIVAS 19506
0S"€E90°2 05°€90°¢2 vzLzs L1/zz/1t HOWEW dOHS 141D
S % ENIM SYEZVID NIFHLNOS 0%906
6T 98T 61" 98T 3L9Z8 Li/ze/TL SNOILLdI¥DSHYd JLVWNI
YALNED OMIA ® 003 SHLIWS 6€906
6568 65758 £zL28 L1/zZ/11 ISOH a¥¥ -VOLWIENZD
ONI SIONQO¥d ¥IMOd HLIWS 8€906
00°0ST 00°0ST 0sLT8  L1/2Z/TT TO¥INOD LS=d
DNI TTOYINOD 1SHd WNNAIS LESOE
00 €SP 00°002 zzZLZR LT/ZZ/T1 STYLEW 0T SAITOS 0OId
00" 8%T zzLee LT/Z2/1T1 SAI0S 4SNS ‘HA'SsAod
00°SOT zzLes LT/ZZ/T1 ITOD T¥O3d ‘OdLIN
TYININNOMIANT WN¥IIS 9€906
SL BES -SZ'90% 8zLEZ8 L1/2z/1t INIOd HOVINWA NO LICEND
00" 5%6 8zLz8  Lr/ZZ/TT SENSST INIOd IOVINVA
SWALSAS TOMINOD WHYHIS SE€906
00°6 00°6 $892Z8  LT/ZZ/TT LT0Z ST/TIT-Z/T1
NETIV¥ NVINE ‘AVOHS vE906
00°2TT 00°9S poLZe LT/ZZ2/11 ATIN FLVWNI
006°9S voLZ® Lt/ze/tt ATIN FLVWNI
ONI SMOLNEI¥ISIA MAVWNIHS €€906
€€ EST'Y 05°96 9€LZ8 Lr/zz/1t INWOW ADNIONHWE 9860-L¥8
LE EBE 9€LZ8  LT/ZZ/IT dOor T960-L¥8
L6'065'E 9€LZ8  LI/TT/IT SNOLLYDINNWNOD-ZT1%9-252
6v°28 9€LZ8  LT/2Z/TT JIDA 00SL-L¥8§
ONI SHDIAY¥ES TYEQTD DES ZE906
0T " ¥ET 0T %€T ToLZe tt/ze/Tt SEI1TddNS SWA
ONI 024dn¥ T£906
00" ¥TT 00 ¥%1T €yLZ8 LT/ze/11 HO¥IW OHS 14ID
ONI ALIVIDAAS FOHVL ONFH 0£906
00 €LE 00" ELE TZLZ8  LT/ZTT/TT INIVIN O¥Ed SOLT
NI ONIdVOSANYT NIZTID ONEN 62906
00°0ST 00°0ST 08LZ8  LT/ZZ/TT WHIO ¥9d WYX3 SNY'Id
Eldd ‘aNVNEY 82906
€S°LTT €S°LTT czLze Lt/ze/tt FOANTS dLMM
ONI ‘3sniax L2906
05" 661 057661 88928 Lr/ez/tl SIIN ISHEL 9NAA TINVA
NI'€V¥T A90TODIXOL dOOMAZN 92906
91" %8 62°'12 9sLz8  L1/TT/TT NONYD ¥OSSESSY
LB 29 9sLz8  LTI/ZZ/11 NONWD TL NOILWLS
(¥D) ONI OD NVDUOW AWY 52906
00 zgs 00°288 £0L28 LT/ZZ/T1 NOILVOIAILYEDEY ¥VAWY
HHL-ONI dOHS ¥vVawd ¥2906
€7°290°T €V 290°T L9LT8 LT/22/11 FdVL/MNI/IVIASZE
Y101 LNNOWY #SNWAL q1lva # 0/a NOILJT¥OSEA FDIOANI YOANEIA IEWON
MOFEHD ADEHD
LT/2TZ/TT ¥ELSIDIY MDEHD LT/TZ/TT : @3eq uny

s  obeg ALNNOD AFWOLS STETHd :ON 3xodey




9

L¥* 020002
SLTERT
00°0s
00°09s‘2
€5°82T°T

0%°689'9

00"L9T1’2

00°8LS

IT €62

86°9S1'T
06°2Z%

00°8€S

00°SGEY
TT EL6’C
TY10L
MDEHD

abeg

TYLOL S3DIHD
SLTEYT
00705
00°09s‘2
ES"B8ZT’T

01" 0%2‘S
0E"6%F°T
00°L9T°2
00°%T
00-00T
00°v9v
se'g
00002
00°0%
YA 44
86°9ST'T
[sI A 4

EE"TVE
L9"96T

00°'SEY

LNNOWY

yoLzs
6SLZ8
8SLZB
99LzZH

28978
zgoze

ZELTB
oLLZ8
sLLZ8
aLLes
16928
16928
16928
16928
vsLes
L89ze

LeLes
LzLze

i44%4:]

#SNYIL

Lt/ee/1t
Lt/ze/1T
LT/zz/1t
Lt/ee/1T

LT/zZE/1T
LI/ze/11

Ltjee/1t
Lr/zez/1t
Lr/eze/1t
Lt/zz/1t
Lr/zz/1n
Lr/ze/Tt
L1/ze/tt
Lr/ze/1t
Lr/ee/1t
Lr/eze/1t

Li/ze/1t
LT/22/11

Lr/zez/1t

arva

SSIWO/SYOMYT €nd AIVION
EYILAM

OI1d3ES HO

LTOZ LDO STYEW AOOMID0T

Sd84 ASdOLAY ¥ XOL
Sd34 AS40LOY ¥ XOL

SEOIAY¥IS LISIAEEOT

LI0Z ST/TT-Z/11

YOLISTIA OL O304 QITIVW
ONIME ¥

LT/8/T1

S3I1ddNs FDIAJ0

a@sveg IT FdAL

FAVEYd NAAMOTIVH

AL6 AL~ (¥Ed SOLT
AL S/M- N¥Id SOLT

SYTAYYW MONS

NOILAI¥OS3d FDIOANI

LT/2Z/1T ¥ILSIDAY ADFHD

ALNNOD AFAOLS

ANYAWOD ALHMNS NITLSIM
BYT TVINIWNOYTIANT NATLSEM
¥Ed AS JNVL DIL4dES SUILYM

A¥ES ¥OINIS XINNOD FOHSYM

"ANOAOD 0D FOHSYM

SELYIDOSSY ¥ AANTYM

ONI S3NOL ALID WINIOVIA

[ eY\N
ONI “d00¥ 1 3 A

N J40 SEDIA¥IS JLIS TILINA

INFWAAOYIWI TVAANID IAL
A TIIE ‘NOLS¥AHL
YOANZA

LT/1e/1t

LS906
953906
SS906

5906

£5906

zS306

TS906

05906
69906

8¥906

LVY906
97906
JYIEWON

ADIHD
93eQ uny

STETEd :OoN 3xo0day






1

€T TLE LT

€T TLE LT

Y101

abeq

b8 1€C
LE'ETT
88796
9L° 98
LE0SE
€9°20T
86 66
66°6ST
S6° V66
€6°65T
SL'EL
0Cc'LE
86" €6
00" €T
00'6¥
00 96
SE'€EC
66 €T
ve 87
9T’ 6t
66°'2T
08°9L1
T vy
66°CT
66°2T
YT 181
00" 1T
96°6€
0€°39zZ¢
8E€° 1€
£6°8S
00°6€T
8681
PLLTT
oz ot
Sv°0T
S%°0T
LS° 09
L6 1T
zz-os
LL 0Z
co ooe
60°28S 1T
00" S¥
00" 9T
09°'ET
LE LY
TT°8L
Zv zs
66" €T
LT 6
£0°92%
8L°86T

INNOWY

652T
6%2T
6vCT
67T
Z821
¥S21
[ATAS
6921
6%21
6%2T
SSC1
SSTI
SSTI
zset
Ss2t
SSCT
SSZT
o9¥eT
Lsct
TSt
2SZT
SSTT
EETAY
1Szt
TS2T
SSZT
SSCT
0SsZ1
0szT
0SsZT
0sZt
9821
2szT
zset
esct
2szt
252t
(4144
Zset
zsetT
SS2ZT
L¥2T
9veTT
9%Z1T
L%2T
SSTT
0521
8%2T
€582T
vzt
9521
IRZAS
LPZT

#SNVIL

L1/2z/T1
Li/ez/tt
L1/ee/Tn
L1/22/11
L1/2Z/11
L1/22/11
Lt/ee/1t
Lr/ze/tt
L1/22/11
L1/ze/T1
LT/2e/Tt
L1/ze/Tt
L1/22/1T
L1/22/11
L1/2T/11
L1/ze/Tt
L1/zz/1t
L1/ee/11
Li/ee/1

JIINIDWIYA STOCL
YILNIOVLIVA ONIYCCTA
ISd AZAWO2

1Sa 320A

YIiIEIS "L
TVIINIASIY - HAO0D
VLLIJARS "L

dATYA F¥I4

MD0Ls ANV SAL LI
dMOVE AJILLVE

ST/TT 10d3a dd13d0

LT/L/TT/SHOINH

LT/22/TTITLNIOIIY WWOD AWMTIIVH

Lt/ze/It
L1/2e/1T
Lr/ee/1t

WEONITAZNE °S

LY/TT/TT- ONINIVIL IWD¥ANZ MY'T
LT/ZZ/TTINIVEL INIWEONOANE MYT

Lr/ee/it
Lr/ze/tt
L1/ze/1t
t1/22/11
L1/2T/11T
L1/2T/11
L1/22Z/11
Lt/zz/tt
L1/2e/11
L1/2e/1t
L1/22/11
L1/zZ/TT
L1/22/1TT
L1/22/T1
L1/2Z/TT
L1/zz/1T
Li/eze/1t
L1/ze/1t

OALISIA TIVMEAII

$dNd NIL

NID WED ¥04 SIXOCH
YYIA 20 SNE J0d EWVdd
NYWAVHD dHSUENEW WIIY
NVWTIOH *0

NYWIOH "r

NVYWIOH "0

NVWIOH [

N¥WIOK *0

NWYWIOH * 0

NVWIOH "0

NYWIOH "0

SSYI2 ALIDO¥AIDEY 6Td
LEAYYO/AETIIM DY

LT/22/TTSIENIEYD /33 dIHSYEWIN

Ltt/zz/1t
Lt/zz/tt
L1/2e/T1
L1/2Zz/Tt
Lr/zz/Te
L1/2e/11
L1/2zz/11
L1/2Z/11
Lr/zz/Tl

q1va

¢ X DEY FTOIHIA MAN

OLN 44Y1S J1DA
SLENDVE Od JOVISOd
dNOHd ILITTIEIVS
LT/L/TT/SHOLOH
EDI440 DE¥ EDVISOd
AT NI ONINIWVII -HOO¥
AT NI ONINIWIL-SVD

NOIIAI¥ISHA

YIALSIDIY JAVO IFSVHDUNG

ALNNOD AFAOLS

8050659

OTEELSS
OBNAZOWE MANL LNS
ALOBZOM6MANLSNS
LO/OT 9EELSHY
ONIQIINE T:NLNI 2T0Z
T/T1T

$ISTISO

»ISTSO

»TSTSO

SEIYELLYE ISO XFHOA
1d SEI¥HALIYE NISWOHL
UAONIVED MM ZL1ddS
UIONITAZHE °S

sdsn 114sSNA

LSAS A¥ANOWT TTISSNH
4 SAXOE TIVW HTTIATE
anyNa¥

YEUIOH O1AWE

1730 ZNOSYE YITIA Md
ST/1T L0434 FDIJ40
0LOVW3 SDIHAWYD NIAAN
1EAEYD 00D YAOLINOW
1EJ30NE 0av¥0d T8 MKW
1343NE O0aWHOd T3 MW
FIIM WIZF HOOAOTINDDRW
FTYANATD HONOTINDDW
I3NOoNSs ax

SSHTINIVYLS SAANIT a¥
ONIOWNOWd O19 ax
NOZYWY U3

6L9ZECH ANT

$1/1T Ld=a ZWOH
90/TT 1d3A TWOH
y1/TT1 1043d SWOE
80/TT LOdEA EWOH
80/TT 104EA IWOH
80/TT 1Od3A FWOH
90/TT LOdEC EWOH
Z0/11 1O4EQ IWOH
FYOLS SAN INWISNID
0SOS - VaNIAVD

aTdrd

aTdrd

082§ - NIS0a
Sd4sn NOXId

LSE¥ FIVIvd aa
Sdsn ATIIIANYD
LS0dAav¥o¥ -NIAEN"D
[elatcritciA 4

E6TOLO# TAdAY
082S -O¥ONIINY
080§ - QVONIINV
LNIWAVE

# EOI0ANI 1Ld3a-aNQd

+Te30L pIeds

@IVO TVYIDHIWWOD ENO STTAM
HYOONEA

Li/te/it
LS08¥%SEd

‘0

(44

YITGNLN
od

s3eg uny

N 3xoday

-,















T9YZL'869T § SEEI'TTS 008 § ET068'SES ZYOVSE § S6OI6'LSZ S T9PIT'Z § BE'TLO'LS 8Y'SOLYS 89808 S OT6ZEZ$ I8VES'ES S SYP6I'ZIE § BZO0E'WZS § SU'ZHO'SIE §  TVIOLANWYD

. $ = $§ = § = $ = $ - 3 1510 2d
= S 1510 Xd
o $ = $ = $ = $ = $ = $ 1510 XW
- $ - $§ = § = s - $ 151G Jd'Xd
]
VOBLT 865 $ BEE96TILS - 6 ET0685E5 €06 S Zv10998 § SvSIL S 966¥6 L § VOG00ELS LSPIZ6LL S 96Z8LOIL § V5086¥9L §  J3ISNNIVIOL
JuawAedsang
PI'6L8L6S $ OVLSETT S TT2UR'SE $ €06 $ PT'8SS'98 $ 60STL S OLE8ET S 9068ST S 0L LIOLT S 66'SP6'L § YI'866'ZT $ LEPOZ'6TT $ LTLVY'OTT § S 086'%9T $ 810Z/L102
06'862 $ 86§ $ 6'LT s - $ sTsp $ 950 $ ozt $ 640 $ ISET $ L6€ $ 0STI $ 09'6S $ 6LOVT $ - $  ¥OI¥d W1OL
0686 $ 86§ 5 67T S 8TEY $ 9g0 $ ot $ 640 $ ISEr $ L6E $ 0STT $ 0965 $ 6LOVT $ - $ £10Z/9102
B S == $ - S = S| m= S1 a2 S1 & $ = $ = s - $ = § - § = s - $ 1e303qns
p 4 9102/5107
s $ STOZ/v10T
$T0Z/ETOZ
= $ £102/210¢
- S 210Z/1102
- $ 110Z/010¢
- $ 0T02/6002
2 S 6002/300T
= S 8002/£00T
HOSSISSY
ZS9b500T'T § - $ 008 § - S GETESE O ESEVETLI S OT66ET § BOL8ODS EISITES LULVD'ES S OE6LISTS LISC89v S S86C6Zi S ZE815/00 § ©9 1900051 § SIVLOL LMOAIY
s $ paindas punyay
LS9YS'00T'T § - $ o008 § - $ 6ETIES'E § ESEVETLI S 9T'66ET $ 80'U89PS E€ISIT'ES LYV Lvv'eSS 0E€6L9'ST$ LI'SI89Y$ 8862Z6'ZvZ $ ZESBISLOV $ ©ITI0°0ST $ Q3WNIISIVIOL
0v'9r6'760'T $§ - $ = $ EEBB0'T $ LU'EES0LT $ 9VZ6ET $§ vI'SI9P$ SOOOT'ES TSPEI'ES S E6V09'SI $ 68609'9r $ E6EISIVZ $ TESISLOV $ L9SZv'LvI $§  8T/LIVIOL
1698 $ 69'€T $ 110 $ 860 $ S0 S LY $ 9zt $ ¥9¢ S G®ST S Sy S ssassy [epads
EV'6S8'T60T $ €E'880'T $ BVEISOLL $ SETEET $ 9L¥99'F S 08660 $ VZOBT'ES § LIE09'ST § STO099Y $ BOS6LTVZ $ TEBISLOV § SIUISELIT § 810Z/L10T
LT'265'L S = S - $ - $§ 90'Epp'z § 9£018 S or9 $ v6TZ $ 8SST $ 962ST 0§ LEWL $ 8TSIZ § SESTI'T § - $ L6'G£9°C §  ¥OMNd TVIOL
ISTIOY § = $ - S - $ TYEOF $ ELL9S S 69% $ 69ST $ OTIT $ TTLT $ 60TS $ 080ST $ O0818L $ L6'9V8'T  §  £107/9T07 w0k
$sassy [enads
WwEoy ¢ €L°495 $ 69 $ 696T $ OTIL § ZTLYT  $ 60TS $ 080ST $ 08718 $ L69Y8T S LT0Z/9107
99°08S'E $ v9'680'C § €9IWT $ 107 $ Ssz9 $ svy $ vLSL $ sree S 8svv9 $ SIU'peE $ # $ 0068L $ |e3ogqns
76°L8S $ ST6LT  $ 6E19 $ 50 $ SET $ 6IT $ 6002 $ 16§ $ TrL $ 8988 $ - $ 15602 $  er0Z/StoZeIoL
$5953Y |eads
76°L8S S ST6LL  § 69 $ ¥S0 S SET S 6TT S 6007 $ 16§ § ITLY S 8988 S 15602 S 9102/5102
198 S €9'LOT  $ ST $ SE0 $ STt S 8.0 $ 6IET $ 88¢ § €Tt $ 8U'8S $ - $ OVLET $  stoz/vioz|EeL
S5955Y _m_uvam
TT9LE S €9°40T § STIY S SEO0 $ oTT S 8.0 S 6TET $ 88¢ § €211 5 8U8s 3 ILEL $ STOZ/¥10T
6670V S ISVEL  § STTY $ SE0 $ 9Tt S 8.0 S 6TET $ 88¢ S €T $ 8T'8S S 9t'LET S ¥10Z/€107
= $ £102/2107
- S ZT0Z/1102
TIETLT S SEBIIT § PLE6 S L0 $ 8z S ELT S LT6T $ 198 $ 169 $ TU6ZT $ LSYOE $ 1T0Z/0107
. $ 0102/6007
- S 6007/8007
- $ 800¢/L00T
. S £002/9007
VLOL %T ¥/V LINQYAO %9 4/V SAITYN3d  ¥IW3I/3HIE HLNOA JOVANI Q3N aN) VIS noV dvd 40 HOS dO HOS a9 1SNaNI TYHINID HIYNSVIYL
[3:]4 9059€-T00 HOIYE-TOO 100 174 100 S8t oro ot 090 091 0st 005-T00 100

LT0Z 13g010



00"

00"

00"
-00°000°000 ‘T
-59°S¥S'BOT
-€8°0%T’L0Z
-$8 PBE‘¥EE'E
-T9°LER'STZ
-69 €68 ETL
-E0°8TE
-Z6°759°'S8
-0£°'599°9z8°'Z
-06°LSE'CZL

00"
-09°L09°Z¢€
-€¥' 9z ‘2T
-BL YIB'BF
-8€°9ZT 'SHL
-$9°L6%'00T
~LZ ESE'BE
-56°L6E ' 09¥
~00' 0¥
-L978T16 ‘STT'E
-PTTLLS 'ZTTE

00"

-00°0399
-00°000°000" ¢
~FO"LEZLEZT'T
-B0°6%5 Z68 1
-2S°LLT1°699°T
-25°620 %505
00°STZ'EY
-LZ79L8 »8

00"

00"

¥5°668°66
-IT°19%
-22' 688 '08L

00*

-¥L'LLY 68
-€6°Z99 €56 1Z

007002

00-000'2

00°00T T

0E"BET

0L ¥EB‘BLT S

08°Z0Z'6ST 'L

LB'698'BT8°LZ

00"

00"

0L €ZT’S

9E-LY6 ‘8

00"

EONTTYE ONIONS

1 2beg

00"

0o
00"
oo*
00*
00*
00*
00"
00*
00°
oo~
oo
00"
00~
00"
oo*
co*
00"
co-
co*
oo~
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00°
00°
oo
00"
0o~
oc”
00~
00"
00~
00~
00"
00
00*
00"
oo*
op*
00"
00*
o0
00"
oo”
oo”
00"
00"
co-"
co*
00"

IND SuzZasnvaL

00" 00"

00’ 00"

00" 00"

00" 00°

00 00"

00" 00"

00" YT 6STBE
00" 0z'6%

00" 00

00" 00"

00" 00°036°L
00" -00°0SL LBT
00" oo*

00" 00

00° zT°900'2
00" 00"

00* co*

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" oo0*

og* 00"

00" 00"

00" -00"0TH* 86
00" 00705L'Z9
0o’ 00*

oo 00*

00" 00"

00" -zz*Z89
00" 00

00" 00°

00" 00°0T6°8E
0o’ 00°

00" 6o*

00" 00°

00" 00"

00° 00"

00’ 00"

00’ ZE'6ST*B
oo’ op*

oo’ 00"

00" -SLTB9EBIT'L
00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00°

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00’ 61°L16°982°2
00" 00"

00° 00"

00" 00"

00" 00°

00" 0o0°
TT Sed4SNwel  SHAAONOA NENoD

00" oo* oo’ 00"

00" 00 00" 00"

00° 00 00" 00"

00* 00" 00" ~00°000°000°T
91" 665 L6°TES'TET -6E TLS VL -6€° 20T 93T
00" 00" 00° -€8°0FT LOT
LT %ES'STE €5°€00°'S9 -~6T'008"'€6E -67 185627 ’¢C
ZyiseL Lz 06°8LY'0S -0L T¥T'ETT ~€%°600°T8T
00° 00"SEL'ZET 00* -69' 889 '9VE
00" 00" 00* -£0°'B1E

00° S6°20E'T -¥9°01Z'2E -€Z°S¥L'Z9
0o* 00" 00* -0€*ST6‘8ES 2
00° 00" 00* -06"LSB'ZZT
00° 00" 00" 00"

00* 00°¥90°T -TELTIZ'E -T#'09%'2E
oo* 99 0¥ TE -86'TLOL -TY*G60'LE
00°* 00°0%S -00'SE9 -gL'6IL8Y
00* 8¥%° 782 'T¥S -9Z'S30'LPT -09"EFEBET’T
00° 00" €T L¥9'21 -Z5° 0SB L8
00" 8€°2688°28 -T8' ¥€8 ‘69 -$g*00%‘TOT
00" €6 6ES'LTY -S¥' V6T 2Z9¢ -EV EVE’9TS
00* 00 0% -00' 01 -00°0¢L

00" 6T°0LY ' 9%L -T0' 906 "689 -S8°ZLOPLOE
LZ°F0T'CT €8°988°LT ~%T'ST0'€€ -0T"€0E'E8E
00" oo* 00" 00"

00" 00" 00* -007099

00" 00" 00" -00°000°000°T
vE°ZTO'ZT 6LTZST*EIS -15'686 ' %S PP 0LL'ITL'T
00* 00" -¥8' 8E0 ' ¥Y -¥Z 0TS'8YE T
00" LE"969'6E 00" -68°ELB'BOL'T
060" 00" -92' 6292 -9Z'0TE'6TS
00" 00" 00" 00*STZ’EY
00" 00" oo’ -LT9L8 e
00" 00" 00" 00°*

00" 00° 00" 00"

00" 007 05T 00" ¥5°6%¥9°'66
oo* 00°05S -90'8%9 -S0"ESE
¥Z'0SE ‘6T LLTETS'6T -96° %998 -65°L9Z ThL
00° 00" 00* 00"

00* ¥5°609°6 -e¥'SOL'Y -08° TS %6
LL*LTE9LY ZETHT'OPE -PLTTEPSTIE  -E€S TLE9LTLT
00" 00" 00" 00002

00" 00" 00" 00°000°2

00° 00" 0o* 00°00T'T

00* 00° 00* OE'6EY

00* 00° 00" 0L'$68°'8LT B
50" 00" 00" 05°Z0Z6ST°¢L
-LE"ETE’SLO'T ~T9'E0S'EST’'E 86 L9¥'6LL’S  BI'TOE'TIB6'ET
00" 00" 00* 00"

00" 00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00" 0L €ZT’S

00" 00" 88" 8Y°9v6°8

00° 00" 00" 00"
STI0¥AYa SINAWESENEs1q  Si31aoad qEemgos e

LT0Z/0T 9Ol

JIFFHS ONIONVTYH ATHLNOW
ONILNNCODVY SuNIUNSYHAL
FIANSVEYL ALNNOD XHEOLS

SaNOd TTY TYLOL

ONICQTIOH SEXWL dZdnNDdS 006
ONIQTIOH SEXYLI GIUNDIASNA 008
F¥I3 IDAPONd TYLISYD 082
arv TYALOW 0LZ

ADNTO¥EWG TYI2 05T
LOI¥ISIA AEIZ 0ST
NOISSTWWOD WSINNOL OA 0€Z
1D3rodd TIYE OAa 022

anNnd 9a7¢ TIYL S,JSI¥EHS 012
SINTSD Te¥d0HEs 902

MOYIAYE INL 00T

aNna AEYd 06T

L3N I¥L 68T

aNnd JANOD FDILSAL (BT
AINFAIDOV IN3DIANI S8T
LAN0D 1DIWLSIA 0BT

FIVWLS 0LT

aNNd ADOTIONHDAL §9T

1E3d 7T00HDE 09T

TOOHDS 0ST

13002 9N¥A 0%T

094Yd S778M GNOE ¥asn SET
¥AMES FAIAIQ VINIOWIA 0€T
ALID YINIDEIA 30 NMOL 0ZT
TIIH @709 30 NMOL 07T
NOILYZITISVIS 00T

WILSXS ¥IIVM 060

aNAE FEANLDAALSYESNI 080
SLOELO¥d TYLIAYD 0L0
NOILISINDGDY LNZWAINDE 090
ZDIANES 050

aIv IYNLAN 550

IDTEISIO THIE 0%0
AONZO¥SWE TUTE S€0

FUIA 0€0

NOIEINIILSEA ¥Z0

Sa¥0¥ 020

XYL- ZONVISISSY INISIANI STO
TYOIASW INIOIANI 010
TYEENED 100

YOSSISSY HSWD ALLI 506
J4T¥EHS HSYD XLLA& 506
HSWD ALLIE €06

SNIOD a70 106

INNODOY dI9T SIWLIS 96T
LIAUYW AINOW OO¥WA STIAM T6T
LNAODDY DD 0O¥WA STTIM 66T
SITYS AL¥IIONd ¥V 40 € 86T
SMIYDD MNNVE SSENISNE L6T
MNWE NI HSWD S6T

ONIQTOH I¥N0D IOTHULSIA %6T
HSWD ¥asSn OD¥Yd STI1IM €6T

NOIL3190SEa L9

BTET*PT LI/LT/TT suny
00TZYL ON 3xoday



08 6%
v0°LT6
00°261
00" %

00" 9ST
06 °"TES
LS 162
00°0§
00°0ST
66" €T
LE"T6
267 LT
9L°LTT'T
29°688
0S°L99°L
00°Ss2
00°S6

86 %

€€ 2z
0S"LST'T
S PCYPT
69°19T
06 °0€
€C°9T
S¥°9

¥8 €V

00 E€¥%¥
0s-€62'¢
80°%28'T

00°89L'T
LY 8¥%E’'Z

Junowyy

LT/9T/0T1
LT/ET/0T
LT/ET/0T
LI/E€T/0T
LT/ET/0T
LT/ET/0T
LTI/E€T/0T
LT/ET/O0T
LT/ET/0T
LT/ET/0T
LT/€T/0T
LT/ET/O0T
LT/E€T/0T
LT/62/6

LT/6Z
LT/6
LT/6
LT/6
LT/S
LT/T
LT/T
LT/T

SN

O100COO~NANN
VRO OONNMUNENOOANNARNNON

LT/0Z
LT/0Z
LT/LO
LT/€T
LT/€0
9T/60
91/60
ST/L
9T/%
9T/9
91/9
91/¢C
91/20
91/20
9T/6T
9t/ze
9T/80
9T/80
9T/0T
91/81/¢
ST/8T/6
ST/%0/6
ST/v2/L
S1/92/9
ST/ZT/9
ST/TT/9
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/¥%
ST/LT/%

23eq osyD

e

Ot N
e e e e e e i B e

et

LT/T€E/0T - 00/00/0
#309UD woag
s)}o9yD burtpueiasing
ONILNNODDOVY SudHANSYIAL

666666 UDNOIUL T

D711 d3dg Y

SHANINIA ALID YINIOVIA
SX09MOD HANOLSEWOL HHL
ONI YHINFDI¥Y SA¥VW LNIVS
d OTHOHNY 'INIdLEd

DIAYAS JYALAWOAHAIAS VAVAEN
HSLLANNVIEL % MNVEd ‘ZLIAW
AHIOWIL ‘ZAHILIVYOOW

S HLIHEM ‘NOsdnr

YSSITAEW ‘aTaTd

YIDI¥IVE ¥ IN¥Yd 'S3IAYH
ONI ONINIW XDOLSWOD

DTT TIIW d709 AD0LSKWOD
IIT HONH ‘JFHOYIIYD
ONIVHEIANIONT LSEAM HAAVI
HY08dd 'dEANIg

AN J0 DOSSY S,d0SSHSSY
aTvdED ‘' ONONILINY

HATTINH HAESOD

aivod ONIZYED VAYAIN

ONI ONVHAYOdE L10OdS IOH
HITYIH NMOLIWOH

ONI DISOTHIOD

HIYS ¥ SSYID ‘MO0T M 3 D
I¥d ‘NILLIHM

VHAATINNAL ‘SII0d

NOYVHS 'q¥yNddd

01T TTIIW ATI09 MO0LSHWOD
SESIIIYILINA AV¥Ed NNOS
d¥0D HNINONAL FLITAFANID
OTT HDILON ISHL

HSYEEWEN HATYSHTOHM ODISOD
SESTYAYHIINT AV¥Ad NNS
¥SIT ® LILODS 'NOSIAYW
SNOISSHIEWI HAILYAONNTI
NVEQ ‘dEOWAYH
SHSTYAYALNA AV¥EA NNOS
HLSTTIAD ¥ NNATO 'NOLHOHIHAT
SNOISSHYAWT HAILYAONNI
or d1d40d ‘'LSIng

NOSVY[ ‘SNIMMYH

QIV0d ONIZYED VAYAHIN
YANOL ‘MOT¥YH

HIN¥EL 'HONAT

ONI DIDOTHIOD

NOOVEVY HIEYW NNY ' AVdd0W
VHLIEYL ’'NOSHOH

ONI 999 EHEHL

HONH ‘LVODAAHD

A¥¥v¥E ¥ VYANIT ‘¥5dId
NHOL ‘ENSEdANa

NHOL ‘AYdS

OYHD ’'SNVYAH

HYH0dEd '¥EANId

sueN @2AoTdug/Iopusp
woxg

00:T¥%-0T

ALNNOD AHYOLS

EI970% 00
T6S%0% 00
T06€0% 00
S6€00¢C 00
S68E0¥ 00
vLZTOT 00
96TS0% 00
668707 00
950S0¥ 00
00TSO¥% 00
LSTSO% 00
90070¥% 00
LBBEOY 00
Z280€0% 00
CARAN L4 00
6S6E0Y 00
L90¢0T 00
L67TOY 00
TPISO% 00
9SC10T 00
ESLEOY 00
99¢€¥%0% 00
LLOEOY 00
SEO0T 00
9%6TO0T 00
LTTSOV 00
8ITSO¥ 00
L8BEOV 00
268¢t0% 00
PS900T 00
8I8Y0Y 00
LVYZEOT 00
26820% 00
€£99%0% 00
OPECOT 00
LLBOOT 00
z68t0¥ 00
£S670% 00
0PEE0T 00
9E6¥%07 00
80670% 00
9GZTOT 00
S68%0% 00
EL8YOY 00
LLOEOY 00
L6900V 00
9ELYOY 00
BE6ELOT 00
9LSY0¥ 00
0L9%0% 00
C8EEOY 00
6T9%0% 00
LZ9%0% 00
656¢€0% 00

# uosasg bsg

TOBWLL unyg  LT/LZ/TT
ZoLTad

66T
66T
66T

66T
Huedq

00E06 D
26206 MO
£8206 XD
99¢06 MO
75206 MO
9%Z06 AD
L2206 D
92Z06 4D
0ZZ06 D
60206 D
¥0206 XD
L6T06 D
96T06 D
0L006 2D
99006 D
vv006 2D
Z¥006 D
6€£006 D
€5668 XD
£5868 D
62868 MO
87868 D |
L0868 XD
95968 D
6£968 D
65¥68 MO
08€68 D
£5268 D
00Z68 D
61188 D
¥ESLE D
eevLe 2D
SYTL8 D
L9698 D
£¥L98 2D
8E€L98 MO
9L998 D
$2998 MO
TT9%8 D
6Y¥98 MO
S6T98 MO
€098 D
12098 2D
19LS8 D
66698 MO
06€€8 AD
0sceg  AO
L1628 MAD
16628 MO
SL¥T8 AD
yov¥Z8 MO
€L6T8 AD
LE6TS D
¢Z618 MAD
# 3osup dg

I 23eg uny
:oN xodey



€L°0S ST/¥1/8 SZT “SNI HAIT TYINOTIOD
TL°0T PT/S1/8 ¥O/NOILDHTIOD HFA AATITHS
LE ITT'TEE :Tejor, adAg
€8 ETT’T LT/92/0T  N¥ES ¥OINHES ALNNOD JOHSUYM
00°00S LT/9C/0T ONI S (NOLIUYM
00°98€‘T LT/92/0T ONI S¥N0OL ALID VINIDVIA
05°98%'% LT/92/0T 0D ¥¥ EDMIDNEL ® YINIDAIA
£0°SET LI/92/01 DIOA
TE €L8 LT/92/0T ODYDIHD J0 ALISHIAAINN
Zy SvT’T LT1/92/0T 0D SNI FIVOHLIVEHAZILINQ
00°%6S LT1/92/0T SIYHD ‘HOSITIIL
00 0S¥ LT/92/01 SAOEMOD HNOLSHWOL HHL
00 €02 LT/92/0T dSNOH ONILSYONd HFHL
00°€LO'T LT/9C/0T AATHIHS ‘AYIAL
00°0LE L1/92/0T YE€d D77 SEINLSNANI MDITS
00 SLE LT/92/0T1 T7 NOILLDELO¥d HdId Vd¥HIS
0% 90T L1/92/0T ONTI S¥OINEI¥LSIA JAYWIHHS
8L°291 L1/92/0T HILILANO0HD HAILS
00" €LE LT/92/0T NI DNIAVOSANYT NIEFID ONIE
00° T2 LT/92/0T NI‘g¥T A90T0DIXOL dOOMATA
ST €99 6ET LT/9Z/0T OTLWVSNIdWOD ZXDONHOV DITdNd
00°Z€EE LT/9Z/0T d OTHONY ‘INIVLEJ
L9 0% LT1/92/0T AYANIHOYW FdVd
00 €LZ LT/92/0T HINED HLTVEH TYNOILVANDDO
9T°82C2 LT/9Z/0T SHSTUdYHINE OLNY ATTIIEH.O
00°00S L1/9Z/0T NOILY¥LIOdSNVAL J0 Ld=d AN
00°L8 LT/92/071 DTT ONILIINSNOD NOIIYON
09°8ZT L1/92/0T1 YELNED TYNOIDHY TvaNd AHEN
T0°096 LT/92/0T TASNNOD HATIWISIOAT AAN
00" 0€ LT/92/0T OYI¥NE HLTYEH JO0 AId AGN
TL €22 LT1/92/0T NI SNOILATOS HDIAAO OdLINW
L9°999°T LT/92/0T ALD ALINOWWOD NIVML MIYKW
00°682°'¢ LT1/9Z/0T DTT SINIAE HNTE aAIndIT
oL L LT/92/0T NI SHEDIAYES HNIT HOVAONYTI
20°SLE LT/92/0T LSHMAIN TIVEWIN
00°00S LT/92/01 DdaW NYNNATIOW D SEWYL
00" SET LT/9Z/0T TIDNNODHEAOD TYNOILYNJJTINT
ST°6€8°T L1/92/0T SSINISNE VNNHEIS HOIH
8L°608'C LT/92/01 diT1 INIVH TIDVd ATddNS JH
00°%99'9¢ L1/92/01 ‘Y QIYMAE  ONIAAVID
00" b¥¥ LT/92/01 MOONT ATY ¥ ONILVIH LAHATA
¥9°0%T, LT/92/0T1 dT SYDTIIIATA
FOTETS'FL LT/92/0T ONIYEENIONT LSIM ¥IAVA
c0™CSy T LT/92/01 OLNIWYIOYS 40 ALNNOD
Z1°881 LT/92/0T1 SEM ‘SNOOD
00°G9T LT/92/0T OTT TIIW aTI0D MDOLSHOD
¥6°LYS'ST LT/92/0T ONI ISHHD ALINOWWOD
17°0LE, LT/92/0T  AEN 40 FADIA¥IS NOILOHTIOD
00°SL8'6S LT/9Z/01 dd0D ALIVEN dYSHYL
95" €£9% L1/92/071 TYNOISSHIOEd ® SSEANISAE
00°8L9 LT/9z/0T SIMET IIODS ‘TIEddnd
0S-€8 LT/92/01 QLT INZWIOTHAATA SAY
00°00L LT/9Z/0T1 ONI SWHLSAS YIVd dIONVAAY
unowy 23eq HosYyd sweN ssAordug/aopuasn
LT/TE/0T - 00/00/0 woOxg
666666 Ubnoiyi 1 #309UyD woad

z sbeg

s3oayD burtpueisaingo

ONILNNODOY S«JFINSTIAL

00:T¥%:0T

ALNNOD XFIOLS

TOC006
ST9006

600€0T
0ZT?0%
£68€07
768EOY
£86E07
ZZSv0v
9L0SO?
8S9%07¥
TO6E0F
98L%0¥
PZISOP
08F7EO0Y
086C0T
T8OSOV
PZVEOY
6EEE0T
88ECOT
685201
S68E0¥
98%E0T
90866

LZTSOY
SSTSO¥
€91v07
8C20%0%
920101
8ICIOT
880%0%
69707
Z0T%0¥
9SeP0¥
687E0T
£8S¥70%
6%CE0T
086%0¥%
£86C0T
0¥9v0¥
LTT?OV
SL6EOY
SICTEOY
ZL6VOY
T9TSO0%
LB8BEOV
SS900T
ZZ8e0¥
269¢€0¥
€9700T
TLIEOY
S8CO00T
0S00T

Al
A
Ll

AN RO NANRDO RN
OO NN
AddddddddddddAddddddd A A A A A A

66T

# uosaag bss yueg

Do/WTL uny  LT/LZ/TI

SoLvE  ud
Te2vE ¥4
PT¥06 D
€TIP06 AD
0T¥06 D
€0¥06 D
80%06 0
S0%06 MAD
S0¥06 AO
T0¥06 2D
66€06 D
86¢€06 MDD
L6E06 AD
06€06 D
LBEO6 D
S8€06 MO
Z8t€06 D
08€06 2D
6LE06 D
LLEOE D
9L€E06 D
SLEO6 D
ZLED6 MD
TLE06 D
0LEOE6 AD
89€06 MO
99€06 3D
S9¢€06 D
¥9€06 D
T9€06 D
09€06 MO
LSE06 AUD
£€SE06 D
ZSE06 D
1S€06 D
6v€06 MO
PP€06 D
€pE06  AD
8EE06 3D
LEED6 D
S€€06 O
€€€06 D
GZE06 D
¥Z2€06 2D
£€CE06 AD
0Z€06 D
6TE06 D
STE06 D
€TE06 2D
C1E€06 D
60€06 D
T0€06 D

# osud dL
¢ 23eg uny

Z9LTigd :ON 21x0day



89°TOS‘LEE tTe3lon

89°T0S’LEE :Tel0l dueg
T€°58¢€‘9 :Teao1 =2dAy
88°668 LT/02/0T £ 938D ‘SSHH  ZIT 00 66T ¥68S€  dd
00°09%°T L1/02/0T LZTZP# DOSSY ¥HLHOIA HAIA T0S006 00 66T £686¢ ¥d
957009 LT/0T/0T SHNA NOINQ/EWOSAY  Z0¥%006 00 66T z68SE dd
88°668 LT/90/01 L 9E¥O ‘SSEH  TTT 00 66T 9L8SE ¥d
60°€8S LT/90/0T SENd NOINN/EWDSAY  Z0¥%006 00 661 ¥.8SE  dd
€6 °9¢€L 91/80/% HONVENSNI HATT €ETT006 00 66T €T0SE ¥4
€STEPT'T ST/60/01 dNing FFXOTIWE/TYDICHEW  LOTO006 00 661 PLLYE U4
Junowy 83eq Hoayd sweN ssAordwd/xopusp # uosiag bes xueg # yoeyp dr
LT/I€/0T - 00/00/0 woxg
666666 USNOIUL T #30°UD woxg
s30o2ud Burpueising

ONILNNODDOY Su¥IENSYHIL 00:T%:0T * @WTIL Uny LI/LZ/TIT : 93ed uny
€ abeg ALNNOD AMIOLS mwhﬁum“02uuomwm













RESOLUTION NO: 17-478

A RESOLUTION HONORING
BRUCE AND LINDA LARSON & BOTCHA-CALOOP’S
AS THE 2017 STOREY COUNTY BUSINESS OF THE YEAR

WHEREAS THIS AWARD WILL BE GIVEN TO A STOREY COUNTY BUSINESS
OR ORGANIZATION THAT HAS SHOWN SIGNIFICANT CONTRIBUTIONS
TOWARDS THE ECONOMIC STABILTY IN
STOREY COUNTY

WHEREAS BRUCE AND LINDA LARSON & BOTCHA-CALOOP’S HAVE
SHOWN NEARLY 20 YEARS OF EXTRAORDINARY ENTREPRENEURSHIP,
MARKET INNOVATION, STRONG COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND
CONTRIBUTIONS TOWARDS FULFILLING A NEEDED SERVICE IN
VIRGINIA CITY

THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN TO ALL PRESENT THAT THE BOARD OF
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY DO HEREBY RESOLVE TO
COMMEND AND HONOR BRUCE AND LINDA LARSON & BOTCHA-CALOOP’S
FOR THEIR CONTINUED AND EXEMPLARY SERVICE TO THE PEOPLE OF
STOREY COUNTY

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 5™ DAY OF DECEMBER 2017 BY THE
FOLLOWING UNANIMOUS VOTE

By: By:
Marshall McBride, Chairman Lance Gilman, Vice Chairman

By: By:
Jack McGuffey, Commissioner Vanessa Stephens, Clerk / Treasurer

Date:







From: Brandy Gavenda <bgavenda@storeycounty.org>

Date: Wednesday, November 8, 2017 at 9:25 AM

To: Jennifer <jennifer@worldfamousbrothel.com>

Cc: Gerald Antinoro <gantinoro@storeycounty.org>, Jennifer Burns
<jburns@storeycounty.org>, MaryLynne Bacus <mbacus@storeycounty.org>
Subject: Work Card

Hi Jennifer,

To follow up in regards to-. | heard from Nye County Sheriff's office and her card has been
surrendered.

She may now apply for a work card with us.

Thanks!

Brandy

Brandy Gavenda

Administrative Assistant

Storey County Sheriff's Office
PO Box 498
Virginia City, NV 89440

Phone; 775-847-0959
Fax: 775-847-0924












7. Legal review required: Yes
KL  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
R /aunty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—

Agenda Item No.

4. Staff summary: The Board of Commissioners approved Resolution #17-463 at their June 30,
2017 Special Meeting evidencing support of Fulcrum Sierra Biofuels efforts to obtain bonding and
funding support thru the Nevada Department of Business & Industry. The Board of
Commissioners also approved Resolution #14-468 at their August 1, 2017 meeting which
approved the Director of the Department of Business & Industry with regards to bond financing in
an amount not to exceed $150 million thru them for Fulcrum. Fulcrum has now made a second
application for additional financing in an amount not to exceed $25,000,000. The Director’s
findings, which are outlined on pages 4 thru 6 of the Memorandum of Findings provided. The
Director represents the Findings comply with NRS 349.580 (2) and is recommending approval of
the provided resolution by the Board of Commissioners. Please note provision # 4 on the draft
resolution once again specifies that “nothing in this resolution obligates the County in any way
with respect to the Project or the Bonds. This is simply the next step to support Fulcrum in
obtaining additional bond financing thru the State. Staff recommends approval of Resolution #17-
479. Representatives from the Department of Business & Industries will be present to answer any
questions.




RESOLUTION NO. 17-479

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
THE COUNTY OF STOREY APPROVING CERTAIN FINDINGS MADE
BY THE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND
INDUSTRY OF THE STATE OF NEVADA PURSUANT TO NEVADA
REVISED STATUTES SECTION 349.580 RELATING TO THE
FINANCING OF A SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITY PROJECT
LOCATED IN THE COUNTY OF STOREY; AND PROVIDING OTHER
MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Fulcrum”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator”), has applied
to the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director™) for
the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) pursuant to Nevada Revised
Statutes (“NRS”) Sections 349.400 to 349.670, inclusive, for the purpose of assisting in the
financing or a refinancing of a portion of the costs of (i) constructing and equipping a facility
owned by Fulcrum and operated by the Operator to be used for converting municipal solid waste
into renewable fuel products located on an approximately 19.4-acre site located at 3600 Peru Drive
in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada (the “Biorefinery”) and/or (ii) the
improvements to and equipping of the facility owned by Fulcrum and operated by the Operator
used for preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located on an approximately
10.0-acre site located at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County, Nevada (the “Feedstock
Processing Facility” and, together with the Biorefinery, the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS Section 349.580, the Director, after reviewing the
application and other materials submitted to the Director, has made certain findings with respect
to the financing of the Project as are provided in the “Findings of the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 349.580(2)
Relating to the Financing of an Industrial Project to be Located in Storey County, Nevada” (the
“Director’s Findings”), contained in a Memorandum of Findings, dated November 27, 2017,
addressed to the Nevada State Board of Finance and the Storey County (the “County”) Board of
County Commissioners (the “Board of County Commissioners™); and

WHEREAS, the Director requests in the Director’s Findings that the Board of County
Commissioners approve the Director’s Findings pursuant to NRS Section 349.580(2); and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has reviewed the Director’s documents
and heard testimony before the Board of County Commissioners conceming the Director’s
Findings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of
Storey County, Nevada the following:

1. The Director’s Findings be and the same hereby are approved pursuant to NRS
Section 349.580(2), based upon the materials submitted by the Director and other material
submitted to the Board of County Commissioners, the existence of all discretionary approvals

Page 1 of 2



necessary for the construction, improvement, rehabilitation or redevelopment of the project and
testimony described above in the final preamble hereto. This approval is made for the purposes of
NRS Section 349.580(2). It is not (i) an analysis of the Bonds or the appropriateness or risks of
the Bonds as investments, (ii) a guarantee, or (iii) a finding that there is no risk in the Project, the
Bonds or both.

2. The approval in Paragraph 1 is based upon the satisfaction of the requirements of
the Director.

3. The Clerk-Treasurer of the Board of County Commissioners is hereby authorized
and directed to mail a certified copy of this Resolution to the Director.

4. Nothing in this Resolution obligates the County in any way with respect to the
Project or the Bonds.
5. If any action taken herein is found to be unenforceable, the remaining actions and

provisions of this Resolution shall remain valid and enforceable unless and until the Board of
County Commissioners determines otherwise.

6. The County Manager and County Attorney are authorized to take all steps
necessary to carry out the actions taken herein and to carry out the purpose and intent of this
Resolution.

7. This Resolution shall be effective upon its passage and approval.
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS day of , 2017.
AYES:
NAYS:
Marshall McBride
Chairman
ATTEST:

Vanessa A. Stephens
County Clerk-Treasurer

Page 2 of 2




































A4,

LEWIS T YOUNG
ROBERTSON & BURNINGHAM, mc.

AN INDEPENDENT MUNITIPAL FINANGIAL ADVISORY
AND CONSULTING FIRM

November 27, 2017

C.J. Manthe

Director

Nevada Department of Business & Industry
1830 College Pkwy Ste# 100

Carson City, NV 89706

Re: Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC
Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds

Director Manthe:

Acting in its capacity as Financial Advisor (FA) to the Nevada Department of Business & Industry (B&l),
Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. (LYRB) provides this letter to complement your Findings to
be submitted to the Board of Finance addressing the Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC (Fulcrum) financing
application and the proposed issuance of approximately $25,000,000 Environmental Improvement
Revenue Bonds (industrial development revenue bonds) to finance the Fulerum Project, as more fully
described below.

The proposed financing is in concert with the initial financing recently completed in October 2017 of
$150,000,000 Environmental improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC Project), Series
2017 (Green Bonds). As a part of the overall Fulcrum financing plan, its intent is to issue $175,000,000 in
bonds. Wherein the bonds mentioned above had an extremely high level of success with overwhelming
market reception, rather than exploring other avenues to Issue bonds, Fularum is approaching the B&I
to Issue the balance of the bonds for the project.

In responding to proposed federal leglslation that could potentially impact the federal tax code that
would eliminate the issuance of certain private activity bonds, Fulcrum is requesting the bonds be issued
prior to December 31, 2017. The issuance of these bonds will pravide a lower cost of borrowing than
could otherwise be obtained, thus providing cash flow flexibility to the Project.

Whereas the first series of bonds were solely utilized to acquire, construct, improve, develop, equip and
furnish the Blorefinery, this series of bonds will also reimburse Fulerum for certain expenses related to
the Feedstock Processing Facility component of the Fulcrum Project, in addition to proper reserves,
potential capitalized interest, costs of issuance and related items.

Fulcrum orlginally approached the B&), after meeting with Storey County, for an allocation of private
activity bonds to access tax-exempt financing for its Project summarized below. The first financing was
completed successfully in October 2017. LYRB is now tasked, along with Gilmore & Bell, P.C., to review
Fulcrum'’s second application and suppiemental materials on the validity of the application in concert
with you Findings. This letter highlights segments of the review process.

GATEWAY PLAZA BUILDING TELEPHONE BO1.598.0700
41 NORTH RIO GRANDE, SUITE 101 TOLL FREE 800.581.1100
SALT LAKE CITY, UTAM B41M FAX 8201.586.2800

WWW.LEWISYOLING,DOM









[e)

[e]

Subsequently, Fulcrum expects to spend approximately $20-30 million to install a jet
fuel upgrading system
Future plans include a 30 million gallon a year expansion totaling $450 miltion

« lob Creation

(o]
o]

Anticipated $9.4MM in expected payroll increase for the first 3-yrs
Anticipated $4.0MM annual salary budget with the following likely positions and salary
ranges

* Management / Supervisor (7): $22.77/hour to $64.42/hour

® Operators (28): $24.88/hour to $32.82/hour

® Maintenance (24): $29.11/hour to $29.34/hour

" Equipment Operators (10): $17.25/hour

= Other (21): $11.61/hour
Trucking - $1.0MM annually for 20 drivers at $24.04/hour
Maintenance - $600,00 annually for a third-party employer for 10 personnel at
$28.85/hour
Wastewater Treatment & ASU - $750,000 annually for a third-party for 10 personnel at
$36.06/hour

h———
275,
i

o Construction jobs (500)

*  Construction labor will be hired by Fulcrum’s construction contractor under a
fixed-price EPC agreement.

* Although the detalled hourly wage information is not available to Fulcrum, the
budgeted construction costs include an estimate of $60 million for the labor
portion of the fixed-price contract, which includes the various constructlon,
engineering & design subcontractors.

* Various jobs will include construction, engineering & design subcontractors

o Indirect jobs (1,000)
* Jobs generated within the community
v Taxes
o Property taxes are estimated at $13 million over a 10-year tax abatement period
(S In Millicns) Amount Paid Amount Abated Amount Paid Amount Abated
10-Yr Total 10-Yr Total Annual Average Annual Average
Biorefinery $11.50 $11.50 $1.15 $1.15
Feedstock Facility 1.50 1.50 0.15 0.15
Total $13.00 $13.00 $1.30 $1.30

© Sales taxes of approximately $11 million generated during construction and over the 10-

year tax abatement period

* Additional sales tax will be generated through normal operations of the Project
and from employees living within the community

($ In Millions) AmountPaid | Amount Abated
During Construction

Biorefinery $3.90 $10.90
Feedstock Facility 0.34 0.95
10-Yrs of Operations

Biorefinery $6.20 $0.00
Feedstock Facility 0.60 0.00
Total $11.04 $11.85

4]



—7
AN,
Appraisal and Market Study firfi
Fulerum engaged Duff & Phelps, LLC (D&P) to provide an estimation of the fair market value of the
Project, a plant located in the Tahoe-Reno industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada, as if complete, as of
May 31, 2017 {Valuation Date). Based on D&P's analysis as detailed in its report and exhibits, the Fair
Market Value of the Plant is reasonably estimated at $340 million, as of the Valuation Date.

Fulcrum engaged Argus Consulting Services and Nexant, Inc. to prepare market study reports. The
reports’ findings are as follows:

= Quality:

o “In summary, the Project’s FT Syncrude’s primary qualities overall are superlor for the
production of transportation fuels compared to conventional crude oils being processed
at Tesoro’s Martinez refinery. A number of secondary characteristics, Including poor
cold flow properties, & highly paraffinic naphtha fraction, and its oxygen content, make
the FT Syncrude somewhat more chatlenging to refine to finished products. However,
the plan to blend Fulcrum’s FT Syncrude in small percentages with conventional crude
oils will mitigate these issues, and based on Nexant's review of the FT Syncrude’s
characteristics, Nexant concludes that the Praject’s FT Syncrude overall is an easier and
less costly refinery feedstock to process than the types of conventional crude oils
typically processed at Tesoro’s Martinez refinery, and in the quantities being considered
will not require any modifications to the existing Martinez refinery.”

= Competition:

o “The Project is a one-of-a-kind, processing municipal solid waste into a FT syncrude
product that will be sold to Tesoro’s Martinez refinery located in the San Francdisco Bay
area. Nexant evaluated the competitiveness of the Project against U.S. competitive
facilities and international imports.”

o "National: Nexant reviewed the potential competitiveness of the Project versus the
ongoing U.5. projects and concluded that there is almost no competition to the Project.
Callfornia refiners, especially in the targeted San Francisco area, are an attractive
market for the Project’s FT syncrude since the Project will have advantages due to
superior logistics, attractive costs for refiners, and limited competition from other FT-
hased facilities.”

o “International: All the worldwide FT syncrudes produced today are captively processed
into intermediate or finished products on site. None of the synthesis activities suggest
that there is a potential for them to supply FT syncrude to the United States. As such,
Nexant does not foresee any international competition for the Project’s FT syncrude.”

«  Price Sensitivity:

Wherein the Cellulosic Waiver Credit (“CWC”) price is inversely correlated to gasoline
prices, the CWC creates an effective hedge against gasoline and oil prices. Evenin a low
oil price environment of $35 per barrel, the effective floor for Fulcrum’s Cellulosic RIN
will exceed $3.50 per gallon. This Renewable Fuel Standard mechanism that is
established under law provides Fulcrum with price stability in any oil price environment.
Because the CWC is inversely correlated to gasoline prices, the CWC creates an effective
hedge against gasoline and oil prices (see the “Market Overview—Renewable Fuel
Standard” section in the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum). As oil prices go
down, cellulosic RIN prices go up.

51



=
Revenues & Expenditures Summary i
Fulerum anticipates generation of meaningful revenues from the Project in 2020 with full operations
commencing in 2022, Fulcrum will increase gallons produced over a 3-year period beginning with 6
million gallons in 2020 to approximately 10.5 million gallons in 2022, Approximately 90% of the
revenues are derived from generating the syncrude with the balance realized from tipping fees,
portfolio energy credits and recyclables belng the largest component. As for expenditures,
approximately 80% are comprised of plant labor & maintenance, purchased natural gas & power and
other operating and General & Administrative. Other expenditures include catalyst and chemicals,
operating cost contingency, property tax and insurance and transportation. Fulcrum has engaged third
party consuitants to measure the feasibility and integrity of the model by stressing the variables and
inputs to the model. Conservative inflators were incorporated accordingly.

In servicing the debt, Fulcrum projects 1.7x, 1.9x and 2.0x coverage in the first 3 years of operations with
an average of 2.6x coverage for the next 5-yrs. This is conservative in nature with contingencies
incorporated into the model allows flexibility in managing future cash-flows.

Financing Summary

In addition to the original $150,000,000 in bonds allocated to finance the Project supplemented with
significant equity and federal grants, Fulcrum is seeking the balance of $25,000,000 to fulfil its finance
plan of issuing total of $175,000,000 In tax-exempt bonds. At this time, the bond structure considers the
following key components;

+ Sources:

o Bonds Issued: $175,000,000
Fulcrum Equity Contribution: $91,100,000
Department of Defense Grant: $67,500,000
EPC Contractor Equity Contribution: $15,000,000
Interest Income: $3,400,000
Total Sources of Funds: $352,000,000

C OO0 0O

= Uses:
o Project costs: $236,000,000
* Fixed-priced Biorefinery EPC Contract: $203,500,000
*  Feedstock Processing Facility EPC Cost: $32,500,000
o Non-EPC Costs: $57,600,000
® Development, Technology Performance Insurance Premium, Preliminary
Engineering, Commission, Start-up and Taxes, TRI License Fee, and Other Costs
o Financing Costs:
* Capitalized Interest (through 2020): $28,900,000
*  Debt Service Reserve Fund: $11,800,000
* Costs of Issuance: $5,700,000
*  Working Capital: $2,000,000
o Contingency: $10,000,000
s Payments
o First interest payment will be fn 2017
O Flrst principai payment will be in 2021
*  The final principal payment is anticipated to occur in 2037
* There will be level debt service payments on the bonds

6 |



P —

_

P
Financing Credit Enhancements: Hif

The Fulcrum Project will use commercially proven equipment and systems that are supported by several
tavers of financial guarantees, including (i) an Engineering, Procurement and Construction (“EPC”)
Contract that guarantees cost, schedule and performance in the EPC Contract; {ii) $10 million of
contingent capital provided by the Fulcrum; and (i) a technology performance insurance policy that
guarantees $175 million up to 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds for technology performance.

o Pursuant to the EPC Contract, the EPC Contractor guarantees the cost, schedule and perfarmance
of the Biorefinery, including responsibility for 100% of any cost overruns through Mechanical
Completion and $18.2 million of liability should additional costs be incurred during performance
testing of the Biorefinery. In order to align the EPC Contractor’s incentives with those of Fulcrum,
Fulcrum has the option to pay the final $15 million to the EPC Contractor in the form of equity in
Fulcrum, Abeinsa Abner Teyma General Partnership Is the EPC Contractor

© In addition to the EPC Contractor’s guarantees, Fulcrum has committed $10 million in equity
capital as contingency to cover costs incurred In excess of the EPC Contractor’s $18.2 million
liability during performance testing of the Biorefinery.

o Additionally, Fulcrum has secured a technology performance insurance policy from New Energy
Risk, Inc,, indian Harbor Insurance Company that will guarantee the performance of the
Biorefinery at Substantial Completion by paying down all or a portion of the Bonds of providing
funds for the mandatory redemption of up to 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds should
projected cash flows from Sierra not meet the Minimum LLCR prior to the Substantial Completion
Date. The Technology Policy does not guarantee payment on the Bonds and fs NOT a municipal
bond insurance policy.

o The technology insurance is to guarantee production of a certain amount of syncrude
annually to meet a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.20x

Series 2017 Bond Sale Summary

The Bonds that were sold and closed in October 2017 received an overwhelming amount of interest. For
the $150,000,000 final bond amount, the underwriters received approximately $600,000,000 in total
orders from 30 different accounts. The final interest rate on the bonds was 6.41% with an average life of
13.31 years.

Estimated Draw Schedule

Fulcrum issued the full notice to proceed to the ECP contractor on October 31,2017. Construction is
expected to begin in May of 2018 with final construction completed in December 2019. Fulcrum has
three main sources of funds for the Project being Investor Equity ($106.1MM), Department of Defense
Grant ($67.50MM) and the Tax-Exempt Bonds issued through the B& ($175.00MM). it should be noted
that Fulcrum has already expended approximately $57.4MM for development and of Phase 1 of the
Project. Fulcrum anticlpates spending down the balance of the funds for Phase 2 accordingly:

= Construction:
o May 2018 thru December 2019
o Total: $352.0MM
* This amount includes equity funds expended to date along with new energy risk
insurance

7|















DETERMINATION AND APPROVAL OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
OFFICE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED
STATUTES 349.585 RELATING TO THE FINANCING OR REFINANCING OF A

PROJECT LOCATED IN STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Fulerum™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fulcrum Bioenergy, Inc. (the “Operator”) has
submitted the attached application dated November 15, 2017 (the “Application™) to the Director
of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) for the issuance of
industrial development revenue bonds in an amount not to exceed $25,000,000 (the “Bonds™) for
the purpose of assisting in the financing or refinancing of a portion of the costs of (1) constructing
and equipping a facility owned by Fulcrum and operated by the Operator to be used for converti ng
municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products located on an approximately 19.4-acre site at
3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada and (ii) the
improvements to and equipping of the facility owned by Fulcrum and operated by the Operator
used for preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located on an approximately
10.0-acre site at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County, Nevada (collectively, the “Project”);
and

WHEREAS, the Director has authority to issue the Bonds pursuant to the Nevada Revised
Statues, including Sections 349.400 through 349.670, inclusive, thereof (the “Act™); and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum, the Operator, and other interested parties have prepared and
submitted to the Director certain reports, records and other information related to the Project, and
the Director has reviewed such reports, records and other information and has otherwise
investigated the facts concerning the Project so as to enable the Director to make certain findings
in accordance with the Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 349.585 of the Act, the State of Nevada Office of
Economic Development (the “Office”) must, prior to the issnance of the Bonds, determine that the
Project is consistent with the State Plan for Economic Development and must approve the
financing of the Project;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to Section 349.585 of the Act, the Office hereby
determines and approves as follows:

The Project is consistent with the State Plan for Economic Development developed by the
Executive Director of the Office pursuant to Subsection 2 of Section 231.053 Nevada Revised
Statutes.

Based upon the foregoing, the Project is hereby approved by the Office.

This determination and approval is made only for the purposes of Section 349.585 of the
Act and does not constitute a guarantee of financial results with respect to the Project or otherwise
with respect to the business prospects of Fulcrum or the Operator. This determination and approval
is not intended as an analysis of the Bonds as investments or intended to be relicd upon by
investors.




























































CERTIFICATE OF FULCRUM SIERRA BIOFUELS, LLC REGARDING FEDERAL,
STATE, AND LOCAL APPROVALS OF THE PROJECT

This certification is made by Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company validly authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Nevada
(“Fulcrum”), in connection with the findings made by the Director of the State of Nevada
Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes
349.580(2)(b) relating to the issuance by the Director of the State of Nevada Department
of Business and Industry Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra
BicFuels, LLC Project), (Green Bonds), in one or more issues, for the purpose of assisting
in the financing or refinancing of a portion of the costs of (i) constructing and equipping a
facility owned by Fulcrum and operated by Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator”) to
be used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products located on an
approximately 19.4-acre site to be located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, Storcy County, Nevada (the “Biorefinery”) and/or (ii) the improvements to and
equipping of the facility owned by Fulcrum and operated by the Operator used for
preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located on an approximately
10.0-acre site at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County, Nevada (the “Feedstock
Processing Facility” and, together with the Biorefinery, the “Project”).

THE UNDERSIGNED, DOES HEREBY CERTIFY THAT the Project has
reccived all approvals by local, state and federal governments which may be necessary at
this time to proceed with the construction, improvement, rehabilitation or redevelopment
of the Project.












RESOLUTION #17-463

A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR FULCRUM BIO-ENERGY

WHEREAS, on May 14, 2008, Fularum BloEnergy (then Fulcrum Sierra Blofuels,
LLC/IMS Nevada, LLC) was granted No. 2007-062 by tha Storey County
Commissloners; and

WHEREAS, In 2009 the company was granted an amendment to the Spedal Use
Permit allowing relocation to a larger parcel; and

WHEREAS, in 2014 the company was granted a subsequent amendment to the
Special Use Permit for modified processing and other considerations; and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Blo-Energy is In compliance with the conditions of its special
use permit and Is In good standing with Storey County. Fulcrum Bio-Energy and
Storey County have maintained continuous communication about the company’s
proposed design, future plans of construction and permitting; and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Bio-Energy will undoubtedly serve as an economic
development engine for Storey County and the region.

THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN to all present that the Board of County
Commissioners of Storey County do hereby endorse and support Fulcrum Slerra
Biofuels, LLC/IMS Nevada LLC’s efforts to obtain bonding and funding support thru
the Nevada Department of Business & Industry.

PASSED and ADOPTED the 30th day of June 2017, by the following:

AYES: McBride, McGuffey and Gllman

NAYS: None

And Signed: L\
Marshall McBride, Chairman

Attested:

Vanessa A. Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer



7=~
RESOLUTION NO. 408

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
THE COUNTY OF STOREY APPROVING CERTAIN FINDINGS MADE
BY THE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND
INDUSTRY OF THE STATE OF NEVADA PURSUANT TO NEVADA
REVISED STATUTES SECTION 349.580 RELATING TO THE
FINANCING OF A SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITY PROJECT
LOCATED IN THE COUNTY OF STOREY; AND PROVIDING OTHER
MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Fulcrum”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator”), has
applied to the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the
“Director”) for the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (the “Bonds™) pursuant to
Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) Sections 349.400 to 349.670 for the purpose of assisting in the
financing of a facility to be used for the disposal of solid waste and conversion to renewable fuel
products to be owned by Fulcrum and operated by the Operator, consisting of real and personal
property to be located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center in Storey County,
Nevada (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS Section 349.580, the Director, after reviewing the
application and other materials submitted to the Director, has made certain findings with respect
to the financing of the Project as are provided in the “Findings of the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 349.580(2)
Relating to the Financing of an Industrial Project to be Located in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, Storey County, Nevada” (the “Director’s Findings”), contained in a Memorandum of
Findings, dated July 14, 2017, addressed to the Nevada State Board of Finance and the Storey
County (the “County”) Board of County Commissioners (the “Board of County
Commissioners™); and

WHEREAS, the Director requests in the Director’s Findings that the Board of County
Commissioners approve the Director’s Findings pursuant to Section 349.580(2); and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has reviewed the Director’s
documents and heard testimony before the Board of County Commissioners concerning the
Director’s Findings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of
Storey County, Nevada the following:

Iz The Director’s Findings be and the same hereby are approved pursuant to NRS
Section 349.580(2), based upon the materials submitted by the Director and other material
submitted to the Board of County Commissioners, the existence of all discretionary approvals
necessary for the construction, improvement, rehabilitation or redevelopment of the project and
testimony described above in the final preamble hereto. This approval is made for the purposes
of NRS Section 349.580(2). It is not (i) an analysis of the Bonds or the appropriateness or risks

Page 1 of 2



of the Bonds as investments, (ii) a guarantee, or (iii) a finding that there is no risk in the Project,
the Bonds or both.

2 The approval in Paragraph 1 is based upon the satisfaction of the requirements of
the Director,
g5 The Clerk-Treasurer of the Board of County Commissioners is hereby authorized

and directed to mail a certified copy of this Resolution to the Director.

4. Nothing in this Resolution obligates the County in any way with respect to the
Project or the Bonds.

S If any action taken herein is found to be unenforceable, the remaining actions and
provisions of this Resolution shall remain valid and enforceable unless and until the Board of
County Commissioners determines otherwise.

6. The County Manager and County Attorney are authorized to take all steps
necessary to carry out the actions taken herein and to carry out the purpose and intent of this
Resolution.

i This Resolution shall be effective upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS st day of August, 2017.

AYES: All
NAYS: None
5
A bAGl T zf//zmé
Marshall M¢Bride
Chairman
ATTEST:

Vanessa A. itephens

County Clerk-Treasurer

Page 2 of 2






Prepared by: Joanne Beaulieu

Afier recording return to: Leysi Quincoses
SBA Network Services, LLC

8051 Congress Avenue

Boca Raton, FL 33487-1307

Ph: 1-800-487-7483 ext. 7795

Parcel ID: 002-023-11; 002-023-10

MEMORANDUM AND AMENDMENT TO COMMUNICATIONS SITE LEASE
AGREEMENT (GROUND)

THIS MEMORANDUM AND AMENDMENT TO COMMUNICATIONS SITE
LEASE AGREEMENT (GROUND) ("Memorandum and Amendment") is executed this
day of , 2017, by and between COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF
NEVADA, a municipal corporation, a’k/a STOREY COUNTY, a government agency,
having an address at P.O. Drawer D, Virginia City, NV 89440 ("Landlord") and SBA
MONARCH TOWERS I, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, having a principal
office located at 8051 Congress Avenue, Boca Raton, Florida 33487-1307 ("Tenant").

WHEREAS, Landlord and Nextel of California, Inc., a Delaware corporation, d/b/a
Nextel Communications, entered into that certain unrecorded Communications Site Lease
Agreement (Ground), dated October 27, 2004, as addended to by that certain Addendum to
Lease, as amended by that certain Amendment No. 1 dated October 18, 2005, as further
amended by that certain Amendment No. 2 dated May 31, 2006, as further amended by that
certain Second Amendment to Communications Site Agreement dated April 15, 2008, and
ultimately assigned to Tenant, successor by merger to SBA Monarch Towers II, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, f/k/a Mobilitie Investments II, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, as evidenced by that certain Memorandum of Assignment recorded March 7,
2008, as Document #0108597, in Book 247, Page 242, of the Recorder’s Office of Storey
County, Nevada (collectively, “Agreement”) for Tenant’s use of a portion of the real property
("Premises") located at 150 E. Toll Road, Gold Hill, NV 89440 (“Land”), being more
particularly described in the attached Exhibit “A”; and

o019 NV41485-T/Virginia City



WHEREAS, the Premises leased by Tenant under the terms of the Agreement, along with
any corresponding easements granted, lies within the described property on Exhibit “A”
attached hereto. The original term of the Agreement was five (5) years, which commenced on
November 1, 2004, and ended on October 31, 2009, with five (5) renewal terms of five (5)
years each. The terms of the Agreement shall run with the land described in Exhibit “A”. The
original Agreement is on file with Tenant at 8051 Congress Avenue, Boca Raton, Florida

33487.

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire and intend to amend and supplement the
Agreement as provided herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto covenant, agree and bind themselves to the
following modifications to the Agreement:

1.

Section 3. Term, of the Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

In addition to the Renewal Terms as referenced in the Agreement, the Agreement
is hereby amended to include five (5) additional successive terms of five (5) years
(each an “Additional Renewal Term™). Each Additional Renewal Term shall be
deemed automatically extended, unless Tenant notifies Landlord of its intention
not to renew the Agreement prior to the commencement of the succeeding
Additional Renewal Term. The first Additional Renewal Term shall commence on
November 1, 2034 (“Additional Renewal Term Commencement Date™), upon the
expiration of the Renewal Term expiring on October 31, 2034.

The first three (3) sentences of Section 15. Assignment and Subletting, of the
Agreement are hereby deleted in their entirety and replaced as follows:

Tenant may sublet all or part of the Premises or may assign or transfer the
Agreement in whole or in part. Upon such assignment, Tenant shall be relieved of
all liabilities and obligations under the Agreement.

Section 19(e). Miscellaneous, of the Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

Landlord:

Storey County

P.O. Drawer D

Virginia City, NV 89440
Tenant:

SBA Monarch Towers I, LI.C
Attn: Site Administration
8051 Congress Avenue

Boca Raton, FL 33487-1307
Re: NV41485-T/Virginia City

Upon full execution of this Amendment, Tenant shall pay to the Landlord a one-
time payment of Six Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($6,000.00).

0014655 NV41485-T/Virginia City



10.

11} (8

Capitalized terms not defined in this Memorandum and Amendment will have the
meaning ascribed to such terms in the Agreement.

This Memorandum and Amendment will be governed by and construed and
enforced in accordance with the laws of the state in which the Land is located
without regard to principles of conflicts of law.

Except as specifically set forth in this Memorandum and Amendment, the
Agreement is otherwise unmodified and remains in full force and effect and is
hereby ratified and reaffirmed. In the event of any inconsistencies between the
Agreement and this Memorandum and Amendment, the terms of this
Memorandum and Amendment shall take precedence.

Landlord acknowledges that the attached Exhibit “A” may be preliminary or
incomplete and, accordingly, Tenant may replace and substitute such Exhibit with
an accurate survey and legal descriptions of the Premises and easements and re-
record this Memorandum and Amendment without obtaining the further approval
of Landlord. Following such re-recording, the descriptions of the Premises and
easements described therein shall serve as the descriptions for same for all
purposes under the Memorandum and Amendment.

Landlord represents and warrants to Tenant that the Landlord is the sole owner in
fee simple title to the Premises and easements and the Landlord’s interest under the
Agreement and that consent or approval of no other person is necessary for the
Landlord to enter into this Memorandum and Amendment.

This Memorandum and Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts,
and by the different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when
executed shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall
constitute one and the same Memorandum and Amendment.

Tenant shall have the right to record this Memorandum and Amendment.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank. Signatures to follow.]

0014939 NV41485-T/Virginia City



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum and
Amendment as of the day and year first above written.

WITNESSES: LANDLORD:

COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF
NEVADA, a municipal corporation, a/k/a
STOREY COUNTY, a government agency

Print Name: By:
Print Name:
Print Name: dtle:
STATE OF NEVADA
COUNTY OF
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of
, 2017, by , as of County of

Storey, State of Nevada, a municipal corporation, a/k/a Storey County, a government agency, a
corporation.

Notary Public
(NOTARY SEAL)

%145 NV41485-T/Virginia City



WITNESSES: TENANT:

SBA MONARCH TOWERS 1, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company

Print Name:
By: -
Alyssa Houlihan
Vice President, Site Leasing

Print Name:

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of
» 2017, by Alyssa Houlihan, Vice President, Site Leasing of SBA Monarch
Towers I, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, on behalf of the company and who is
personally known to me.

Notary Public

Print Name:
My Commission Expires:

(NOTARY SEAL)

0014955 NV41485-T/Virginia City



EXHIBIT ‘A’

Legal description to be incorporated upon receipt of final survey.
SITUATED IN THE TOWN OF GOLD HILL, COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA:

KNOWN AS: LOT 39-B, BLOCK 1, RANGE 0 (APN 02-011-10); AND A PORTION OF LOT 44, BLOCK 1,
RANGE 0, BEING A PORTION OF APN 02-023-05 WEST OF STATE HIGHWAY 342 RIGHT OF WAY,
AND SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDING THAT PORTION OF THE PARCEL UNDER LEASE TO AMERIGAS
(SEE STOREY COUNTY FILE #67649).

BEING ALSO DESCRIBED OF RECORD AS PARCEL 1 ON PARCEL MAP FOR STOREY COUNTY,
RECORDED 06/17/2010, AS MAP #113294 OF THE STOREY COUNTY RECORDS.

TAXID #002-023-11

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN GOLD HILL, STOREY COUNTY, IN THE VICINITY OF THE DIVIDE
RESERVOIR, ADJOINING LOT 32, BLOCK 1, RANGE 0 ON THE SOUTHERLY AND EASTERLY SIDES,
AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 32, BLOCK 1, RANGE 0, GOLD HILL,
NEVADA, FROM WHICH THE ONE QUARTER CORNER ON THE EAST SIDE OF SECTION 32, T. 17 N.,
R.21E., M.D.B.&M., BEARS S. 87° 53' 07" E., 3632.72 FEET; THENCE

S.21°06' 04" W., 158.00 FEET; THENCE

S.69° 07" 18" E., 399.74 FEET; THENCE

N. 19°37'35" E., 348.45 FEET; THENCE

N. 24° 51' 12" W, 262.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE EASTERLY SIDE OF SAID LOT 32, S. 21° 51" 49"
W., 346.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY SIDE OF SAID LOT 32, N. 76° 02' 52" W., 254.00
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

CONTAINING 2.53 ACRES MORE OR LESS

AND,
ALL THAT PART OF LOT 8, BLOCK 1, RANGE 0, GOLD HILL, IN THE COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE

OF NEVADA:

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE WESTERLY SIDE OF LOT 32, BLOCK 1, RANGE 0 IN GOLD HILL,
FROM WHICH THE ONE QUARTER CORNER ON THE EAST SIDE OF SECTION 32, T17N, R21E, BEARS
S 84° 53' S0"E, 3573.49 FEET; THENCE RUNNING ALONG THE WESTERLY SIDE OF SAID LOT 32,

N 21°06' 04" E, 203.00 FEET; THENCE

N 53°26'36" W, 108.00 FEET; THENCE

§20°53'24" W, 231.27 FEET; THENCE

S 68°36' 50" E, 103.25 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.
CONTAINING 0.52 ACRES

BEING ALSO DESCRIBED OF RECORD AS PARCEL 2 ON PARCEL MAP FOR STOREY COUNTY,
RECORDED 06/17/2010, AS MAP #113294 OF THE STOREY COUNTY RECORDS.

TAX ID #002-023-10

00146559 NV41485-T/Virginia City

- vl



UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT
OF THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA

The undersigned constitute all of the shareholders and directors of the board of directors of
County of Storey, State of Nevada, a municipal corporation, a/k/a Storey County, a
government agency (the "Corporation"). The undersigned hereby consent to, and adopt, the
following preamble and resolutions by this instrument in lieu of a formal meeting of the
shareholders and board of directors of the Corporation:

WHEREAS, the shareholders and board of directors of the Corporation on the day
of , 2017, duly adopted a resolution for an Amendment to
Communications Site Lease Agreement (Ground) (“Amendment”) on the property described in
Exhibit "A" to SBA Monarch Towers I, LLC (“SBA”), to amend that certain unrecorded
Communications Site Lease Agreement (Ground), dated October 27, 2004, as addended to by
that certain Addendum to Lease, as amended by that certain Amendment No. 1 dated October
18, 2005, as further amended by that certain Amendment No. 2 dated May 31, 2006, as further
amended by that certain Second Amendment to Communications Site Agreement dated April
15, 2008, and ultimately assigned to SBA, successor by merger to SBA Monarch Towers 11,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, f/k/a Mobilitie Investments II, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company, as evidenced by that certain Memorandum of Assignment recorded
March 7, 2008, as Document #0108597, in Book 247, Page 242, of the Recorder’s Office of
Storey County, Nevada, as amended and assigned from time to time (“Agreement”) to SBA by
and between the Corporation as Landlord and SBA, as Tenant.

RESOLVED, that the Corporation shall be and is hereby authorized and directed to
grant the Amendment, and in connection therewith
; [Signing Officer] as
[Title] of the Corporation, is hereby authorized,
empowered and directed to execute and deliver for, on behalf of, and in the name of
the Corporation, the Amendment, and any and all documents in connection with the
Agreement as , [Title] or the signing officer
in his/her sole and absolute discretion deems to be in the best interests of the
Corporation; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that
[Signing Officer] be and is hereby authorized to execute, in the name and on
behalf of this Corporation, to take or cause to be taken, any and all actions
necessary to enter into, execute, deliver and perform the Amendment and any and
all documents and documentation (all of which are to be in form and substance as
the person executing the same may deem necessary or desirable, the execution
thereof by , [Signing Officer]
is conclusive evidence of approval of such form and substance by
__, [Signing Officer] that may be required or
contemplated under the terms of the Agreement and to do any and all things which
in his/her discretion he/she may deem to be necessary or appropriate in connection
with or in furtherance of the foregoing resolution; and it is

00146564

-vl

NV41485-T/Virginia City 1



FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of
, [Signing Officer] on the Amendment, and
any other documents and instruments executed in connection therewith or pursuant
thereto shall be conclusive evidence of his/her authority to execute and deliver such
instruments or documents.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that all actions previously taken by the Corporation in
connection with the Amendment, and the transactions contemplated by the
foregoing resolution thereby be, and they hereby are adopted, ratified, confirmed
and approved in all respects.

This document may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an
original and together, but all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hereby affix their hands and seal effective
as of this day of , 2017.

Print Name:
Title:

Print Name:
Title:

Print Name:
Title:

Print Name:
Title:

Print Name;:
Title:

00146564
-vl

NV41485-T/Virginia City 2



EXHIBIT ‘A’
SITUATED IN THE TOWN OF GOLD HILL, COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA:

KNOWN AS: LOT 39-B, BLOCK 1, RANGE 0 (APN 02-011-10); AND A PORTION OF LOT 44, BLOCK 1,
RANGE 0, BEING A PORTION OF APN 02-023-05 WEST OF STATE HIGHWAY 342 RIGHT OF WAY,
AND SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDING THAT PORTION OF THE PARCEL UNDER LEASE TO AMERIGAS
(SEE STOREY COUNTY FILE #67649).

BEING ALSO DESCRIBED OF RECORD AS PARCEL 1 ON PARCEL MAP FOR STOREY COUNTY,
RECORDED 06/17/2010, AS MAP #113294 OF THE STOREY COUNTY RECORDS.

TAX ID #002-023-11

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN GOLD HILL, STOREY COUNTY, IN THE VICINITY OF THE DIVIDE
RESERVOIR, ADJOINING LOT 32, BLOCK 1, RANGE 0 ON THE SOUTHERLY AND EASTERLY SIDES,
AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 32, BLOCK 1, RANGE 0, GOLD HILL,
NEVADA, FROM WHICH THE ONE QUARTER CORNER ON THE EAST SIDE OF SECTION 32, T. 17 N,
R.21 E., M.D.B.&M., BEARS 8. 87° 53' 07" E., 3632.72 FEET; THENCE

S.21°06'04" W., 158.00 FEET; THENCE
S.69°07' 18" E., 399.74 FEET; THENCE
N. 19° 37' 35" E., 348.45 FEET; THENCE
N. 24° 51' 12" W., 262.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE EASTERLY SIDE OF SAID LOT 32, S. 21° 51' 49"
W., 346.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY SIDE OF SAID LOT 32, N. 76° 02' 52" W., 254.00
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

CONTAINING 2.53 ACRES MORE OR LESS

AND,
ALL THAT PART OF LOT 8, BLOCK 1, RANGE 0, GOLD HILL, IN THE COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE
OF NEVADA:

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE WESTERLY SIDE OF LOT 32, BLOCK 1, RANGE 0 IN GOLD HILL,
FROM WHICH THE ONE QUARTER CORNER ON THE EAST SIDE OF SECTION 32, T17N, R21E, BEARS
S 84° 53' 50"E, 3573.49 FEET; THENCE RUNNING ALONG THE WESTERLY SIDE OF SAID LOT 32,

N 21°06' 04" E, 203.00 FEET; THENCE

N 53°26'36" W, 108.00 FEET; THENCE

S 20° 53'24" W, 231.27 FEET; THENCE

S 68° 36' 50" E, 103.25 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 0.52 ACRES

BEING ALSO DESCRIBED OF RECORD AS PARCEL 2 ON PARCEL MAP FOR STOREY COUNTY,
RECORDED 06/17/2010, AS MAP #113294 OF THE STOREY COUNTY RECORDS.

TAX ID #002-023-10

00146564
-vl

NV41485-T/Virginia City 3






TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUE
* AND NET REVENUE
AND
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016



TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
TABLE OF CONTENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUE AND NET PROJECT REVENUE
NOTES TO SCHEDULE
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Net Revenue Reimbursement

Schedule of Project Vouchers
Schedule of Reimbursement Limits

—
S©O®









TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUE AND NET REVENUE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015)

PROJECT REVENUE

Sales tax
Real and personal property taxes
Tax settlements
Business licenses and fees
Building and special use permits
Real property transfer taxes
Fire and safety inspection fees
Recorder fees

Total project revenue

STIPULATED PROJECT COSTS
NET REVENUE

See accompanying notes

3

2015
(Memorandum

2016 Only)

a $ =

4,117,333 3,794,418
- 19,084
48,149 65,254
810,998 692,460
24,486 103,138
294,891 198,127
3,958 5,727
5,299,815 4,878,208
2,511,674 2,392,071
2,788,141 $ 2,486,137







TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUE AND NET REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 -

NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (TRI) owns approximately 82,000 acres, of which more than 9,000
acres is zoned for industrial usage within Storey County, Nevada (County). On February 1, 2000, TRI, along
with DP Operating Partnership, L.P., entered into a development agreement with the County for the
purposes of completing structures, including grading, infrastructure, and all public facilities related to the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center property. The TRI Public-Private Partnership (Project) represents the
commitment between TRI and the County to fund the capital infrastructure costs and local community
services required by the development agreement. According to the agreements, TRI is responsible for the
construction of the Project public infrastructure, which shall be dedicated to and maintained by the County,
such as streets, sidewalks and streetlights; flood control drainage channels, storm drains, basins and other
related facilities; and County building complexes (i.e. fire stations, police stations, public works maintenance
yards, and administrative offices). TRI is also responsible for the construction of the Project private
infrastructure, which shall be dedicated to and maintained by the TRI General Improvement District, such as
community water and sewer facilities. The utilities shall be dedicated to the purveyors. The railroad track
and related facilities; landscaping of common areas; private trails and parks; and other property not
dedicated to the County shall be constructed by TRI and dedicated to the TRI Owners Association. The
County is responsible for separately recording certain revenue and expeénses directly attributable to the
Project, approving reimbursable costs, and determining the annual net revenue reimbursement to TRI, if
applicable.

The agreements establish a threshold of $5,000,000 for the Project net revenue before any reimbursements
are made to TRI for Project-related infrastructure costs. This revenue threshold was met during the year
ended June 30, 2008. Accordingly, the County is responsible for reimbursing TRI for the outstanding
approved Project vouchers up to 35% of the annual net revenue. The County’'s annual debt is limited to 5%
of the Project assessed valuation. See the supplementary schedules on page 10 for the calculation of these
limitations. '

Reporting Entity

This schedule inciudes only selected financial activity attributable to the Project as agreed upon by TRI and
Storey County. Such information has been extracted from the financial records of Storey County, Nevada.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenue and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported
in the schedule. For purposes of this scheduie, revenue includes only amounts received by the County
within the fiscal year and expenses are based upon a stipulated amount as discussed below.

Project Revenue

Project revenue includes certain taxes and fees recorded by the County from Project-related sources.
Project revenue does not include portions of any tax which are not specifically identifiable as to origin,
actually distributed to the County, or are dedicated revenue for earmarked programs not associated with
Project services. In addition, certain revenue sources may be included/excluded in Project revenue based
on mutual consent of TRI and the County.

Proceeds from certain tax settlements related to businesses within the Project subject to Nevada Revised
Statutes (NRS) Chapter 360.750 must be used by the County only for the purposes authorized by NRS
354.6113 or 354.6115. Accordingly, such amounts are not included in Project revenue.

Stipulated Project Costs

In lieu of allocating actual operations and maintenance costs, capital outlay and overhead, TRI and the
County have stipulated to a base total of $1,700,000 for Project costs for the year ended June 30, 2008 with
scheduled annual increases of 5%. Accordingly, the stipulated Project costs for the years ended June 30,
2016 and 2015 total $2,511,674 and $2,392,071, respectively.



TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUE AND NET REVENUE (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 -

NOTE 2 -

NOTE 3 -

NOTE 4 -

NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the schedule of project revenue and net revenue and supplementary schedules includes
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual resuits
could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 6, 2017, which represents the date the
schedule of project revenue and net revenue was available to be issued. Subsequent events after that date
have not been evaluated.

VOUCHERS

Through June 30, 2016, the Storey County Board of Commissioners has accepted vouchers totaling
$47,008,953 and approved payments and credits against property taxes owed by TRI totaling $5,340,639
and $4,790,870, through June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. At June 30, 2016 and 2015, outstanding
approved vouchers totaled $$41,668,314 and 42,218,083, respectively.

Subsequent to June 30, 2016, vouchers totaling $1,059,547 were paid in the form of a credit against
property taxes owed by TRI for the 2016/2017 and 2017/2018 fiscal years and an additional voucher for
Milan East was submitted for $825,647.

SUPPLEMENTAL CITY-COUNTY RELIEF TAX

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the State of Nevada notified the County that sales taxes generated
within the County exceeded the Supplemental City-County Relief Tax (SCCRT) thus allowing the County to
elect to be removed from its current “guaranteed” status effective July 1, 2015. Under the "guaranteed
status,” no portion of the SCCRT was allocated to the Project revenue because the amount the County
receives is not affected by the existence of the TRI properties. The County elected to be removed from the
guaranteed SCCRT and will receive revenue based on actual sales taxes collected from County sources,
which may have a significant impact on current and future Project net revenue. However, it is uncertain at
this time, how the SCCRT attributable to the Project will be determined as there is currently no separately
identifiable zip code or other mechanism in place to allocate the tax source within the County.

CONTINGENCIES AND UNCERTAINTIES

In addition to the SCCRT, the County receives other taxes and fees that have not been allocated to the
Project because of a lack of readily available information that specifically identifies the source of the funds.
Accordingly, such amounts have not been included in the past or current schedule of project revenue and
net revenue. In the event that the information necessary to allocate such taxes and fees becomes available,
or TRI and the County enter into a stipulation agreement to include additional revenue sources, such
amounts may have a significant effect on the Project revenue and net revenue. The effect of any additional
revenue sources cannot be determined at this time.



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF NET PROJECT REVENUE REIMBURSEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015)

2015
(Memorandum
2016 Only)
NET PROJECT REVENUE
For the year ended June 30, 2002 $ 622967 $ 622,967
For the year ended June 30, 2003 281,152 281,152
For the year ended June 30, 2004 620,102 620,102
For the year ended June 30, 2005 599,079 599,079
For the year ended June 30, 2006 1,095,455 1,095,455
For the year ended June 30, 2007 1,537,981 1,537,981
For the year ended June 30, 2008 1,608,939 1,608,939
For the year ended June 30, 2009 1,844,154 1,844,154
For the year ended June 30, 2010 2,467 573 2,467,573
For the year ended June 30, 2011 2,179,714 2,179,714
For the year ended June 30, 2012 1,672,476 1,672,476
For the year ended June 30, 2013 1,559,563 1,559,563
For the year ended June 30, 2014 2,068,872 2,068,872
For the year ended June 30, 2015 2,486,137 2,486,137
For the year ended June 30, 2016 2,788,141 -
23,432,305 20,644,164
Revenue threshold (5,000,000) (5,000,000)
Total net project revenue reimbursement 18,432,305 15,644,164
LESS CUMULATIVE REPAYMENTS THROUGH JUNE 30 (5,340,639) (4,790,870)
Total net project revenue reimbursement
over cumulative repayments through June 30 $ 13,091,666 $ 10,853,294

See accompanying notes

8



TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT VOUCHERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

During the Year Ended
Prior to June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
Total Qutstanding
Approved Vouchers Vouchers Vouchers Approved
Vouchers Paid Approved Paid Vouchers
Location/Costs (Unaudited) _(Unaudited) (Unaudited) _ (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Waltham Way Phase | $ 751562 §$ (751,562) $ - 3 - $ -
Waltham Way Phase | 3,226 (3.226) = - -

Fire Station -

Includes Hydrants 3,093,856 (3,093,856) - - -
Britain 510,546 (510,546) - - =
Denmark 804,327 (401,409) - (402,918) -
Ireland 318,999 (30,271) B (146,851) 141,877
Italy 285,648 - - - 285,648
London 373,299 - - - 373,299
Milan 695,025 - - - 695,025
Peru 1,980,606 - - - 1,980,606
Pittsburgh 202,328 - - - 202,328
Portofino 3,685,873 - - - 3,685,873
RR Spur 4,918,261 - - - 4,918,261
Sydney 589,985 - - - 589,985
USA Interchange 10,725,755 - - - 10,725,755
USA Parkway 2,484,529 - - - 2,484,529
USA Parkway Phase i 8,920,764 - - - 8,920,764
USA Parkway Phase IlI 3,618,053 - - - 3,618,053
USA RR Bridge 2,380,905 - - - 2,380,905
Venice 507,017 - - - 507,017
Infrastructure

2010-2011 Fiscal Year 120,013 - - - 120,013

2011-2012 Fiscal Year 28,482 - - - 28,482

2012-2013 Fiscal Year 9,894 - - - 9,894
$__47008953 $_ (4.790.870) $ - % (549,769) $ 41,668,314 *

* Total does not reflect the following subsequent activities:

1) Payments made or subject to approval in the form of credits against property taxes owed by TR!:

2016/2017 fiscal year $ 464,057
2017/2018 fiscal year 595,490

§ __1,050547

2) New voucher submitted for Milan East totaling $825,647

3) Storey County has established the TRI Payback Fund in order to accumulate money for the payback
of approved vouchers. At June 30, 2016, the TRI Payback Fund balance totaled $2,020,563.

See accompanying notes

9



TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REIMBURSEMENT LIMITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015)

ANNUAL DEBT LIMIT CALCULATION
Project Assessed Valuation (Unaudited)
Land
Improvements
Personal property

Total net project assessed valuation
Percentage allowed

Annual debt limit

ANNUAL NET REVENUE LIMIT CALCULATION
Net revenue
Percentage allowed

Annual net revenue limit

ANNUAL ELIGIBLE REIMBURSEMENTS BASED ON NET REVENUE LIMITS
June 30, 2012
June 30, 2013
June 30, 2014
June 30, 2015
June 30, 2016

Reimbursed vouchers
Eligible reimbursements based on debt and
annual net revenue limits at June 30

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING VOUCHERS
Total outstanding approved vouchers, beginning of year
Add new vouchers approved
Less reimbursements from Storey County
Approved outstanding vouchers
Approved outstanding vouchers in excess of reimbursement limits

Approved outstanding vouchers eligible for reimbursement

See accompanying notes

10

$

$

2015
(Memorandum
2016 Only)
57,744,466 58,020,871
126,960,685 109,146,250
55,850,209 51,040,441
240,555,360 218,207,562
5% 5%
12,027,768 10,910,378
2,788,141 2,486,137
35% 35%
975,849 870,148
- 554,560
769,731 870,148
975,849 =
1,745,580 1,424,708
(549,769) (654,977)
1,195,811 769,731
42,218,083 42,863,166
- 9,894
(549,769) (654,977)
41,668,314 42,218,083
(40,472,503) (41,448,352)
1,195,811 769,731




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Review and possible approval of Storey County Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended June 30, 2017.

2. Recommended motion
I hereby approve the Storey County Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June
30, 2017.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006
4. Staff summary:
The attached Storey County Audited Financial Statements are presented the Storey County

Commission for approval.

5. Supporting materials: Audit Report Storey County, Nevada June 30, 2017.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: _x___ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

_x___ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[1] Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[1] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. \8



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Méeting Date: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 Estimate of Time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent X Regular [ Public Hearing Required []

1. Title:  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval and acceptance of the Trial Court Improvement (TCl)
grant from the Nevada Administrative Office of the Courts in the amount of $29,456.92 (Project Total) for a
Jefferson Audio Video Arraignment System for the courtroom. Actual requested amount is $20,619.92. Match is
$8,837.00 to be shared equally by the Storey County District Court and Justice Court. (Justice Court Special Fund
will be used to provide $4,418.50 of the match.)

2! Recommended Motion: | move to approve the Trial Court Improvement (TCl) Grant from the Nevada
Administrative Office of the Courts in the amount of $29,456.92 for a Jefferson Audio Video Arraignment System
for the courtroom.

3. Prepared By: E.F. Herrington, Justice of the Peace
Department: Justice Court 775-847-0962

4, Staff Summary: Storey County has been awarded a Trial Court Improvement (TCl) Grant from the Nevada
Administrative Office of the Courts in the amount of $29,456.92 for a Jefferson Audio Video Arraignment System
for the courtroom. Judge Eileen Herrington submitted this grant in June 2017 to improve safety in the courtroom.
It is also requested that authorization be given to Judge Herrington to sign all associated grant documentation.
Your approval of this grant award, grant agreement, and associated documentation will allow staff to move
forward with implementing this project.

51 Supporting Materials: Grant Award and associated documentation
6. Fiscal Impact: Funds Available: Yes Fund: 206-206-53300-121 Comptroller O
7 Legal Review Required: District Attorney [
8. Revuewed By//
YAk
"/ Department Head Department Name: Commissioners’ Office

0 County Manager [J Other Agency Review
9. Board Action:

O Approve O Approved with Modifications

O Denied O Continued

Agenda Item No. i l




GRANT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
THE NEVADA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS
AND
VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT

The Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC), and VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT,
Grantee, enter into this Grant Agreement (Agreement) as follows:

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, AOC has established a funding source from monies received through preemptory
challenge fees, hereinafter referred to as Trial Court Improvement (TCI) Grant; and

WHEREAS, Grantee has provided AOC with all required applications, forms, and budget
information, dated July 01, 2017, consisting of 11 pages as required by the Trial Court Improvement
(TCI) Grant, a copy of which is attached as EXHIBIT A; and

WHEREAS, the AOC has approved Grantee’s request for funding to be used for the purchase
and installation of a JAVS Arraignment System in the courtroom; and

WHEREAS, the AOC has determined the project is within the parameters of Trial Court
Improvement (TCI); and

WHEREAS, the parties agree that this Agreement is in the best interests of all parties;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties
agree as follows:

A. The AOC's Commitment

. The AOC and/or the TCI Grant Administrator, or its designee, shall be responsible for contract
administration, including, but not limited to, review and approval of all reports required herein
and responses to Grantee’s inquiries.

2. The AOC representative, Jamie Gradick, may be contacted at the Administrative Office of the
Courts, 201 South Carson Street, Suite 250, Carson City, Nevada 89701; telephone number 775-
687-9808.

3. The AOC hereby grants to the Virginia Township Justice Court, Grantee, the total sum of
TWENTY THOUSAND, SIX HUNDRED TWENTY DOLLARS ($20,620.00). These funds
shall be paid directly by AOC to the Grantee/Grantee’s representative to be used for the purpose
described in the recommendation memo more fully described in EXHIBIT B.

4. Grant funds shall be disbursed via EFT (electronic funds transfer) within a reasonable time after
this Agreement has been fully executed by all parties.

5. The funds expended will be drawn from budget account 1493-18.

Grant Agreement
Virginia Township Justice Court
FY 2018 — Page 1 of 3



B.

1.

Virginia Township Justice Court Commitment

The VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT, Grantee, agrees that all grant funds received
from AOC under this Agreement shall be used solely for the purpose described in the
recommendation memo.

The Grantee’s representative, JUDGE EILEEN HERRINGTON, may be contacted at P.O Box
674, Virginia City, NV 89440; telephone number 775-847-0962.

Grantee agrees that all grant funds received shall be documented and accounted for under an
accounting system that is in compliance with AOC’s Minimum Accounting Standards. All such
accounts and records shall be subject to inspection and audit by AOC or its authorized
representative at any time upon reasonable advance written notice.

Grantee shall safeguard the grant funds upon receipt to the best of its ability.

Grantee shall comply with all rules and regulations regarding the expenditure of funds and
project completion, including timelines and reporting requirements established by the AOC. This
includes timely, quarterly submissions of grant program status report forms, if applicable; the
grant program status report form shall be in a form/format approved by AOC and is attached as
EXHIBIT C.

Grantee acknowledges it is solely responsible for the management of the purpose/project for
which grant funds are awarded and that AOC has no responsibility to maintain said equipment.

Grantee shall submit a comprehensive final narrative, final budget report, and relevant project
receipts upon completion of the project, but no later than 30 days later than the expiration date.
The final narrative must provide confirmation that the grant project has been completed in
accordance with terms of this agreement and should indicate/explain any funding surplus; the
final budget report shall be in a form/format approved by AOC and is attached as EXHIBIT D.

Upon completion of the project, if the project comes in under the projected budget, the Grantee
agrees to return any unused grant funds to the AOC. The amount of funds returned should be the
same percentage as was provided for the whole project. Since 70 % funding was provided for the
project, the same percentage of the savings shall be returned to the AOC to be applied to the TCI
budget.

Grantee agrees to acknowledge the Administrative Office of the Courts and the Nevada Supreme
Court as a funding source on any and all publications prepared utilizing grant funds as described
herein.

General Provisions
This Agreement shall expire on June 30, 2018.

The parties shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal laws, as well as applicable
Canons of Judicial Conduct, in carrying out the obligations of this Agreement.

Grant Agreement
Virginia Township Justice Court
FY 2018 — Page 2 of 3



Grantee shall not assign, transfer, or delegate any rights, obligations, or duties under this
Agreement without prior written consent of AOC.

Grantee shall not be liable to AOC or to any third party; nor shall AOC be liable to the Grantee
or to any third party for any indirect, special, or consequential damages including, without
limitation, any loss of income, loss of profit, loss of revenue, or loss of use of equipment,
regardless of whether AOC or Grantee has been advised of the possibility of such damages
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement.

This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of Nevada.

This Agreement may be terminated by either party within thirty (30) days following execution,
without cause and upon written notice by mail, facsimile, email, or other method effecting actual
notice. Termination of this Agreement shall be effective thirty (30) days after the date of
delivery of the termination notice. Upon the effective date of such termination, any and all
rights and obligations of all parties hereto shall be deemed at an end and canceled except as
previously accrued or vested.

If any term or provision of this Agreement is found to be illegal or unenforceable, this
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and that term or provision shall be deemed
stricken.

This Agreement constitutes the entire contract between the parties and may only be modified by
a written amendment signed by the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, or their representatives, have caused this Agreement to be
signed and intend to be legally bound thereby.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS

NEVADA SUPREME COURT
By:
ROBIN SWEET
Director
Dated:

VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT

By:

JUDGE EILEEN HERRINGTON
Justice Court Judge
Dated:

Grant Agreement
Virginia Township Justice Court
FY 2018 — Page 3 of 3









Storey County — Virginia Township Justice Court
Trial Court Improvement Program

Grant Funding Application

July 2017

CAPABILITIES/COMPETENCIES

JAVS is a privately held company founded in 1981 and based in Louisville, Kentucky. JAVS
personnel who have successfully installed systems in more than 2,500 courtrooms in 35 states
and abroad will be responsible for the installation of the JAVS Arraignment system. JAVS
installed the existing audio/video system in the Storey County Courthouse. JAVS possesses all
appropriate licenses to install products in the State of Nevada. For these reasons, JAVS has been
identified as the best suited contractor because of their knowledge and over 35 years of
experience.

By using experienced JAVS installers, we anticipate a seamless installation. In addition, we
currently utilize existing court staff to operate the JAVS system in the courtroom. We plan to
utilize the same court staff to operate the new JAVS Arraignment system which is 100%
compatible with the existing JAVS Audio/Video system.

Training will also be provided by JAVS to ensure that court staff can operate both systems
unilaterally. Jail staff will also be trained to understand how to correctly position inmates in
front of the camera at the jail to allow the video arraignment to be successful. We believe all of
these factors will provide the needed capabilities and competencies for the project to be
successful.

BUDGET

ITEM COST
Arraignment Video Conferencing System w/court monitor $13,347.42
Secure Video Conferencing Unit for Storey County Jail

wi/security cabinet $16,109.50
Sub-total $29,456.92
Justice Court Contribution for Match 15% $4418.50
District Court Contribution for Match 15% $4418.50
Total Grant Request $20,619.92

Page 2 of 4



Storey County — Virginia Township Justice Court
Trial Court Improvement Program

Grant Funding Application

July 2017

BUDGET NARRATIVE
The total cost for the JAVS Arraignment and Video Conferencing Unit is $29.456.92
(please see altached proposals). The 30% required match for the JAVS Arraignment system

will be split evenly between the Virginia Township Justice Court and the First Judicial District
Court in the amount of $8,837.00.

IMPACT/OUTCOMES AND EVALUATION

If awarded grant funding, the VTIC will contract with JAVS 1o install the JAVS
Arraignment system. The expected impact is that the installation of the Arraignment system will
provide a tremendous safety benefit for the public, employees, and judge. The Arraignment
system will enable Security personnel to monitor inmates at the Jail which is a locked facility. It
will significantly reduce the number of transportations needed of inmates to the courthouse
thereby reducing potential risk or harm. The expected outcome is efficient video conferencing
for the Arraignment and other court hearings which will result in a safer courthouse.

If grant funding is not awarded, the status quo will continue. Security personnel will
have no other option than to continue to transport inmates who may be high risk or possess a
health risk for the VTIC.

The evaluation of the JAVS Arraignment system will be conducted by the judge and
court staff. Review of court hearings for audio and video clarity will be routinely made. Inmates
will be admonished prior to court hearings to advise the judge immediately if there are any
problems with audio or video. The Judge will stop the hearing instantly if there are any
problems.

JAVS will provide regular maintenance to ensure the JAVS Arraignment system is
working at optimum leve|.

I will have the overall responsibility to ensure that the installation of the JAVS Arraignment
system at the Storey County Courthouse is performed in an efficient and professional manner for
the VTJC.

L; } E i AV q_[’ {:\Lk”{\——-ﬂww -
Date Honorable Eilecn F. Herrington

Justice of the Peace
Virginia Township Justice Court

Page 3 of 4



Storey County - Virginia Township Justice Court
Trial Court Improvement Program

Grant Funding Application.

July 2017

I will assist the VTIC to ensure that the installation of the JAVS Arraignment system at the
Storey County Courthouse is performed in an efficient and professional manner for the VTIC.

G227 2017 Plegerie Jop For
Date Maxine Cortes
Court Administrator
First Judicial District Court
Carson City Justice/Municipal Court

Page 4 of 4






APPENDIX A

Administrative Office of the Court
Grant Request Budget Form
Indicate grant funding source (s):
[ uniform System for Judicial Records Grant
[ Trial Court Improvement Grant
A 8 c
CATEGORY TOTAL (B+C) CASH MATCH | AOC GRANT FUNDS

Personnel S $ $
Fringe Benefits S S S
Consultant/Contractual | $ S S
Travel $ $ S
Equipment $29,456.92 $8,837.00 $20,619.92
Supplies S S S
Telephone S S $
Postage S $ $
Printing/Photocopying S S S
Audit S $ S
Other $ S $
Indirect Costs (%) $ S $

TOTALS: | $29,456.92 $8,837.00 $20,619.92

Financial assistance has been or will be sought for this project from the following

other sources:
















Supreme Court of Nevada
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS

MEMORANDUM
TO: Supreme Court Executive Committee
THROUGH: Robin Sweet, Director and State Court Administrator
FROM: AOC Grant Review Board
Jamie Gradick, Rural Courts Coordinator
John McCormick, Assistant Court Administrator
Rick Stefani, Deputy Director, IT
DATE: October 12,2017

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2018 AOC Grant Requests and Recommendations

The Administrative Office of the Courts received nine grant requests for funding during
fiscal year 2018 AOC Grant Program submission period. All nine grant applications have
been evaluated against the guidelines; six of those applications have been determined to
be within the parameters of either the USJR or the Trial Court Improvement (TCI)
funding stream. The requests are separated by funding stream below:

USJR

The USJR funding stream has $50,000 available to award to Nevada trial courts. The
Third Judicial District Court was the only court to request funding for projects that fall
within the USJR funding stream guidelines. The court requested $50,000 to help fund the
conversion of data/records from the old ADS case management system to the new
Justware system in order to allow for better USJR reporting.

The Grant Review Board recommends funding this proposal at the full, requested amount
of $50,000. The fiscal year 2018 budget has allocated funds for these purchases and there
is money available to support the request.

COURT PROJECT SUMMARY PROJECT | MATCH | REQUEST
AMT AMT AMT
Third Judicial Convert and transfer data and $180,000.00 | $130,000.00 | $50,000.00
District records from the old (2014) ADS
system to the new Justware
system database.

TCI

The TCI funding stream has $100,000 available to award to Nevada trial courts. Five
courts have requested funding within the scope of the TCI funding stream requirements.
Although all requests meet the qualifying area regarding improvement to courts, the




requested grant funded project will help to mitigate these concerns by allowing
inmates to appear via videoconference. The Grant Review Board recommends
funding this grant in the amount of $20,620.00* as requested.

5. The Walker River Justice Court request demonstrates need as the current
audio/visual equipment in place is not suitable for the recording system installed
by JCG Technologies using funds from the AOC Grant Program FY17 grant cycle.
Given the court’s successful completion of the previous grant cycle project and
cost-efficiency of this proposed project, the Grant Review Board recommends
funding this grant in the amount of $5420.00* as requested.

SUMMARIZED FY2018 AOC GRANT REVIEW BOARD
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

APPROVAL
PROJECT SUMMARY RECOMMENDED

AWARD AMOUNT
TCI FUNDING STREAM ($100,000 available)

Boulder City Purchase equipment for use in displaying evidence

Justice Court during hearings/court proceedings $14,660.00
Carson City Purchase 2 CourtSmart digital systems to replace

Muni/Justice the current system that is nearing “end of

Court technological life”. $31,580.00
Tonopah Justice | Purchase and installation of security camera

Court surveillance system $27,720.00
Virginia Purchase and installation of JAVS Arraignment

Township System in courtroom $20,620.00
Justice Court

Walker River Purchase and installation of equipment for JCG

Justice Court Technologies video system $5,420.00

TOTAL TCI $100,000.00

USJR FUNDING STREAM (550,000 availabl

Third Judicial Convert and transfer data and records from the old
District Court (2014) ADS system to the new Justware system

database. $50,000.00

TOTAL USJR $50,000.00

* The Grant Review Board rounded the recommended amounts up to maintain even dollar amounts.



Name: Title:

AOC Grant Program Status Report Form

D Uniform System for Judicial Records Grant |:| Trial Court Improvement Grant
Grantee: Grant Project Manager:
Reporting Period: Agreement Number:

1 Program Summary

Comments

Is the project within
budget?

Is the project within
scope?

Is the project on
schedule?

Grant funds expended this
reporting period (attach S
receipts/invoices):

N

Please list progress/achievements made this reporting period.

b wIN |-

Please list activities planned for next reporting period ending:

ViH[WIN |-

»

Please list any known risks or challenges to project completion.

nNnieslWwiIN |-




AOC Grant Program Final Budget Report Form

Indicate grant (s):
Uniform System for Judicial Records Grant

E wvian e
TE AR AP it
R atine Redfod ¢ Number |

Totals
1. Grant award amount:
2. Grantee’s contribution amount:
3. Total project amount (1 +2):
4. Final project cost (as reflected on final receipt/invoice):
5. Expenditures previously reported to AOC:
6. *Balance of awarded grant funds:
7. *Balance of grantee’s contribution amount:
Signature of Authorized Official: Date:
Name:
Title:

*If the project comes in under budget, this amount must be calculated in accordance with the
percentage as outlined in Section B(8) of the Grant Agreement and the appropriate amount
remitted to the AOC.






Enclosure A: Recommended Motion for Continuance

Recommended Motion:

Based on the recommendation from staff, I [commissioner] motion to continue the following to the
January 2, 2018, meeting of the Board of Storey County Commissioners, to be held at the Storey
County Courthouse, District Courtroom, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada:

First Reading of: Ordinance No. 17-279 amending Storey County Code Title 16 Subdivisions to
adopt new codes for land subdivisions, parcel maps, division of land into large parcels, surety
requirements, land readjustments, boundary line adjustments, and reversions to acreage; Ordinance
No. 17.280 amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including chapters 17.03
Administrative Provisions, 17.10 Definitions, 17.12 General Provisions, 17.15 Public Zone, 17.24
Agriculture Zone, 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.30 Commercial-Residential Zone, 17.32 Forestry
Zone, 17.34 Light Industrial Zone, 17.35 Heavy Industrial Zone, 17.40 Estate Zone, 17.44 Special
Planning Review Zone; and 17.84 Signs and Billboards; Ordinance No. 17.278 amending Storey
County Code 17.56 Planned Unit Developments to revise the procedure for approval of planned
unit developments; and approval of Resolution No. 17-474 to the Board of County Commissioners
with recommendation by the Planning Commission adopting a design criteria and improvement
manual setting forth certain development and design standards and guidelines for residential and
non-residential planned unit developments, multi-family residential complexes, and other uses;
Resolution No. 17-461 to the Board of County Commissioners with recommendation by the
Planning Commission determining and consolidating all planning fees, including removing certain
fees from code and placing them into resolution. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person
may complete and return to the board or planning commission a statement supporting or opposing
the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance.

Page 2 of 2






November 28, 2017
Storey County Commission
Commissioners;

Per your request at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Storey County Board of County Commissioners
meeting on October 17, 2017, the following represents additional monetary payments to three Storey
County Department Heads in December 2016, January 2017 and June 2017, who had already announced
retirement dates. In an effort to disclose each of these transactions, | have listed the following Index
and will comment on each schedule.

Exhibit A Storey County Retirement Benefits
Exhibit B Mike Nevin

Exhibit C Dean Haymore

Exhibit D Gary Hames

Exhibit A Storey County Retirement Payments

This exhibit reveals total payments to Mike Nevin, Dean Haymore and Gary Hames in the amount of
$214,410.14. Monetary payments to the above employees who opted into the “Nevada Public
Employee’s Deferred Compensation Program” in the amount of $ 144,215.41 and were distributed as
follows:

Mike Nevin $39,335.61
Dean Haymore $ 49,793.01
Gary Hames  $55,086.79

The amount of each individual’s payment into the Deferred Compensation Program was equal to one
year of additional PERS Retirement calculated as if each recipient’s retirement date was December 2016
as reflected in Exhibits (A-1 through A-3).

This exhibit also reflects an Annual Leave and Sick Leave Buyout for Mike Nevin in the amount of
$24,670.00. In addition a PERS payment was made on behalf of Gary Hames in the amount of
$45,534.73.



Monetary Payments to Mike Nevin

Exhibit A indicates monetary payments in the amount of $ 39,335.61 and an Annual Leave and Sick
Leave buyout of $ 24,670.00.

Exhibit B reflects how the first transaction was completed.

Nevada Deferred Compensation (VOYA) is normally used by employees to contribute pre-tax income
from their payroll checks. In this particular case, this was the only document presented to the
Comptroller's Administrative Assistant during the payroll week ended December 16, 2016. You will
notice next to the VOYA insignia is a $36,000 amount and the description “Note: For Buyout”.

Exhibit B-1 reflects the same type of transaction for $3,335.61, for the payroll period ending January 13,
2017. There is also no initials or signature authorizing this transaction, only the word “For Buyout
Balance”.

Exhibit B-2 reflects a “Notice of Termination of Employment” for Mike Nevin. This represents the entire
monetary transaction on January 13, 2017 and the categories of payment. Of particular concern is the
calculation of Vacation pay of $ 19,670.00. Under the current AFSCME Collective Bargaining Agreement
dated November 1, 2016 and effective July 1, 2016, the terminated employee will be compensated “for
the total number of annual leave hours accrued (up to 240 hours).

Exhibit B-3 Reflects comments and documentation from the Human Resources Department and County
Manager on the Vacation Pay for Mike Nevin.

Monetary Payments to Dean Haymore
Exhibit A indicates monetary payments in the amount of $ 49,783.39.

Exhibit C reflects the initial payment of $ 27,600 to VOYA for the payroll week ended December 16,
2016. This document is noted “For buyout”.

Exhibit C-1 reflects the second half of the payment of $ 22,183.01 for the payroll week ended June 16,
2017. Note at the bottom of the page that this transaction was approved by the County Manager on
June 13, 2017.



Monetary Payments to Gary Hames

Exhibit A indicates monetary payments in the amount of $ 55,086.79 and a contribution to the Nevada
Public Retirement System (PERS) OF $ 45,534.73.

Exhibit D reflects the initial payment of $ 35,000.00 into a VOYA deferred income account for the payroll
week ended December 16, 2016. The explanation on this document was described as “Note: For
Buyout”.

Exhibit D-1 reflects the second half of the payment of $ 20,086.79 for the payroll week ended June 16,
2017. Note at the bottom of the page that this transition was approved by the County Manager on June
13, 2017.

Exhibit D-2 represents a document from Nevada PERS with regard to a “Purchase of Service Agreement”
on behalf of Gary Hames. This Document was approved by County Manager Pat Whitten on June 13,
2017. At the present time, we are unable to confirm the payment amount of $ 45,534.75 from the
Nevada Public Employee Retirement System (NVPERS).

Conclusion

In summary, these transactions reflect a Buy-Out for early separation of service. There is however, no
documentation to demonstrate that these transactions are similar to those constructed in the past. Past
recipients were required to complete and sign a document similar to (Exhibit E). If this was not
considered Early Separation but additional remuneration for quality of service, then a Pay Request form
(Exhibit F) should have been completed.

Respectively Submitted,

Hugé Gallagher E

Storey County Comptroller



STOREY COUNTY

RETIREMENT PAYMENTS

DATE _ Mike Dean ‘Gary Total

, ‘Nevin Haymore Hames _

12/16/2016 Bonus A - $36,00000 $27,600.00 $ 3500000 $ 98,600.00
1/13/2017 Bonus A $ 333561 'S 3,33561
1/13/2017 Sick Leave Buyout » ~$ 5,000.00 S 5,000.00
1/13/2017 Annual Leave Buyout B $ 19,670.00 '$ 19,670.00
6/16/2017 Bonus $22,183.01 $ 20,086.79 $ 42,269.80
6/23/2017 PERS C , '$ 4553473 $ 45534.73

$ 64,005.61 S 49,783.01 $ 100,621.52 ' $214,410.14

_pertaining to the buyout amount per individual.

~contract signed November 1, 2016 and effective July 1, 2017, the total hours that

_should have been paid represents 240 hours which is a difference of $ 6,665.00. There

‘are no issues with the sick leave buyout.

C :The explanation for this expenditure is a result of a PERS dispute
‘over prior years. | have no other paperwork on this _
‘expenditure nor were we informed as to the nature of the dispute.

‘There is no information as to the intent of this buyout, nor are there any calculations

jThis amount represents Annual Leave for 362.99 hours. According to the current ASCME

Extt183:7

A



Service Credit Purchase Estimator

14! N_LMQ;.Q

l\.-v T M A N A Pl b b A0 M o i S 3 4 A RN AT S A i 8 N e el A AN WS s AL 3 - t— =
Service Credit Purchase Estimator
You can use our calculalor below to give you an estimaled cost for the purchase of one year of service credit This =
A&
costis based on your salary times the number of months purchased times the « lusnial peraning: based on your Q ==
il
age. :
Quick Links Special note for part-time employees: You should adjust the salary amount you input to refltect what you would eam if you had
Ralifernent Soard Business worked full-time. A part-ime employee is a member who works less than full-ime according to the employar's full-time work
schedule.
estitnators .
Publications
Which employee group do you belong to? * Regular  Police / Fire
Audio Programs
Whatis your current annual salary (No Comma Necessary)? $112709.50 e
Lagisiative Sessions
What is your current age? 62 years
Refirerneant Security:
Rasunurces & Rasearch
. |
Lagislative Retirement System a
Judicial Retirament Systam
Frequently Askad Questions Total lump sum cost for a 1 year purchase (Principal): $ 39335, 61 o
“ielp
impartant Information Tell me more
Resource Information
Current Evants if you decide to purchase, you must first contact PERS to request a purchase of service agreement.
nformanonal Prograins
2015 Facts You Should Know .
2076 Pensionomics
Positive Impact for Nevada
September 2013
m‘l“ ! )
Securlty | ENTERPRISE
q 2 \
3 = Y W
3(0, OO . ow "j_\“;;j PR SRR 20\kp
Da B3 (ol Jew) 2OV
| 2D 2. OO & RS O
Erite?
hitp:/iwww.nvpers.org/public/oscEstimator(index.jsp mn



® »

L\Q\v\\'\f\o(e

SV T ey Public Empleyees’ Retirement System of Nevada
‘ i '\‘A'%_ 693 W. Nye Lane, Carson Clty, NV 89703 (775) 687-4200 Fax {775) 687-5131
i & 53‘}-@ 5740'S. Eastern Ave. Sulte 120, Las Vegas, NV 89119 (702) 486-3900 Fax (702) 678-6934
o WE& a Toll Free 1-866-473-7768 Website: www.nvpers.org Email: nvpers@nvpers.org
P

A 7
“:m l;? Purchase of Service Program

"'nm,w«)‘

If you have five years of creditable service you may purchase up to a maximum of five years of service credit.
The cost to purchase service is based on your average compensation times the number of months purchased
times the actuarial percentage based on your age. Purchases may be paid in a lump sum, through instaliments
(at 8% interest), or through direct rollover of deferred funds. If you decide to purchase, you must first contact
PERS to request a purchase-of-service agreement.

Special note for part-time employees: Your average compensation is calculated on salary you would have
received had you worked full-time. A part-time employee is a member who works less than full-time
according to the employer’s full-time work schedule.

1. Your Average Monthly Compensation = $12,420.91
(Average of your 36 highest consecutive months of salary)
2. Multiplied by the # of months to be purchased x_12.00
- §149,050.92
3. Purchase Percentage Based on Age = x 33.40 %

(¥ind your age and corresponding % from table bslow)

4. Estimated lump sum cost to purchase additional service = $49,783.01

(Principal)
Purchase Percentages Purchase Percentages
for Regular Members: for Police and Firemen:
Age Percent Age  Percent Age Percent Age  Percent
30o0r 55 38.6 30 or 55 394
under 16.9 56 379 under 24.5 56 38.8
31 17.5 57 37.2 31 252 57 38.1
32 18.1 58 36.5 32 25.8 58 37.4
33 18.7 59 35.7 33 26.5 59 36.7
34 19.3 60 35.0 34 27.3 60 36.0
35 19.9 61 342 35 28.0 61 353
36 206 62 334 36 28.8 62 345
37 213 63 32.6 37 29.6 63 33.7
38 22,0 64 31.8 38 304 64 33.0
39 227 65 31.0 39 31.2 65 32.2
40 234 66 30.1 o
41 242 67 293
42 25.0 68 284 Jessica Polisso o' RET
43 25.9 69 27.6 Redirement Examiner [ gx@ "e‘%
44 26.7 70 26.7 3§ “’4
45 27.6 71 25.8 s %
46 28.5 7 249 p— 8 " N‘@ERS .
47 29.5 73 241 Corson ity NV 89703
48 30.5 7% 232 e o 4200 L\ &
49 31.5 75 223 ;:ax: (775) 687-5131 . 4‘“
50 32.6 76 214 Toll Free: (866) 473-7768 0 s w9
51 33.7 77 20.5 KIVDEE.OTG
52 34.9 78 19.6
53 36.0 79 18.7 oo
54 373 80 17.8 54 40,1 80 18.9 l
ExmiBr7

Purchase of Service information and calculator are also available on our website at www.nvpers. org.
POS Worksheet.doc

A-2




v . ~ g A waoa
S LU ITULL & Wa vaanaus ...,.,.-._ )

T A N i P TR SEIARY Wy o S ——— - - i B S 08 3N a1 & —p

Welcome 5-4: GARY HAMES ) Emall : ghames@sioreycounty org

b i Last Login : Jan 16, 2015 al 11 41 29

a‘lpﬁﬁj Service Credit Purchase Estimator

e T g s R Y
et

axvvs Ry,

e

"’"" , 5 =~ You can use our caiculalor below to give you an astimated cosl for the purchase of cne year of aervice credit
ol R Page
R This cost is based on your salary limes (he number of months purchased times the acluanal percentage based on Q
THOSE Wi Help
your age

NVPERS Home

Log Off Special note for part-time employwes: You shouig adjust (he salary amount you nput to reflect what you would eam if you had

lo view general information o i 41.tme; A part-vme amployee 1s 3 member who warks less than full-time according (o the mploysr's fuil-time work
schedule

Current Account «

Member Account

Add & Phone Enter Information

Beneflt Estimate Which employee group do you belong to? O Reguiar @ Police / Fire

Purchase Estimate What is your curren! annuel salary (No Comma Necessary)? &

User Seftings What is your curren! age? years

View Annual Statements

Calculate !

Other Member Accounts
Generic Estimators

Benefit Estimator Calculation Results

Purchase Estimator Total iump sum cost for a 1 year purchase (Principai): $5508€.75 LV

s v

Member Forms
Member Newsletters Tell me more
Help

FAQs

Glossary of Terms If you decide 1o purchase, you must first contact PERS to request a purchase of servica agreement

' gom“ — Copyright ® NVPERS 2014 Al Righls Reserved - Terms of Use - Onlinie Privacy Policy
[ Near = $55,0%0.79
EXH1817

A-3

https://www.nvpers.org/secure/oscEstimator/index.jsp



¥ For ool DEACO 1246-1b
Nevada

npENSAahe

YOUR PLAN...
YOUR FUTURE

Nevada Public Employees’ Deferred Compensation Program (NDC)

d Q Payroll Contribution Form
0
Name W\\C\f\ﬁCL E.. N{;\J A Employee ID#
Agency ?) ToR V] CA}Q’\ Ty Daytime Telephone_ 1 75,- A\ 1- O |~
D Change Paycheck Deduction B/New Paycheck Deduction **STOP HERE!I**

**You must complete an EZ Enroliment form or
enroll online with Voya Financial® to set up an account.

EMPLOYER: [ state of Nevada [NV System of Higher Education (NSHE) mance Partner
(City, County, Non-State)

PAYCHECK DEDUCTION AMOUNT: Cm
| authorize my Employer t MMWWWWWmum»SMJ&perpay-periad)
fromrmysatary : X

e * NoTes For Boyoon

% s Pre-Tax (Regular) Post-Tax (Roth)
: s_Ale, OGO $

If you wish to cancel/suspend current payroll deduction, please indicate $0. This form\will supersede any
previous form(s) on file.

CHECK BOX IF APPLICABLE*:

D Age 50+ Catch-Up: Date of Birth / /
You must reach age 50 by the end of the calendar year you are electing to use this catch-up provision.

B/Special 457{b) Catch-Up Election
You must include a copy of the investment provider calculation sheet submitted to the
recordkeeper to ensure eligibility.

*Please note that you cannot use both the Age 50+ and the Special Catch-up provision at the same time. You need
to choose the option most beneficial to you.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

This agreement will be effective the first full payroll period of the month following the date this form is
received and processed by the payroll department.

Signature%ﬁﬂf/ /';ézh-_ pate_ 1 - B 2O\,

P Please send the completed form to NDC
Fax: 775.684.3399

Email: deferredcomp@defcomp.nv.gov

Voya Financial® 1.866.464.6832

Nevada State Library and Archives Building, 100 N. Stewart Street, Suite 210, Carson City, | B
Phone 775.684.3397 | Fax 775.684.3399 | Website hitp://defcomp.nv.qov/

EKttei3r 7=



fFoe, Pxyrol OBXYED -1 32017

Nevada

uRlEred Lonmoensaton

YOUR PLAN...
YOUR FUTURE

Ly
]

Nevada Public Employees’ Deferred Compensation Program (NDC)

Payroll Contribution Form
A 904
Name f‘{\ \C\'\ agl Nf_\)‘.h Employee ID#
(<o Rt ( ¢ O - ’
Agency_ . T\o&&u} = JA MY Daytime Telephone | 75 %y 1- OYy ]
mange Paycheck Deduction D New Paycheck Deduction **STOP HERE|!**

**You must complete an EZ Enroliment form or
enroll online with Voya Financial® to set up an account.

EMPLOYER: []State of Nevada [JNV System of Higher Education (NSHE) m’(iance Partner
(City, County, Non-State)

PAYCHECK DEDUCTION AMOUNT:

I authorize my Employer to deduct the following amount(s) per pay period (minimum $12.50 per pay period)

from my salary to NOC: ¥ Foa. Qauv\oo\- valr AL
Pre-Tax (Regular) Post-Tax (Roth)
7~ y
FOVA 2 s
- ,/...‘, T T 0 O

If you wish to cancel/suspend current payroll deduction, please indicate $0. This form will supersede any
previous form(s) on file.

CHECK BOX IF APPLICABLE*:

D Age 50+ Catch-Up: Date of Birth / /
You must reach age 50 by the end of the calendar year you are electing to use this catch-up provision.

B{pecial 457(b} Catch-Up Election
You must include a copy of the investment provider calculation sheet submitted to the
recordkeeper to ensure eligibility.

*Please note that you cannot use both the Age 50+ and the Special Catch-up provision at the same time. You need
to choose the option most beneficial to you.

EFFECTIVE DATE:
This agreement will be effective the first full payroll period of the month following the date this form is
received and processed by the payroll department.

Signature 7,//%//‘/4’14/ / "Zé'tL Date /i/ZI; /&

Please send the completed form to NDC
Fax: 775.684.3399

Email: deferredcomp@defcomp.nv.gov

Voya Financial® 1.866.464.6832

Nevada State Library and Archives Building, 100 N. Stewart Street, Suite 210, Carson City, 5 -/
Phone 775.684.3397 | Fax 775.684.3399 | Website hitp://defcomp.nv.gov/

ExvtB¢T




STOREY COUNTY
NOTICE OF TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

Veoin Wi chael E.

LAST NAME FIRST MI

Hire Date Last Day Worked Date Terminated Position

1-1-1980 12-30-2016 12-31-2016 Public Works Director
Rate of Pay

1. Has employee returned all assigned County Property including:

a. Keys

b. Tools and Equipment

c. Manuals, Books, Charge Cards, etc.

d Cellular phone

¢. ____ Uniform, including pants, button-up shirt, hat, t-shirt, and any other

Fire District owned items.
f. Badge

2. (Optional) Supervisor and or employee explanation or comments regarding
termination: ;

[ certily under pcnalty of perjury that the above is correct.

A//Z/J&M& ( / /7// / 2L

Employee Signature Date

I certify under penalty of perjury that the above is correct

% ..////,y[, . - 2 v P g
) mplovu Sagnaunc Date

PAYROLL ONLY:

RegularPay $§ —&~  OvertimePay$ Other§ -

Vacation Pay $_\3M_Q&D Sick Leave Pay § S0 06 Dev '73'%3)5 \D\
TOTALFINALCHECKS __ Date Paid: Agreement Y/N DD/LC

Gress  _28606,04

Delete: AL/SL v Termed AS400 ‘/ Copy for PERS f EXMLBIT
Deductions v~ dtd 1,204/

B8-2



Melissa Field

From: Pat Whitten

Sent: Thursday, January 12, 2017 11:39 AM

To: Austin Osborne

Cc: Hugh Gallagher; Jennifer McCain; Melissa Field; Jessie Fain
Subject: Re: Mike Nevin

| concur with Austin's comments and actions.

Pat Whitten - Storey County Manager

Sent from my iPad

OnJan 12, 2017, at 11:29 AM, Austin Osborne <aosbarne@storeycounty.org> wrote:

Hugh,

Mike Nevin announced his retirement at the time that the former CBA and current policy were and are
effective, respectively. Bargaining with the AFSCME group at that time was still in negotiations, As you
know we make strong effort to treat all employees, management and non-management, equitably, that
including the offering of sick and annual leave accrual and payout. Mike's leave payout shall conform to
current policy and it is consistent with the prior CBA.

Austin

From: Hugh Gallagher

Sent: Thursday, January 12, 2017 9:06 AM
To: Austin Osborne

Subject: Mike Nevin

Austin

Just a reminder that we need the explanation pertaining to Mike Nevin's adjustment on Annual Leave. |
don’t feel comfortable issuing the check until | have the directive.

Thanks,
Hugh

<image001.jpg>
Hugh Gallagher
Storey County Comptroller
PO BOX 432

Virginia City, NV 89440

Office: 775-847-1006
Cell: 775-291-4508
Fax: 775-847-1151

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider

Ex K37

8-3



For Oaycoll Doden 12-1o-lo
Nevada

Deterred Compansaticr

YOUR PLAN...
N YOUR FUTURE

‘e

Nevada Public Employees’ Deferred Compensation Program (NDC)
Payroll Contribution Form
# o0 v

Name Eh( (E,“ Q‘ﬂn \'\ﬁ\_,‘mgg Employee ID#

Agency %TD( E'_M‘ QOQ AW (%] Daytime Telephone

E Change Paycheck Deduction [:' New Paycheck Deduction **STOP HERE!|**
**You must complete an £Z Enroliment form or
enroll online with Voya Financial® to set up an account.

EMPLOYER: []state of Nevada [NV System of Higher Education (NSHE) XAI liance Partner
(City, County, Non-State)

PAYCHECK DEDUCTION AMOUNT: CW\‘C:
| authorize my -mployer t feuewingamoum(s)mm(-mimmum—f&}&saperpay period}—

frem-my-salary Yo NDC: NOTE S foa boqoo-\-
%f - Pre-Tax (Regular) Post-Tax (Roth)

'\f \
$ 3,‘_]' @ e QIR

VAN, /

If you wish to cancel/suspend current payroll deduction, please indicate $0. This form will supersede any
previous form(s) on file.

"

CHECK BOX IF APPLICABLE™:

(] Age 50+ catch-Up: DateofBirth __ /  /
You must reach age 50 by the end of the calendar year you are electing to use this catch-up provision.

E[ Special 457(b) Catch-Up Election
“Wou must include a copy of the investment provider calculation sheet submitted to the
recordkeeper to ensure eligibility.

*Please note that you cannot use both the Age 50+ and the Special Catch-up provision at the same time. You need
to choose the option most beneficial to you.

EFFECTIVE DATE:
This agreement will be effective the first full payroli period of the manth following the date this form is
received and processed by the payroll department.

Signature /;/ [ l’\ ///l:’/v Date ',7 bg_)f [/;2 O//é'
a4

Please send the completed form to NDC
Fax: 775.684.3399
Email: deferredcomp@defcomp.nv.gov

E Xt B
Voya Financial® 1.866.464.6832

Nevada State Library and Archives Building, 100 N. Stewart Street, Suite 210, Carson City .
Phone 775.684.3397 | Fax 776.684.3399 | Website hitp://defcomp.nv.gov/



Foe Pagrol) Draveo - 1613

Nevada
Deferred Compensation

YOUR PLAN..,
YOUR FUTURE

Nevada Public Employees’ Deferred Compensation Program (NDC)
‘ﬁ-"bo‘-( Payroll Contribution Form

vame Daaacll Dean Wewno0c Employee 108

Q ) — )
Agency . ) Y'C)(-'\E_w{ Cru«'\“Tu{ Daytime Telephone__ |\ ~ B22(p

[X] change Paycheck Deduction [_] New Paycheck Deduction **STOP HERE!1**
“*You must complete an EZ Enrollment form or
enroll online with Voya Financial® to set up an account.

EMPLOYER: []State of Nevada [] NV System of Higher Education (NsHE) )Y(Alliance Partner
(City, County, Non-State)

PAYCHECK DEDUCTION AMOUNT:
I'authorize my Employer to deduct the following amount(s) per pay period (minimum 512.50 per pay period)

from my salary to NDC: * NoTC ¢ For. Q)\)\{OO“T
Pre-Tax (Regular) Post-Tax (Roth)

fCY\ /A

OVA s 32,1%5.0\ s

If you wish to cancel/suspend current payroll deduction, please indicate $0. This form will supersede any
previous form(s) on file.

CHECK BOX IF APPLICABLE*:

D Age 50+ Catch-Up: Date of Birth / /
You must reach age 50 by the end of the calendar year you are electing to use this catch-up provision.

Special 457(b) Catch-Up Election
You must include a copy of the investment provider calculation sheet submitted to the
recordkeeper to ensure eligibility.

*Please note that you cannot use both the Age 50+ and the Special Catch-up provision at the same time. You need
to choose the option most beneficial to you.

EFFECTIVE DATE:
This agreement will be effective the first full payroll period of the month following the date this form is
received and pr6 by the payroll department.

-

Date ﬁ thN*‘z’ 20\7

Please send the completed form to NDC
Fax: 775.684.3399

Email: deferredcomp@defcomp.nv.gov

Voya Financial® 1.866.464.6832

Nevada State Library and Archives Building, 100 N. Stewart Street, Suite 210, Carson City C -
Phone 775.684.3397 | Fax 775.684.3399 | Website hitp://defcomp.nv.gov/

o < L
A\P“ ety ¢ % =S t\. ——
\ " TN ]C\\_‘

Signature_
V

( /1

EXH08T



_ g roe PO W\ P e Y o e N Y A P R I
Jp' Nevada: ST
. a Deferred Payroll Contribution Form

Compensation

#o
Name Coaav;. Hames Employee ID#__ OS2

Agency g‘ B(‘s(-r ek (S“’“"! (-G“N‘k“ Daytime PhoneL'TT ‘53 742 - 982

Change Paycheck Deduction || New Paycheck Deduction *STOP HERE!!**
Increase, Decrease, Discontinue **You must complete an EZ Enroliment form OR

Enroll Online with Voya Financial® to set up an account.
Please initial here if you enrolled online

EMPLOYER: [JState of Nevada [] NV System of Higher Education (NSHE) Alliance Partner
(City, County, Non-State)

PAYCHECK DEDUCTION éMOUNT: YO Cs DUAE
| authorize my Employer MMWWMm‘ﬁNWymrM—
fromrmy-salary o NDC: ¥ NO*E?. R)@v?);qo\)-\—

_ & e Pre-Tax (Regular) Post-Tax (Roth)

\

s 33,000.00 $

If you wish to cancel/suspend current payroll deduction, please indicate $0. This form will supersede any
previous form(s) on file.

CHECK BOX IF APPLICABLE":

[ ] Age 50+ catch-Up: DateofBith /4
You must reach age 50 by the end of the calendar year you are electing to use this catch-up provision.

Special 457(b) Catch-Up Election
You must include a copy of the investment provider calculation sheet submitted to the recordkeeper
to ensure eligibility.

*Please note that you cannot use both the Age 50+ and the Special Catch-up provision at the same time. You need
to choose the option most beneficial to you.

will be effective the first payroll period of the month following the date this form is
essed by the payroll department.

received and pr

Date ,2] QSIIC;

Signature

Please send the completed form to NDC
Fax: 775.684.3399

Email: deferredcomg@defcomg.nv.gov

EXH1B7T
Voya Financial® 1.866.464.6832

Nevada State Library and Archives Bullding, 100 N Stewart Street, Suite 210, Carson Clty, NV 89701
775 684 3397 | Fax 775 6B4.3399 | 114 i/inicomp.ny.govl



\jca pf-‘q_ro\\ Oereo G- 19

Q' g Nevada Payroll Contribution Form

Compensation

# Q2.
Name G\G()\u‘ —b \-\ﬁa)ﬂ:b'_ Employee ID# -

Agency_yToaby CoanTiy  DaytimePhone (119) 192 - %24,

[X] change Paycheck Deduction [ ] New Paycheck Deduction *STOP HEREN™
Increase, Decrease, Discontinue “*You must complete an EZ Enrollment form OR
Enroll Ontine with Voya Financiai® to set up an account.

Pleasa initial here if you enrolied online

EMPLOYER: []State of Nevada [ NV System of Higher Education (NSHE) @{omk:al Subdivision
(City, County, Non-State)

PAYCHECK DEDUCTION AMOUNT:
| authorize my Employer to deduct the following amount(s) per pay period (minimum $12.50 per pay period)

from my salary to NDC: % Norte © e o gov‘uo N
Pre-Tax (Regular) Post-Tax (Roth)

VO\//} s A0 O0%L.. 19 s

If you wish to cancel/suspend current payroli deductlon, please Indicate $0. This form will supersede any
previous form(s) on file.

CHECK BOX |[F APPLICABLE*:

[] Age 50+ catch-Up: DateotBith /|
You must reach age 50 by the end of the calendar year you are electing to use this catch-up provision,

E Special 457(b) Catch-Up Election
You must include a copy of the investment provider calculation sheet submitted to the recordkeeper

to ensure eligibility.

*Please note that you cannot use both the Age 50+ and the Special Catch-up provision at the same time. You need
to choose the option most beneficial to you.

ill be effective the first payroll period of the month following the date this form is
ed by the payroli department.

e S pate_ L (13/2017

Signature

Please send the completed form to NDC
Fax: 775.684.3399
Email: deferredco defcomp.nv.gov

Voya Financial® 1.866.464.6832
Exmide T

Nevada State Library and Archives Building, 100 N, Stewart Street, Suite 210, Carson City, NV 89701
775.684.3307 | Fax 775.684.3309 | hup:/Klofcomp.ny.gov/ E - /

é\,‘\fﬂ(:\‘l SN Y (E L‘-LL,. s
RN 2 u\]



NeES AT, "
O ‘. Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada

5-" "‘5 693 W. Nye Lane, Carson City, NV 89703 (775) 687-4200 Fax (775) 687-5131
: i 3 5740S. Eastem Ave. Suite 120, Las Vegas, NV 89119 (702) 486-1900 Fax (702) 678-6934
R NVPERS . Toll Free 18664737768 Website: www.nvpers.org Email: nvpers@nvpers.org

3, - i

‘\I) > ".

s e # Purchase of Service Agreement

SECTION I - General Terms and Conditions

This Agreement is entered into on May 19, 2017, between Storey County, Employer # 320,
hereinafter referred to as "Agency", and the Public Employees® Retirement System of Nevada,
hereinafter referred to as "PERS", on behalf of Gary D Hames, SSN# N hereinafter
referred to as “Member”.

This purchase is for 0 years, 8 months, and 14 days of additional Police/Fire service for Member.

Total Due Date: July 18,2017

[dentification #: 3

Amount of Principal $45,534.73
Total Amount Due by lump-sum payment $45,534.73

SECTION II - Allocation of Payments

Upon completion of this Agreement, one hundred percent (100%) of the Agency’s payment will
be credited to Member’s employer contribution account, Employer contributions are not
refundable to Member upon termination of membership in PERS.

Approwsas” N2 wf
e 2O\

Exh‘/b’/f
D- 2



RN

STOREY COUNTY
EARLY RETIREMENT
INCENTIVE PROGRAM
APPLICATION

NAME: "

CURRENT JOB CLASS: Senior Administrative Specialist
DEPARTMENT: Commissioner Office

[ hereby apply for carly retirement program benefits. By my imitials in the blocks below, I
agree to the terms and conditions of program participation:

My application for early retirement program benefits must be submitted by June 1, 2012.

If accepted into the program, I must retire from S;t;)rcy County employment no later than
June 30, 2012. ~

By accepting the benefits of this program, I waive all rights to apply for or be considered
for Storey County employment in any job class in which [ have previously worked.

If accepted in the program, my date of retirement will be June 28,2012.

By signing below, I am accepting the purchase of two (2) years of retirement and I'm electing
to receive a one-time cash payment of § f— . )

Signature _Date : i L

"~ NOTICE OF DETERMINATION
Your application for benefits under the Early Retirement Incentive Program has been

(] Accepted [ ] Denied
Date

By

Personne] Director

L

By Date

County Manager
ACCEPTANCE OF DETERMINATION
[ hereby confirm my application for benefits

under.t—he Early Retirement Incenfive Program and my acceptanc Ml -
which I have initialed above. I will retire from Storey County on ( E xit18:7

application.
. E
Date

Signature




PAY RE

Department: X
Employee: Employee No.:
Title:
Grade:
Step:
Dollar Amount:
Hours:
Effective Date:
Account No.: EEO:
This DOESN'T  change the above employee's anniversary date to the effective date.
DOES change the above employee's anniversary date to:
JUSTIFICATION: Reclass payroll expense to new Fund per 2014-15 Budget.
APPROVED DENIED
Signed this day of ,2014
Austin Osbome
Adminstrative Officer
[ Emailed to PR
PAYROLL
___ New Hire ___ Raise
Longevity Updated
Fire AL/SK Fire Holiday
Retro Pay To be paid on: Amount:
Update Excel Worksheet
Update AS400 BiWeekly:
AFSCME Dues Hourly:
OT:
PERS Month Misc:
EximiBrsT
Ready to file PR Enter

S~















Exhibit A - Board approved CBA Article I from August 15, 2017
ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION

[. The Employer hereby recognizes the Union as the exclusive collective bargaining unit for all
Employces in the Supervisory and Non-Supervisory bargaiming umit éngaged in fire
prevention and suppression in the Storey County Fire Protection District (District). The
bargaining unit, Storey County Fire Fighters” Association IAFF Local 4227, represents both
the Supervisory and the Non-Supervisory bargaining units. This Agreement complies with
NRS 288 by separating supervisory and non-supervisory employees into separate units as
follows:

4. Rargaining Unit A (Non-Supervisory): Pursuant to the provisions of the Local
Government Employee Management Relations Act, Statutes of Nevada, the
District recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining agent for all non-
supervisory District employees listed in Section 2 of this Article.

b.  Bargaining Unit B3 (Supervisory): Pursuant to the provisions of the Local
Government Employee Management Relations Acl, Statutes of Nevada, the
District recognizes the union as the exclusive bargaining agent for supervisory
District cmployees listed in Section 2 this Article.

2. The following job class(es) shall be covered by this Agreement:

g Senor Fircfightet’ AEMT - Non Supervisory Unit

b, Semor Firefighter/Paramedic - Non-Supervisory Unit

¢, Fire Captain - Supervisory

3. In the event the Employer creates a new job classification that will be placed in cither
hargaining urut or gnwnds the job reguirements of an existing job classification within cither
bargaining unit, the Employer will notify the Union as to their intended action and allow Union
input prior to adoption. Where the proposed changes or change impacts matters within the
scope of mandatory bargaining as specified in NRS 288 and this Agreement, upon reguest
from the bargaining agent, the Employcer will enter into negotiations to the extent required by
law or this Agreement,

Page 4 of 5



Exhibit B - CBA Article I as amended per this MOU
ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION

I. The Employer hereby recognizes the Union as the exclusive collective bargaining unit for all
Employees in the Supervisory and Non-Supervisory bargaining unit engaged in fire
prevention and suppression in the Storey County Fire Protection District (District). The
bargaining unit, Storey County Fire Fighters' Association IAFF Local 4227, represents both
the Supervisory and the Non-Supervisory bargaining units.

o

The following job class(es) shall be covered by this Agreement:

a. Senior Firefightert/AEMT - Non Supervisory Unit
b. Senior Firefighter/Paramedic - Non-Supervisory Unit
¢. Fire Captain — Supervisory Unit

3. In the event the limployer creates a new job classification that will be placed in either
bargaining unit or amends the job requirements of an existing job classification within either
bargaining unit, the Employer will notify the Union as to their intended action and allow Union
mput prior to adoption. Where the proposed changes or change impacts matters within the
scope of mandatory bargaining as specified in NRS 288 and this Agreement, upon request
[rom the bargaining agent, the Employer will enter into negotiations to the extent required by
law or this Agrecment,

Page 4 of 4

Page 5 of 5















A2

143!

Standard T&C’s

Exhibit A
VIEVU Solution - Standard Terms and Conditions

RIGHTS TO THE VIEVU SOLUTION

License Grant. During the Term and subject to the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, VIEVU hereby grants to
Customer a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-
sublicenseable right and license to: (a) access and use,
solely in object code form, VIEVU's proprietary software
(the "Camera Software”) solely to the extent installed on the
Cameras; and (b) the right to display, access and use the
Subscription Software solely for Customer's internal
operations. The Customer acknowledges that use of the
Subscription Services requires the installation and use of
certain on-premise software (the "On Premise Software”),
each of which is subject to a separate license agreement
between the Parties. As between the Parties, all Intellectual
Property rights, distribution rights and all other proprietary
rights to the VIEVU Solution remain solely with VIEVU.

License Restrictions. Customer will not and will not attempt
to: (a) reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble, or
otherwise attempt to derive the source code or structure of
the software used in the VIEVU Solution or in any Add- On
Services; (b) provide, lease or lend the VIEVU Solution or
any Add-On Services to any third party except as expressly
authorized hereunder; (c) remove any proprietary notices or
labels displayed on the VIEVU Solution, an Add-On Service
or the Documentation; (d) create a derivative work of any
part of the VIEVU Solution or any Add On Service; (e) use
the VIEVU Solution or any Add-On Service for any unlawful
purpose; or (f) create Internet “links” to or from the VIEVU
Solution or any Add- On Service, or “frame” or “mirror” any
of VIEVU's content which forms part of any Add-On Service
or the VIEVU Solution. Customer may use the VIEVU
Solution and the Add-On Services only for Customer's
legitimate business purposes and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, including without limitation
laws and regulations applying to privacy and personal
information. Customer is solely responsible for ensuring
that only authorized personnel of Customer have access to
the VIEVU Solution and the Add-On Services.

Use Restrictions. Customer agrees that it will not and will
not permit any Authorized User to use VIEVU Solution or
any of the Add-On Services to: (a) intentionally or
unintentionally viclate any applicable local, state, national
or international law, including, but not limited to, any
regulations having the force of law; (b) upload, post, e- mail,
otherwise transmit or post links to any content that the
Customer does not have a right to transmit under any law
or regulation or under contractual or fiduciary relationships
(such as inside information, or proprietary and confidential
information learned or disclosed as part of employment
relationships or under nondisclosure agreements); (c) to
upload, post, e-mail, otherwise transmit, or post links to any
material that contains software viruses, worms, Trojan
horses, time bombs, trap doors or any other computer code,
files or programs or repetitive requests for information
designed to interrupt, destroy or limit the functionality of any
computer software or hardware or telecommunications
equipment or to diminish the quality of, interfere with the
performance of, or impair the functionality of the network
of VIEVU; and/or

(d) to infringe any patent, trademark, service mark, trade
secret, copyright or other proprietary rights of any party, or
contribute to inducing or facilitating such infringement.
VIEVU reserves the right to delete or remove any content
that may violate a third party's copyright upon receipt of
notice of such violation by the third party holder of said

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

22

2.3.

Page 1 of 6

right. Customer agrees to indemnify and hold VIEVU and its
officers, directors, employees and agents of any of the
foregoing ("VIEVU Indemnitee”) harmless from and against
claims, losses, damages, liabilities, fines, penaities, costs
and expenses incurred by any VIEVU Indemnitee as a
result of Customer's breach of any of the provisions of this
Section 11 of this Agreement. Customer is responsible for
maintaining the confidentiality of any non-public
authentication credentials associated used to gain access
to the VIEVU Solution and Customer agrees to promptly
notify VIEVU about any possible misuse of any logonor any
security incident related to the VIEVU Solution.

Third Party Programs. The Add-On Services are Third Party
Programs. The third party owner, author or provider of such
Third Party Programs retains all ownership and intellectual
property rights in and to that content, and Customer's rights
to use such Third Party Programs are subject to, and
governed by, the terms applicable to such programs as
specified by such third party owner, author or provider,
unless otherwise specified on the Cover Sheet.

Authorized User Accounts. For the Add-On Services,
Customer is entitled to the number of users set forth on the
Cover Page. Customer is permitted to assign a user
account only to its Customers employees, agents,
contractors and subcontractors and other authorized third
parties (each an “Authorized User”). Customer will be fully
responsible for the acts of its Authorized Users. If in any
period it is determined that the number of users in a period
exceeds the amount of Authorized User subscriptions
purchased, VIEVU will notify Customer in writing and
Customer will immediately pay to VIEVU any amounts that
should have been paid.

Storage Access. Data storage is subject to the usage limits
specified on the Cover Sheet.

CONFIGURATION AND UPDATES

Camera Configuration. Unless otherwise set forth on the
Cover Sheet, Customer is responsible for configuring the
Cameras and implementing the VIEVU Solution in
accordance with the instructions provided by VIEVU (the
"Deployment Setup Guide").

Updates to Subscription Software. VIEVU may make
changes or updates to the Subscription Software (such as
infrastructure, security, technical configurations,
application features, etc.) during the Term, including to
reflect changes in technology, industry practices, patterns
of system use, and availability of Third Party Programs. The
functionality of the Subscription Software is subject to
change at VIEVU's discretion; however, such changes or
updates will not result in a material reduction in the
functionality of the Subscription Software. All
improvements, enhancements, modifications, and/or
changes to the Subscription Software will be done
automatically and remotely by VIEVU.

Software Updates. To enable optimal access, VIEVU may
verify the version of the Camera Software and/or the On
Premise Software used by Customer and recommend
Customer download and install updates, with or without
notice, to the Cameras. Failure to install updates to the
Camera Software or the On Premise Software, as
applicable, may affect Customer's ability to use certain
functions of the VIEVU Solution.

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS AND THIRD PARTY
PROGRAMS

January 1, 2016



3.1.

3.2

6.1,

7.2

Standard T&C's

Exhibit A
VIEVU Solution - Standard Terms and Conditions

Service Specifications. The VIEVU Solution is subject to
and governed by the Service Specifications. Customer
acknowledges that use of the VIEVU Solution in a manner
not consistent with the Service Specifications may
adversely affect the performance of the VIEVU Solution, the
availability of any applicable warranty, and/or may result in
additional fees.

Camera Specifications. The Cameras are subject to and
governed by the Hardware Specifications. Customer
acknowledges that use of the Cameras in a manner not
consistent with the Hardware Specifications may adversely
affect the performance of the Cameras, the availability of
any applicable warranty, and/or may result in additional
fees.

PAYMENT

Subscription Fees. The Subscription Fees are set forth on
the Cover Sheet, as may be amended or modified by the
Parties from time to time in accordance with Section 15.7.
Subscription Fees will be reviewed from time to time.
Subscription Fees shall be paid on a monthly basis during
the Term.

PAYMENT TERMS.

Customer agrees to pay to VIEVU all Subscription Fees and
other amounts contained in each invoice within thirty

(30) days of the invoice date. All amounts due under this
Agreement will be paid in US Dollars. Payment obligations
are non-cancelable and Subscription Fees are non-
refundable, and all amounts payable will be made without
setoff, deduction or withholding. VIEVU reserves the right
to charge interest at the rate of 1.5% per month (or, the
highest rate permitted by law, if less) on all late payments.
Customer is responsible for any applicable taxes, duties or
other charges.

SERVICE LEVELS, SUPPORT,
MAINTENANCE.

UPDATES AND

VIEVU will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide
the VIEVU Solution, the Add-On Services and the support,
updates and maintenance related thereto in accordance
with industry standards. Customer is entitled to technical
support in English during business hours as set by VIEVU
from time to time at no additional cost. Additionally, during
the Term, the Customer will be entitled to maintenance
upgrades and bug fixes at no additional cost.

SECURITY

VIEVU will use commercially reasonable efforts to: (a)
cause its agents and employees to be informed of and to
agree to be bound by applicable data privacy laws, rules,
regulations, codes, policies, or procedures; and (b)
maintain  industry standard safeguards reasonably
designed to protect the confidentiality and integrity of, and
to prevent unauthorized access to or use of Customer Data.
VIEVU agrees to notify Customer in the event of an actual
breach of its security resulting in unauthorized access to or
use of Customer Data as soon as practical, but in any event
within forty eight (48) hours of discovery of the breach.

Customer will provide any required notices to, and obtain
and keep in effect all consents, authorizations, permits or
licenses that may be required for the installation and
operation of the Cameras, the Add-On Services, and the
VIEVU Solution, including, without limitation any required
consents regarding the processing and/or storage of
Customer Data.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

Page 2 of 6

CONFIDENTIALITY

Disclosure. The Parties acknowledge that, in the course of
performance of this Agreement, one Party (the “Disclosing
Party’) may find it necessary to disclose or permit access
to Confidential Information to the other Party (the
"Receiving Party”) and its personnel. Disclosing Party's
disclosure of or provision of access to, Confidential
Information to Receiving Party's personnel is solely for the
purposes agreed under this Agreement.

Confidential Treatment. Confidential Information disclosed
to a Receiving Party will be held in confidence by the
Receiving Party and not disclosed to others or used except
as expressly permitted under this Agreement or as
expressly authorized in writing by the Disclosing Party.
Each Party will use the same degree of care to protect the
other Party’s Confidential Information as it uses to protect
its own information of like nature, but in no circumstances
less than reasonable care.

Allowances. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this
Section 8.3, Confidential Information may be disclosed by a
Receiving Party: (a) to those of its employees, agents, and
consultants who require it in connection with their duties in
performing such Party’s obligations under this Agreement
and who are contractually or legally obligated to hold such
Confidential Information in confidence and restrict its use
consistent with the Receiving Party's obligations under this
Agreement; (b) to the Receiving Party’s auditors, outside
counsel, accountants and other similar business advisors,
or in connection with an actual or prospective sale or
transfer of assets; and (c) to the extent required by law,
pursuant to a duly authorized subpoena, court order or
government authority, provided that: (i) the Receiving Party
provides the Disclosing Party with sufficient advance notice
of such disclosure requirement or obligation to permit
Disclosing Party to seek a protective order or other
appropriate remedy protecting its Confidential Information
from disclosure; and (ii) Receiving Party limits the release
of the Confidential Information to the greatest extent
possible under the circumstances.

Exceptions. Obligations under Section 7 will not apply to
information which: (a) was in the public domain or generally
available to the public prior to receipt thereof by the
Receiving Party from the Disclosing Party, or which
subsequently becomes part of the public domain or
generally available to the public before any wrongful act of
the Receiving Party or an employee or agent of the
Receiving Party; (b) is later received by the Receiving Party
from a third party, unless the Receiving Party knows or has
reason to know of an obligation of secrecy of the third party
to the Disclosing Party with respect to such information; or
(c)is developed by the Receiving Party independent of such
information received from the Disclosing Party. The terms
of confidentiality under this Agreement will not be construed
to limit VIEVU's ability to use for any purpose the residuals
resulting from access to or work with the Confidential
Information. The term “residuals” means information in a
non-tangible form which may be retained by persons who
have access to the Confidential Information, including
ideas, concepts, know- how, or techniques contained
therein.

TERMINATION

Termination for Cause. This Agreement may be terminated
for a breach of this Agreement by either Party upon thirty
(30) days’ prior written notice to the other Party

January 1. 2016






13.2.

13.3.

13.4.

Standard T&C’s

Exhibit A
VIEVU Solution - Standard Terms and Conditions

returns must be packed in the original, unmarked packaging
including any accessories, manuals, and documentation
that shipped with the product. All Cameras that are returned
unopened are subject to a restocking fee of 10 percent of
the purchase price. All opened but undamaged Cameras
are subject to a restocking fee of 25 percent of the purchase
price. Damaged Cameras are ineligible for return under this
Section 13.1. All return shipping costs are the responsibility
of Customer and will not be refunded. No returned Camera
will be accepted without the original manufacturer's
packaging and a Retum Material Authorization (RMA).

Camera Warranty. VIEVU warrants to Customer that,
provided that the Camera has been stored and used in
accordance with the Hardware Specifications and ordinary
industry practices and conditions, each Camera shall be
free from defects in materials and workmanship and shall
conform in all material respect to the Hardware
Specifications for a period of ninety (90) days from the date
of delivery (the "Initial Warranty Period"), provided,
however, that VIEVU will extend the Initial Warranty Period
for up to a thirty-six (36) months if Customer maintains an
active subscription to the Subscription Software and at the
time of the warranty claim, Customer has paid in full all
amounts due and payable to VIEVU (the "Extended
Warranty Period”). The warranty does not cover: (a)
intentional damage; (b) use that is not consistent with its
intended operation or the Hardware Specifications; (c) any
damage caused by an attempt to open or alter the Camera
or (d) the use of non-VIEVU branded or approved
accessories or replacement parts. VIEVU DOES NOT
WARRANT THAT THE OPERATION OF THE CAMERAS
WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE.

Camera Replacement Under Warranty. In the event that a
Camera does not comply with the warranty set forth above,
Customer should return such non-conforming Camera to
VIEVU in accordance with the instructions located at
http://www.vievu.com/support/warranty-repair/ within the
Initial Warranty Period or the Extended Warranty Period (if
applicable). Upon receipt of the returned Camera during the
Initial Warranty Period or the Extended Warranty Period (if
applicable), VIEVU will repair or replace such non-
conforming Camera at no additional charge to Customer.
Customer agrees that repair or replacement is the sole
remedy available for any Camera maifunction or failure and
agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold VIEVU harmless in
the event any claim is made for remedy, including monetary
damages other than as specifically allowed in this
paragraph.

Disclaimer of Warranty. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET
FORTH IN THIS SECTION 13, VIEVU DOES NOT
GUARANTEE THAT (A) THE VIEVU SOLUTION OR ANY
ADD-ON SERVICES WILL BE PERFORMED ERROR-
FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED, OR THAT VIEVU WILL
CORRECT ALL SERVICES ERRORS, (B) THE SERVICES
WILL OPERATE IN COMBINATION WITH CUSTOMER
CONTENT OR APPLICATIONS, OR WITH ANY OTHER
HARDWARE, SOFTWARE, SYSTEMS, SERVICES OR
DATA NOT PROVIDED BY VIEVU,AND

(C) THE VIEVU SOLUTION OR ANY ADD-ON SERVICE
WILL MEET CUSTOMER REQUIREMENTS,
SPECIFICATIONS OR EXPECTATIONS. CUSTOMER
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT VIEVU DOES NOT CONTROL
THE TRANSFER OF DATA OVER COMMUNICATIONS
FACILITIES, INCLUDING THE INTERNET, AND THAT
THE VIEVU SOLUTION AND ADD-ON SERVICES MAY

14.
14.1.

14.2.

14.3.

14.4.

15.
16.1.

15.2.

Page 4 of 6

BE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS, DELAYS, AND OTHER
PROBLEMS INHERENT IN THE USE OF SUCH
COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES. VIEVU IS NOT
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DELAYS, DELIVERY
FAILURES, OR OTHER DAMAGE RESULTING FROM
SUCH PROBLEMS. VIEVU IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR
ANY ISSUES RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE,
OPERATION OR SECURITY OF THE VIEVU SOLUTION
OR THE ADD-ON SERVICES THAT ARISE FROM
CUSTOMER DATA, APPLICATIONS PROVIDED BY
CUSTOMER OR ANY THIRD PARTY CONTENT. The
foregoing express warranties are limited to VIEVU and are
not transferable and are in lieu of any other warranty by
VIEVU with respect to the VIEVU Solution or the Add-On
Services. VIEVU GRANTS NO OTHER WARRANTY,
EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT
LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPQOSE.

DISCLAIMERS AND LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

Maintenance of Content. The Customer, not VIEVU is
responsible for maintaining all evidence and videos taken
with Cameras. Customer should routinely back up
Customer Data and download all Customer Data from the
Cameras before returning any Camera to VIEVU for repair
or replacement. Customer agrees to indemnify and hold
VIEVU harmless for any evidence or videos that cannot be
recovered from Cameras.

Disclaimer of Consequential Damages. NEITHER PARTY
WILL HAVE LIABILITY WITH RESPECT TO ITS
OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE AGREEMENT OR
OTHERWISE, FOR CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY,
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE DAMAGES, LOSS OF
PROFITS, LOSS DATA, THE COST OF COVER,
SECURITY AND DATA BREACHES, AND FAILURE TO
ACCESS THE VIEVU SOLUTION OR ANY ADD-ON
SERVICES, EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED
OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

Limitation of Liability. VIEVU'S AGGREGATE LIABILITY
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE
AMOUNT ACTUALLY PAID BY CUSTOMER FOR THE
VIEVU SOLUTION DURING THE 12 MONTHS
PRECEDING THE CLAIM.

Other Limitations. The obligations of VIEVU under the
Agreement run only to Customer and not to its affiliates, its
customers, or any other persons. Under no circumstances
will any other person be considered a third-party beneficiary
of the Agreement or otherwise entitled to any rights or
remedies under the Agreement. Customer will have no
rights or remedies against VIEVU except as specifically
provided in the Agreement. No action or claim of any type
relating to the Agreement may be brought or made by
Customer more than one (1) year after Customer first has
knowledge of the basis for the action orclaim.

GENERAL TERMS

Representation and Warranty. Customer represents and
warrants that: (A) it has the power and authority to execute,

deliver and fully perform this Agreement, and (B) the
signatory has the legal authority to bind Customer.

Other Agreements. All references to the Agreement
includes all documents referenced by hyperlink herein, such
documents and agreements being expressly incorporated
herein by reference and include certain legal terms. The
Agreement contains the entire agreement between the
parties. All understandings have been

January 1. 2016












4. Staff summary: Switch Business Solutions, LLC has requested that Storey County grant a
utility easement for 12 existing poles they placed within our Right-of-Way on Ireland Drive and
Peru Drive. These poles are a small portion of their fiber optic feed to/from their Data Center and
are part of their SUPERLOOP System. The remainder of their lines are located on preexisting
easements granted to NV Energy and/or AT&T.



WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

Switch Business Solutions, LLC
¢/o Switch, Ltd.

Attn: Office of General Counsel
7135 S. Decatur Boulevard

Las Vegas, NV 89118

APNs: 005-051-08
005-051-11
005-051-12
005-051-13
005-051-39
005-051-41
005-051-42

Recorder Affirmation Statement: The undersigned hereby affirms that this document,
including any exhibit, hereby submitted for recording does not contain the social security
number of any person or persons (per NRS 239B.030(2)).

GRANT OF EASEMENT

STOREY COUNTY (“Grantor”) for good valuable consideration, receipt of which
is hereby acknowledged, grants and conveys to SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC,
a Nevada limited liability company, (“Grantee”), its successors and assigns, a perpetual right
and non-exclusive easement:

l. to construct, install, operate, add to, modify, maintain, repair, relocate and
remove an overhead or underground electrical or data communications line and
related facilities, including but not limited to, buried lines, aerial lines, and all
appurtenances necessary for Grantee to reasonably exercise the rights granted by
this Easement (“Utility Facilities”) upon, over, under and through the property
described in Exhibit “A” hereby and, by this reference, made a part of this Grant
of Easement (“Easement Area”); and

2. to remove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees, other
vegetation and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area
as Grantee may deem necessary or advisable for the safe and proper use and
maintenance of the Ultility Facilities in the Easement Area.

1
GRANT OF EASEMENT









EXHIBIT A
PROPERTY AND EASEMENT AREA

[Attached Separately]

4
EXHIBIT A



Twelve Poles on Storey County ROW

Switch has placed 12 poles on Storey County ROW.

Beginning on the west side of Ireland Drive at GPS location of 39 32’47.99722”N and
119 29°47.84444”W for the northern most pole. Continuing southwest approx. 400 feet to the
third pole, across Peru Drive on the west side at GPS location of 39 32’44.49387”N and
119 29'50.00469”W, continuing southeast along the west side of Peru Drive to a point
approximately 1000’ north of Denmark Drive.

The survey map showing the pole locations and offsets from the CL of the two named roads
(freland Drive and Peru Drive) clarifies the exact locations of the poles, see Exhibit B attached.

The exact GPS coordinates for each pole are below.

Pole # Location GPS Coordinates

1 Ireland Drive 39¢32'47.99722"N 119¢929'47.84444"W
2 Ireland Drive 39032'46.05837"N 119¢29'47.93087"W
3 Peru Drive 39¢32'44,49387"N 119¢29'50.00469"W
4 Peru Drive 39932'42.70440"N 119¢29'46.41989"W
5 Peru Drive 39$32'41.13579"N 119¢929'43.25645"W
6 Peru Drive 39¢32'39.31154"N 119¢29'41.42257"W
7 Peru Drive 39632'37.49418"N 119¢29'39.60051"W
8 Peru Drive 39¢32'34.97746"N 119¢29'38.19170"W
9 Peru Drive 39932'32.44752"N 119929'36.78629"W
10 Peru Drive 39$32'30.49203"N 119¢29'33.94453"W
11 Peru Drive 39¢32'28.52777"N 119¢29'31.12402"W
12 Peru Drive 39932'26.38606"N 119¢29'29.90252"W



EXHIBIT B
SURVEY MAP

[Attached Separately]

5
EXHIBIT B



























point of generation (i.e. hospitals, doctor offices, dentists, etc...) in open, non-air tight
containers. The closest a typical person comes into contact with any of these wastes is
at their doctor or dentist office (inside the exam room) where the waste is stored in
apen, non-air tight containers.

All of the above referenced medical wastes are not considered or regulated by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Resource and Conservation Recovery Act (RCRA)
as hazardous waste and under Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP)
regulations can be disposed of in a standard landfill without treatment. Some
jurisdictions have adopted more stringent requirements for disposal, including the State
of California and both Washoe and Clark Counties in Nevada. Regardless of where a
waste is ultimately disposed, the local regulations at the point of generation apply to the
disposal. The proposed thermal destruction meets the State of California and the
Washoe and Clark Counties requirements.

Thermal Destruction Process. The medical waste arrives at the site by truck in either
Gaylord boxed or in sealed plastic containers as depicted above. The trucks unload
directly into the facility at the loading docks proposed on the east side of the facility. At
no time are the boxes or containers exposed or stored outdoors. Once inside the
facility, the content of the boxes and containers are emptied into a cart and then the
cart is unloaded into the thermal unit. The boxes are then separately loaded into the
thermal unit and the plastic containers are cleaned and reused. The plastic containers
are cleaned in a machine which utilizes hot water and cleaning agents. No air pollutant
emissions are generated from this washing machine.

In some instances storage of the medical waste in the delivery trucks may be required
due to adverse weather conditions, facility breakdowns or maintenance, or high receipt
volume.

The thermal destruction unit consists of a two-chamber thermal unit followed by a heat
recovery boiler, and then a series of four air pollutant control devices to treat the
exhaust air for the thermal destruction unit prior to discharge to the atmosphere. The
heat content of the medical waste is sufficient to maintain the temperature needed for
thermal destruction of the waste (i.e. process is endothermic). Following the initial pre-
heat cycle using natural gas to bring the thermal unit to operating temperature, the
thermal destruction process operates without the need for natural gas combustion. The
natural gas burners remain on standby in case a disruption in the medical waste feed
occurs and combustion of natural gas is required to maintain operating temperature.

The thermal destruction unit is also equipped with a “power package” that uses the
heat generated during thermal destruction of the medical waste to create steam in the
heat recovery boiler and operate a steam turbine for the production of electrical power.
The steam generated in the recovery boil is condensed back into water and reused in
the boiler, na steam is exhausted from this unit. During normal operation, the facility
will produce significantly more power than it consumes. The applicant plans to
investigate donating power to University of Nevada — Reno or potentially Storey County,
and to selling power to other nearby high energy users. Further discussions between
power users will occur at a later date.

6



The first chamber of the thermal destruction unit, the medical waste is converted into a
combustible gas and ash through a process called gasification. Approximately 80% of
the medical waste is converted to combustible gas and 20% is converted to ash. The
high temperatures achieved in the thermal destruction unit eliminates any biohazard
associated with the medical waste. The combustible gas then goes into the second
chamber where it is combusted. The exhaust from the secondary chamber, which is at
approximately 2,000 degrees Fahrenheit, goes through the heat recovery boiler where
the heat is used to create steam which is then turned into electricity in the steam
turbine. Following the heat recovery boiler, the exhaust stream is routed to four unique
air pollutant control devices. The purpose of the control devices is to remove acid
gases, dioxins, particulate matter and metals from the exhaust stream of the secondary
chamber. These pollutants are partially byproducts of the thermal destruction process
and partially materials present in the medical waste. The pollutant controls devices,
which will achieve virtually complete removal of the pollutants are install in series in the
following order:

1 Lime and activated carbon reactor

o Slaked lime dosed with activated carbon is used to remove acid
gases and dioxins from exhaust stream.

. Exhaust gas contract lime/activated carbon in a reactor where
the acid gases and dioxins absorb to the lime/activated carbon.

. Lime/activated carbon is loaded into unit via a sealed hopper
(no dust production) equipped with a metering screw auger.

o Spent lime/activated carbon is discharged into sealed

containers (no dust production) located inside the facility
building and shipped offsite for disposal/sale.

2 Baghouse

. Baghouse equipped with lime/activated carbon coated filter
bags for the removal of particulates (including lime/activated
carbon from previous process), metals, and further acid gas and
dioxin removal.

. Baghouse removes particulates and materials via filtration and
lime coating on baghouses provides removal of residual acids
gases and dioxins via absorption.

. Solid material removed by baghouse is discharged into sealed
containers (no dust production) located inside facility building
and shipped offsite for disposal/sale.

3. Wet scrubber
o Recirculating wet scrubber with a liquid scrubbing liquor at pH 7
for submicron particle removal and further removal of acid
gases (if needed).
° Exhaust stream is passed through “misting” liquid scrubbing

liquor inside wet scrubbing unit.



° Acid gases are removed by acid neutralization in the scrubbing
liquor and submicron particles are removed via absorption into
the scrubber liquor,

. The vast majority, if not all, of acid gases will be removed by this
stage and wet scrubber serves as a “polishing” removal.
° Water is produced by this unit which is recirculated into the

thermal destruction unit to be used for cooling when needed.

4, Wetted packed tower polisher
° Final pollutant control device designed to remove any residual
pollutants not removed by other control devices.
° Unit is a tower “packed” with Teflon balls dosed with scrubbing
liquor at pH 7.
. Acid gases are removed by acid neutralization in the scrubbing

liquor and submicron particles are removed via absorption into
the scrubber liquor.

. It is important to note that by this stage virtually all of the
pollutants will be removed and this unit services as a “polisher”
and provides redundancy.

. Water is produced by this unit which is recirculated into the
thermal destruction unit to be used for cooling when needed.
. This tower discharges to a 70-foot exhaust stack.

In addition to the above pollutants, the thermal destruction process will also produce
nitrogen oxides (NOx), carbon monoxide (CO), and sulfur dioxide (SO2) which the
pollutant control devices do not provide significant removal, however, these pollutants
are emitted in relatively low quantities compared to other industrial facilities.

£stl d M tobmit (tors/yr)*
w© | VOC (Valatlie Hei 50, NOX
Particulate 4
NaMer {Carbon Olonia Organic {Wydrochloric|  (Sullur [Nitrogen = & He
Monaide) Compounds) acid) Dloxide) | Ovioes) | 1939 | (Cadmum) | (Mercury)
0 la ) 2 xT— Tw_-:u LV ) Ak _k:.'a "; 2 L;V, I JE 93 ) A0 ), 00002 0002

Gl as pldetobar (017 Yaues subied? @ tauge nased on faclhity desipa change< and/ar air nuabity prrmdtic g procec

The above table documents the maximum potential emissions that will meet NDEP
requirements. The NDEP does not allow facilities to operate that will result in the
exceedance of Nalivnal Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) based on air dispersion
modeling. The NAAQS are the pollutant concentrations in the air that the
Environmental Protection Agency has determined to be safe for public air.

In addition, NDEP has a condition in their permits that “Permittee may not discharge or
cause to be discharged, from any stationary source, any material or regulated air
pollutant which is or tends to be offensive to the senses, injurious or detrimental to
health and safety, or which in any way interferes with or prevents comfortable
enjoyment of life or property.



There is no odor expected from what is approved to be release in the air quality permit
and “down-wind” properties are not expected to be impacted by the proposed air
emissions.

F. Safety Issues. In the event of a spill or release of the medical waste, properly trained
facility personnel will clean up the released materials. The wastes do not represent an
airborne threat. A “portal of entry” (a site where an infectious agent enters the body
such as ingestion, break in the skin, etc.) is needed for the waste to represent a threat to
humans. The medical waste is a solid product and cannot “flow” out of the facility. A
cleanup of any released materials is essentially the same as cleaning up garbage that has
spilled with the difference being the training and personal protective equipment (gloves,
face shields, protective garments) is required to ensure no direct body contact with the
medical waste occurs. Similarly, if one of the delivery trucks is involved in an accident
the vehicle and waste containers would be properly labeled such that responders would
be aware of the contents and proper cleanup would occur.

In addition, the medical waste is double contained through all transportation. ECO
provides third-party response to release of medical waste and therefore will have the
full capability to respond to any releases of medical waste that occurs within and
outside of the facility.

As stated in Section 1.D, above, all of the above referenced medical wastes are not
considered or regulated by the U.S Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Resource
and Conservation Recovery Act (RCRA) as hazardous waste and under Nevada Division
of Environmental Protection (NDEP) regulations can be disposed of in a standard landfill
without treatment.

All permitting and reporting will be performed per federal, State of Nevada and Storey
County requirements. The facility will be subject to Title 40 of Federal regulations (40
CFR Part 60 — Standards of Performance for New Stationary Sources, Subpart Ec,
Standards of Performance for Hospital/Medical/infectious Waste incinerators for Which
Construction is Commenced After June 20, 1996) which provides federally enforceable
standards of performance for facilities of this type. Although the proposed facility is not
considered an incinerator, based on meetings with regulatory authorities, the facility
will be subject to these same standards and requirements. These standards include
limits on emitted air pollutants, air quality compliance testing and monitoring and
reporting requirements. The Nevada Division of Environmental Protection — Bureau of
Air Pollution Control, will be the regulatory authority responsible for issuing and
enforcing the air quality operating permit for the proposed facility.

Compatibility and Compliance
A. Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land

uses, zoning classifications and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding
the proposed project.




Land Use Master Plan 1999 Zoning Code | 2015 Zoning Code
= Designation
Applicant’s Land Vacant Industrial 1-2 Heavy 12 Heavy
IS _tndustria Industrial
Land to the North | U.P. Raiiroad line, Industrial 1-2 Heavy 12 lleavy
= ] vacant Industrial industrial

Land to the East USA Parkway, Industrial 1-2 Heavy 12 Heavy
vacant Industrial _Industrial
Land to the South | Pittsburgh Paints, Industria 1-2 Heavy 12 Heavy
o . vacant Industrial | Industrial
Land to the West Pittsburgh Paints, industrial )-2 Heavy 12 Heavy
Tire Rack, vacant . Industria Industrial

Compliance with required height limitations. The 1999 Storey County Zoning
Ordinance Section 17.37.080 states: “No building shall have a height greater than six (6)
stories or seventy-five (75) feet, not including silos, stacks, or equipment.” Based on the
submitted application, the applicant has stated the maximum height proposed is for a
70-foot high exhaust stack, which is consistent with the height limitations.

Compliance with required setbacks. The 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Section
17.37.080 states: No building shall be located closer than fifty (50) feet to any property
line. The applicant has submitted a variance application to allow for the building to be
set within the 50-foot setback (File 2017-046). As a condition of the building permit, the
applicant will be required to demonstrate that no structure will encroach into the
required 50 foot setback or demonstrate that a variance has been granted to allow
encroachment into the setback.

General use allowances and restrictions. The 1999 Storey County Code Section 17.62,
Special Uses (which refers to Section 17.60) identifies the administration for the Board
and Planning Commission for allowing special use permits. The use of “recycling
facilities and operations involving use, recovery or residue of hazardous materials
and/or wastes” and electric or gas power generating plants” are uses subject to a
Special Use Permit. Approval of a Special Use Permit “may only be granted without
substantial detriment to the public good and without substantially impairing the intent
and purpose of any ordinance or resolution and under such conditions as the board may
deem necessary to assure that the general purpose and intent of this ordinance will be
observed, public safety and welfare secured and substantial justice done.” The
approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the Special Use Permit must be based
on findings of fact that the proposed use is appropriate or inappropriate in the location.
The findings listed in Section 3 of this staff report are the minimum to be cited in an
approval.

Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan. This project is located within
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center which the Master Plan states “provides for light
industrial, heavy industrial, commercial, and industrial commercial uses and zones
pursuant to the Development Agreement between Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, LLC.” The property and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center are located
in the McCarran Area Plan which the Master Plan states “depicts a homogenous
planned industrial center located toward the north-centrat part of Storey County nine
miles east of Lockwood. It is home to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center and is dedicated
solely to manufacturing, utility power production, warehousing and distribution, and

10



other heavy- and light-industrial, and commercial uses. The industrial center has grown
to become a major regional hub for distribution, alternative energy production, digital
data management, and highly intensive and experimental industries.” The proposed use
of “recycling facilities and operations involving use, recovery or residue of hazardous
materials and/or wastes” is consistent with the heavy industrial use statements for the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

3. Findings of Fact

A.

Motion for approval. The following Findings of Fact are evident with regard to the
requested special use permit when the recommended conditions of approval in Section
4, Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

(1) This approval is for Special Use Permit 2017-044, a request by the applicant Eco
Compliance Corporation to construct and operate a medical waste thermal
destruction plant and potential commercial power generation from waste. The
subject property is located at 475 Pittsburgh Avenue, Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-
051-54.

(2) The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
McCarran planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion
supporting this finding for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.E of
this staff report and the contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special
Use Permit.

(3) The subject property is located within an existing industrial neighborhood in the
McCarran area of Storey County. The zoning is based on the 1999 Storey
County Zoning Ordinance which identifies this property as -2 Heavy Industrial.
The proposed medical waste thermal destruction plant is defined as a “recycling
facilities and operations involving use, recovery or residue of hazardous
materials and/or wastes” and requires a Special Use Permit.

(4) Granting of the Special Use Permit, with the conditions of approval listed in
Section 4 of this report, will not under the circumstances of the particular case
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons/property in
the neighborhood of the subject property. The project is expected to meet the
safety and health requirements for the subject area. The use will also be subject
to building and fire plan review in order to ensure compliance with federal,
state and other codes.

(5) The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety
hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply
with all federal, state and county regulations.

(6) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum

requirements in the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Sections 17.37 I-2
Heavy Industrial and 17.62 Special Uses.

11



{7) Granting of the Special Use Permit will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons working in the neighborhood or area of the subject property and will
not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to
property improvements in the neighborhood or area of the subject property.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request,
the following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

(1) This denial is for Special Use Permit 2017-044, a request by the applicant Eco
Compliance Corporation to construct and operate a medical waste thermal
destruction plant and potential commercial power generation from waste. The
subject property is located at 475 Pittsburgh Avenue, Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-
051-54,

(2) The conditions under the Special Use Permit conflict with the minimum
requirements in the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Sections 17.37 |-2
Heavy Industrial, 17.62 Special Uses.

(3) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for surrounding use.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

A.

Special Use Permit. This approval is for Special Use Permit 2017-044, a request by the
applicant Eco Compliance Corporation to construct and operate a medical waste
thermal destruction plant and potential commercial power generation from waste. The
subject property is located at 475 Pittsburgh Avenue, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-051-54.

Requirements. The Permit Holder shall apply for all required permits and licenses,
including building and fire permits, for the project within 24 months from the date of
final approval of this Special Use Permit, and continuously maintain the validity of those
permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and void. This permit shall remain valid
as long as the Permit Holder, its heirs, assigns, ar successars remain in compliance with
the terms of this permit and Storey County, Nevada State, and federal regulations.

Permit Contents. This permit incorporates by reference the standards, objectives,
conditions, terms and requirements of all plans, including the operating plan, safety
plan, training plan, and closure plan, to be submitted separately from this permit. The
requirements of all submitted plan, along with support material submitted with the
application, become part of this Special Use Permit.

Allowed Modes of Transport. The facility may receive and distribute medical waste and
the resultant ash/paste via truck and rail. All loading and unloading of materials must

12



occur within an enclosed structure. The structure must meet the requirements of this
special use permit with regard to emergency spill and containment. The Storey County
Community Development Department and Fire Protection District plan review are
required for any proposed rail spur facilities.

Storage. This permit does not authorize any outdoor storage at the site. All storage of
all materials transported to the site and the byproduct created at the site shall be
contained within the proposed building or within an enclosed truck trailer while
awaiting unloading or delivery.

Taxes. Before obtaining a building permit, the Permit Holder must show the building
department valid evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid-to-date.

Emergency Management Plan. The Permit Holder must submit an emergency plan to
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Community Development, Emergency
Management and Planning Departments for review and approval. At a minimum, the
elements of the plan must include disaster management, Emergency Medical Services
(EMS), and environmental protection. This plan shall include industry best practices
implementation in addition to local, state and federal requirements. Specific items to
be included in the plan are as follows. The following list is not exhaustive; the County
may impose additional requirements as necessary. Requirements of State and federal
agencies which fulfill the following may suffice when documentation thereof is
submitted to the governing body and to Storey County.

° Basic company, owner, site, and emergency contact information

o Plot Plan (detailed drawings) of the site and access points

° Site evacuation, gathering points and emergency procedure

. Area evacuation and emergency procedure for each applicable emergency
situation

° Initial and ongoing training and education of county and fire district emergency
response personnel applicable to the subject use, and at the permit holder’s
expense

o Emergency contact procedures, including for the NDEP, Dispatch 9-1-1, and
Storey County Emergency Services

° Facility shut-down and startup procedure

° Special training and identification of any funding for the Fire District and
Emergency Management to address site specific hazards

° Emergency vehicle access, circulation, and staging

@ Documenting and reporting of emergency situations, including spills and
gassing-off of any product.

° Post disaster management, cleanup, and material disposal

. Documenting and reporting of NDEP and other environmental permits and
notices

. Stormwater drainage and detention will be submitted for review and approval
during the plan review and permitting processes

. Facility Closure Plan

° Risk Management Plan

13



o Industry Best Practices shall be utilized when developing any plans for the
facility

° Complete index of MSDS/SDS shall be provided to the Storey County Fire
Protection District, Storey County Community Development Department, Storey
County Local Emergency Planning Committee, Storey County Emergency
Management and Storey County Planning Department

° Community Right to Know Plan and Information shall be maintained and
provided at all times within the facility.

B Copy of all Fire Marshall Permits for Hazardous Materials shall be maintained
onsite and available upon request to Storey County.

° Dates, time and attendees of all drills held at facility shall be maintained on site

and available upon request to Storey County

Transfer of Rights. This Special Use Permit shall inure to the record owner of the
Subject Property and to the Permit Holder and shall run with the land defined herein.
This Special Use Permit, subject to its terms and conditions, may be transferred by the
Permit Holder, its successors, heirs or assigns. Any/all transfers of Special Use Permit
2017-044 shall be advised in writing to Storey County Planning Department 180 days
prior to assignee taking over operation of facility. The operators of the facility must sign
and accept all stipulations and requirements of the Special Use Permit 2017-044. The
operators of the facility must within 60 days of this notice contact Storey County in
order to schedule a consultation with the Storey County Fire District, Emergency
Management Department, and all other applicable federal, state, and local emergency
response agencies, and demonstrate the ability to maintain the level of security, safety,
and conformance with the requirements of this special use permit, including the codes
and regulations of the applicable agencies during and after the transition to new
ownership.

Abandonment. In the event that the use authorized by this Special Use Permit is
abandoned for a period of more than twenty-four (24) calendar months from the date
of last producing operations, this permit shall become null and void and a new Special
Use Permit shall be required. In the event of a force Majeure such as and not limited to
a flood, damage or destruction of the access to the site, earthquake, or other events
beyond the control of Storey County of the Permit Holder, the period of abandonment
shall not be deemed to commence until such time as the permit holder may be found to
once again have reasonable access to the site. In this connection, the permit holder
shall reasonably attempt to establish access to the site.

Closure. The Permit Holder shall be responsible for the cost for the closure of this
facility as permitted under Special Use Permit 2017-044. Complete closure shall consist
of providing reclamation that would eliminate any hazardous materials or
environmental damage to the existing site or adjacent areas proven to be contaminated
by the Applicant’s processes.

Post-Closure Monitoring. In the event that the permit lapses or the use is discontinued
or abandoned, the Permit Holder, its heirs, assigns or successors shall remain
responsible for environmental monitoring and post-closure maintenance. Under no

14



0,

circumstances shall Storey County, its officers, or representatives bare any cost or
responsibility for the deconstruction, disassembly, or removal of equipment or
environmental monitaring or clean-up.

Setbacks. Any proposed buildings and storage tanks and accessory structures containing
chemical substances shall be setback a minimum 50-feet from the property line. Other
accessory structures must meet the standard setback requirements for the 12 zoning.
The fire district may impose more restrictive setbacks on any structure, container, or
apparatus on the subject property when the need for additional separation is
demonstrated. Any additional setbacks based on the use/materials contained within
accessory structures and separation requirements shall be identified. Alternatively, the
Permit Holder shall demonstrate that a Variance to the required setbacks has been
granted by the Storey County Board of County Commissioners,

Nuisances. As stated in Section 17.12.100(A), noise, smoke, odor, gases, or other
noxious nuisances shall be controlled so as not to become objectionable, or adversely
affect the properties in the vicinity, and shall not be detrimental to the public health,
safety and welfare,

Separate Permits Required. This Special Use Permit shall not be construed to be a
permit for design or construction. A separate Storey County plan review, fire safety
review, and building permit will be required. A Nevada Division of Environmental
Protection Chemical Accident Prevention Program (CAPP) along with any required air
quality control permit must be obtained for the project consistent with NRS 278.147
requirements. A copy of the NDEP approval shall be forwarded to Storey County
Planning Department for inclusion with the Special Use Permit. If there is a violation of
NDEP permit, Storey County shall be notified of the violation, corrective action to be
taken and date to be completed.

Legal Responsibility. Issuance of this permit does not convey property rights of any sort
or any exclusive privilege; nor does it authorize any injury to persons or property, any
invasion of other private rights, or any infringement of state or local laws or regulations.

Indemnification. The Permit Holder warrants that the future use of land will conform to
the requirements of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, and applicable federal
regulatory and legal requirements for the production, refining, purification, processing,
dilution, blending, distribution and use of hazardous and non-hazardous chemical
products associated with the microelectronics industry; further, the Permit Holder
warrants that continued and future use of the land shall so conform. The Permit Holder,
its assigns, heirs or successors, agrees to hold Storey County, its officers, and
representatives harmless from the costs associated with any environmental damage,
environmental liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a
result of this special use permit.

Liability Insurance. The Permit Holder, as well as its assigns, heirs or successors, shall
provide proof of insurance to Storey County and maintain a satisfactory liability
insurance for all aspects of this operation under Special Use Permit 2017-044 for a

15



minimum amount of $5,000,000.00 (five million dollars).

Operations Safety. The facility/site design and layout must meet ali Storey County
adopted model codes and amendments, as well as Federal, State and County
environmental, best practices and health/safety requirements.

Emergency response plans and protocols must be established, documented and
practiced prior to operations commencing on site. All operators must be trained and
certified, and plant management will be trained in incident command. Drills must be
practiced annually and jointly with the local emergency responders (at the discretion of
the emergency responders).

All loading and unloading of materials, along with storage of materials must occur within
the structure.

Safety. The following security measures must be implemented at a minimum.

All staff shall be trained for spill containment and cleanup. A copy of the training
shall be submitted to Storey County.

All medical waste shall be double contained.

The property shall be enclosed with a minimum 6-foot high fence and entrances
shall be gated.

The premises must be well lit in order to maintain property security. The lighting
plan shall be designed to provide necessary operation, but not be over obtrusive to
avoid safety hazard(s) for adjacent right-of-ways and/or light poliution, and shall
comply with Chapter 8.02 of the Storey County Code.

No outside storage of materials is permitted or proposed with this application. All
materials will be housed either in the main building or in separate accessory
buildings designed to meet the requirements of this special use permit and any
federal, state, and local regulations.

State/Federal Taxes. Whenever Nevada law requires the payment of a sales and/or use
tax, all materials and equipment purchased or rented for this project should be received
in Storey County and the value reported as ‘county-of-delivery’ on the Nevada Dept. of
Taxation form TXR-01.01 ‘Sales/Use Tax Return’. Proof of appropriate reporting is
required prior to a ‘Certificate of Occupancy’ being issued. Additionally, when
applicable, the Permit Holder shall be responsible for reporting and paying all Federal
Motor Fuels and Lubricants taxes.

Emergency Training. The Permit Holder shall provide and/or pay for any and all special
training and/or equipment needed for the Storey County personnel that is required due
to the operation of the facility. This may include plugging, diking, air monitoring, Level A
response suits or any other item required to properly and safely respond to the facility.
This may also include medical equipment specifically needed for exposure to specific
products, including body substance isolation (BSI) personal protective equipment (PPE)

16



88B.

as needed when operating within the facility.

Emergency Response Training. The facility shall be an active member of the Storey
County Local Emergency Planning Committee. This includes participation as requested
for drills.

Landscaping. A landscaping plan consistent with, but not limited to, the minimum
standards set forth in Subsection 4 of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center’s CC&R’s and
Architectural Committee, as well as Storey County approval, shall be implemented
onsite.

Water and Sewer Connection. The Permit Holder shall provide a ‘Will Serve’ letter from
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center General Improvement District to the Storey County
Building Department for the necessary water and sewer to operate the facility.

Environmental Monitoring. Before operations commence, the Permit Holder shall
submit to Storey County a copy of the environmental monitoring requirements
applicable to the facility under the environmental permits issued for the facility. The
Permit Holder shall include storm water management measures on its site plan which
shall be submitted to Storey County Community Development Department for approval.
Community Development.

Incident Reporting. Any uncontrolled release of hazardous shall be required to be
reported immediately to Storey County Emergency Dispatch via 9-1-1. The incident
shall be immediately reported to Storey County Community Development and Planning
Departments and the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP). The Permit
Holder shall comply with the NDEP’s clean-up requirements and provide Storey County
Emergency Management and Fire District a copy of NDEP’s completion of remediation.
All hazardous materials incident clean-up and response costs shall be borne by the
permit holder as part of the issuance of this special use permit. Incidents exceeding a
standard first alarm response will be billed to the company. If mutual aid is warranted to
suppress an incident, those costs shall also be funded by the company.

Fluid Containment. The Permit Holder shall construct containment systems in areas
where fuels and other types of hazardous materials are being stored or processed to
prevent spills, if any, from entering the environment. The containment system shall be
designed and installed to the satisfaction of the Storey County Community Development
Department and in accordance with model codes.

Air Emissions. Air emissions from the facility shall meet the Nevada Division of
Environmental Protection permit requirements. Copies of the annual reports of
environmental quality, necessary to comply with the requirements of the permit issued
by the Bureau of Air Pollution Control, Nevada Division of Environmental Protection
(NDEP) shall be submitted to Storey County Planning Department. In the event that
there is an air discharge in excess of the standards approved by NDEP under the
construction or operating permit, the permit holder shall provide Storey Community
Planning Department a copy of any notice of the event or plan to remediate the event
submitted to NDEP. If the Permit Holder is required by the Bureau of Air Pollution

17



ccC.

Control, Nevada Division of Environmental Protection to prepare a report on the event,
the permit holder shall submit a copy of the report to Storey County Planning
Development. There shall be no obnoxious odors released into the air that are a
nuisance to abutting properties. The facility wili be subject to Title 40 of Federal
regulations (40 CFR Part 60 — Standards of Performance for New Stationary Sources,
Subpart Ec, Standards of Performance for Hospital/Medical/infectious Waste
incinerators for Which Construction is Commenced After June 20, 1996) which provides
federally enforceable standards of performance for facilities of this type. Although the
proposed facility is not considered an incinerator, based on meetings with regulatory
authorities, the facility will be subject to these same standards and requirements.

Air Pollution Controls. This permit acknowledges the following pollutant controls
devices are to be install in series in the following order:

1. Lime and activated carbon reactor

o Slaked lime dosed with activated carbon is used to remove acid gases
and dioxins from exhaust stream.

. Exhaust gas contract lime/activated carbon in a reactor where the acid
gases and dioxins absorb to the lime/activated carbon.

0 Lime/activated carbon is loaded into unit via a sealed hopper (no dust
production) equipped with a metering screw auger.

® Spent lime/activated carbon is discharged into sealed containers (no

dust production) located inside the facility building and shipped offsite
for disposal/sale.

2. Baghouse

. Baghouse equipped with lime/activated carbon coated filter bags for
the removal of particulates (including lime/activated carbon from
previous process), metals, and further acid gas and dioxin removal.

. Baghouse removes particulates and materials via filtration and lime
coating on baghouses provides removal of residual acids gases and
dioxins via absorption.

° Solid material removed by baghouse is discharged into sealed
containers (no dust production) located inside facility building and
shipped offsite for disposal/sale.

3. Wet scrubber

. Recirculating wet scrubber with a liquid scrubbing liquor at pH 7 for
submicron particle removal and further removal of acid gases (if
needed).

° Exhaust stream is passed through “misting” liquid scrubbing liquor
inside wet scrubbing unit.

. Acid gases are removed by acid neutralization in the scrubbing liquor
and submicron particles are removed via absorption into the scrubber
liquor.

° The vast majority, if not all, of acid gases will be removed by this stage

and wet scrubber serves as a “polishing” removal.

18



DD.

EE.

FF.

GG.

0 Water is produced by this unit which is recirculated into the thermal
destruction unit to be used for cooling when needed.

4. Wetted packed tower polisher

° Final pollutant control device designed to remove any residual
pollutants not removed by other control devices.

. Unit is a tower “packed” with Teflon balls dosed with scrubbing liquor at
pH7.

. Acid gases are removed by acid neutralization in the scrubbing liquor
and submicron particles are removed via absorption into the scrubber
liquor.

° It is important to note that by this stage virtually all of the pollutants will
be removed and this unit services as a “polisher” and provides
redundancy.

° Water is produced by this unit which is recirculated into the thermal
destruction unit to be used for cooling when needed.

° This tower discharges to a 70-foot exhaust stack.

Drainage Protection. All process drains around each unit and site drainage shall be
designed to prevent the discharge of oils to the sewer or septic system and or storm
drain systems. Allsite drainage shall be designed as not to adversely impact
surrounding property owners.

Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP). The Permit Holder shall
demonstrate all required permits from the NDEP have been obtained prior to
commencing the project.

Roadway Development. The Permit Holder shall be required to pave Pittsburgh Avenue
from the edge of existing pavement up to and through the facility’s driveway
approachment(s). The paved roadway shall be at least thirty (30) feet in total width and
include a cul-de-sac near the western driveway entrance, both of which shall be
completed to the satisfaction of the Storey County Fire Protection District, Building,
Planning and Public Works Departments at the applicant’s expense. The permit holder
shall be required to maintain said roadway (i.e., repair and resurface and remove snow
and ice, etc.) until it is developed to the satisfaction of the Starey County Public Works
Director, deeded to Storey County, and accepted as a public right-way by the Board of
Storey County Commissioners. Additionally, should the Permit Holder desire to apply
for infrastructure reimbursement as provided for under the terms of the Development
Agreement between Storey County, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center and DP Operating
Partnership, all applicable requirements contained with the Agreement also apply
including obtaining pre-approval of costs and structuring the project as a Public Works
Project subject to prevailing wage compensation. At that point, Storey County shall
assume the responsibility of maintaining said roadway through deed dedication.

Power Generation. This permit acknowledges the generation of excess electrical
power. Any proposed power purchase agreement or connection to a power facility is a
private agreement and Storey County is not a part of any discussions or negotiations

19



HH.

between other parties. Any proposed physical connections (such as power lines) may
require future Storey County review and/or permitting.

Compliance. The use on the subject property, along with the medical waste materials
transported to the site, must comply with all applicable federal, state, and county codes
and regulations and the submitted plans and reports, as approved. The Permit Holder
must provide the community development department plans drawn to scale prior to
obtaining a building permit. The Permit Holder shall be responsible for maintaining the
premises and managing operations in accordance with all conditions and stipulations set
forth by this Special Use Permit and all other federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
codes and regulations. Failure to comply with the requirements herein shall elicit a
written warning to the Permit Holder by Storey County on the first and second offense.
A third offense shall warrant Storey County to revoke the Special Use Permit. Storey
County shall reserve the right to conduct periodic reviews of the Permit Holder’s
compliance with all conditions and stipulations of the Special Use Permit. In the event of
a life safety issue, standard stop work orders and red tags will be issued as approved
within the fire and building codes.

Storey County may refer this Special Use Permit to the Board of County Commissioners
for show-cause hearing for revocation based on reasons listed in this section. The
procedures for show-cause will be pursuant to Storey County Code. The continuation of
uses of a revoked Special Use Permit is a violation of SCC Title 17 (Zoning) and will be
punishable as provided for therein or other applicable codes. The Special Use Permit
may be referred to show-cause for the following reasons:

. Failure to comply with the SUP conditions, or federal, state, and county
regulations, without appropriate remedy;

o Any misrepresentation made in the application for the SUP or in other official
documents, or amendments thereof, submitted to a federal, state, or local
agency;

° Failure to provide notice to the county on violations, disasters, notice of
decisions, and other such correspondence from federal, state, and local
agencies as required in this SUP.

Public Comment

As of November 7, 2017, Staff has not received any comments from the public.

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

20



Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report.
Those findings should be made part of the approval motion. A motion for denial may be made
and that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of
fact determined appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners should be made part of
either motion.

A

Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff, and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, | (county commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit 2017-044, a
request by the applicant Eco Compliance Corporation to construct and operate a
medical waste thermal destruction plant and potential commercial power generation
from waste. The subject property is located at 475 Pittsburgh Avenue, Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)
005-051-54.

Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by Staff, and the Planning Commission, but in accordance
with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.B of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, | (county commissioner), move to
deny Special Use Permit 2017-044, a request by the applicant Eco Compliance
Corporation to construct and operate a medical waste thermal destruction plant and
potential commercial power generation from waste. The subject property is located at
475 Pittsburgh Avenue, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number {APN) 005-051-54,

21
























Application for a Division of Land into Large Parcels. Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS)
278.471 through 278.4725 defines the requirements for Division of Land into Large Parcels.

Storey County Code (SCC) does not specifically require an application for a Division of Land
into Large Parcel, however, NRS states a proposed Division must comply with NRS 278.471
through 278.4725, which requires planning commission and governing body approval. This
project is not defined as a “Subdivision” by either Nevada Revised Statutes or Title 16 of the
Storey County Code because it is not creating five or more parcels from a single parcel of
land. The division is not considered a “Parcel Map” because of the large size of the
proposed parcels. Division of land into large parcels is exempt from planning commission
and board review and approval if the county adopts an ordinance allowing for such
exemption for parcels of 10 and/or 40 acres in area. Storey County has not adopted such an
ordinance; therefore, the request for division of land into large parcels is subject to planning
commission and board action.

Request for Waiver of Requirement to File a Tentative Map. NRS 278.4715 allows for
Board of County Commissioners to waive the requirement to file a Tentative Map. The
applicant provided a Tentative Map to both staff and the Planning Commission for review.
The items identified by staff to include on the Tentative Map have been added and are
documented on the Final Map which the applicant will provide at the Board of County
Commissioners meeting for consideration.

2. Use Compatibility and Compliance

A.

Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land uses,
zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding the
proposed project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed project and Storey
County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan. The proposed boundary line adjustment
also consistent with the surrounding zoning and master plan designations.

Land Use Master Plan Zoning
Applicant’s Land vacant Resources Agriculture and
Forestry

Land to the north Truckee River, Railroad | Resources Agriculture
corridor, 1-80 corridor,
residential

Land to the east vacant Rasources Forestry

Land to the south vacant Resources Forestry

Land to the west vacant Resources and Agriculture and Heavy
industrial Industrial

Compliance with the Storey County Code - Section 17.24 — Agricultural & Section 17.32 - Forestry
Zones.

The zoning for the proposed new lot configurations will create parcels with dual zoning
districts, sharing Forestry and Agricultural zoning on four of the five lots. There is no
prohibition in the Storey County Code to keep this from occurring, but split zoning of parcels
is discouraged by the 2016 Storey County Master Plan. Any proposed development would
need to be consistent with the zoning that is in the location of the development. The
applicant has indicated to Storey County staff that an application to rezone the parcels to
eliminate the dual zoning on the parcels will be submitted within the next 30 days or less.



Any rezoning requires a separate application and is not a part of this Division of Land into
Large Parcels application.

(1) Storey County Code 17.24 Agricultural and 17.32 Forestry Zones. The proposed
Division of Land into Large Parcels is compliant with the zoning outlined in the
Storey County Code. The properties are currently vacant and any proposed use
would be required to comply with the permissible uses as outlined in the zoning
code. Any development would be required to meet the required setbacks and
building heights. No development is proposed with this application.

(2) Minimum Lot Size. The Agricultural zoning requires a minimum lot area of 3 acres
and the Forestry zoning requires a minimum lot area of 40 acres. The proposed
parcels are a minimum of 40 acres which is consistent with this requirement.

C. Compliance with 2016 Storey County Master Plan
The southern portion of the property is identified in the Storey County Master Plan as a
Transition Zone from Resources to Industrial. Although that may be desired in the future,
no change in zoning, or transition in zoning from the existing Agricultural or Forestry
designations, is proposed at this time. The Division of Land into Large Parcels is not
expected to change the character of the neighborhood and is consistent with the Master
Plan.

Findings of Fact

The Storey County Board of County Commissioners shall cite Findings in a recommended motion for
approval, approval with conditions, or denial. The recommended approval, approval with conditions
or denial of the requested Division of Land into Large Parcels must be based on Findings. The
Findings listed in the following subsections are the minimum to be cited. The Board of County
Commissioners may include additional Findings in their decision.

A.

Motion for Approval. The following Findings of Fact are the minimum to be cited for a

recommendation of approval or approval with conditions. The following Findings are
evident with regard to the requested Division of Land into Large Parcels when the
recommended conditions in Section 4 are applied. At a minimum, an approval or conditional
approval must be based on the following Findings:

(1) The applicant is requesting a Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-045. Two
existing large parcels over 40 acres will be divided and reconfigured to a total of five
large parcels over 40 acres. The subject propertles are located at McCarran
(McCarran Ranch area of the River District), Storey County, Nevada, existing APNs
004-161-16 and 004-111-06.

(2) The Division of Land into Large Parcels complies with NRS 278.471 through 278.4725
relating to the adjustment of two parcels to five parcels, all 40 acres or more in size.

(3) The Division of Land into Large Parcels complies with all Federal, State, and County
regulations pertaining to Parcel Maps and allowed land uses.

(4) The Division of Land into Large Parcels will not impose substantial adverse impacts
or safety hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding vicinity.



(5) The conditions of approval for the requested Division of Land into Large Parcels do
not conflict with the minimum requirements in Storey County Code Chapters 17.24
Agricultural Zone and 17.32 Forestry Zone or any other Federal, State, or County
regulations.

Motion for Denial. Should a recommended motion be made to deny the Division of Land
into Large Parcels request, the following Findings with explanation of why should be
included in that motion.

Q) Substantial evidence shows that the Division of Land into Large Parcels conflicts with
the purpose, intent, and other specific requirement of Storey County Code Chapter
17.24 Agricultural Zone and/or 17.32 Forestry Zone, or any other Federal, State, or
County regulations, including NRS 278.471 through 278.4725.

(2) The Recommended Conditions of Approval for the Division of Land into Large
Parcels does not adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses
or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding uses.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department, unless
otherwise stated.

A.

General requirements. The Division of Land into Large Parcels must comply with Nevada
Revised Statues (NRS) 278.471 through 278.4725 relating to the division and adjustment of
land. The Division of Land into Large Parcels must comply with Federal, State, and County
regulations pertaining to boundary line adjustments and allowed land uses.

Final Map. The applicant shall submit to the Storey County Planning Department a Final
Map for review and approval prior to recordation. The Final Map must show all parcel
boundaries, easements, and right-of-ways. Upon acceptance of the format, and completion
of all other conditions of approval, the Final Map may be recorded. The Final Map must
meet the form and contents pursuant to NRS 278.472.

Access and Easements. Access easements shall be provided for all parcels without frontage
to a public travelled way/right-of-way, or without previous access to a private accessway.
All existing streets, easements, and utility easements, whether public or private, must
remain in effect and be delineated clearly on the Final Map. All utility corridor easements,
including those identified in the Storey County Master Plan, shall be shown on the Final
Map. Per NRS 278.4725, all proposed access roads shall be suitable for use by emergency
vehicles as determined by the Storey County Fire Protection District.

Taxes Paid. Prior to the recording of the proposed Division of Land into Large Parcels, the
Applicants shall submit to the Planning Department evidence that property taxes on the
land have been paid in full for the fiscal year.

Duties of the Parcel Map Preparer. The preparer of the proposed Parcel Map shall meet all
requirements pursuant to NRS 278.471 through 278.4725.



Null and Void. The Division of Land into Large Parcels must be recorded with the Storey
County Recorder within 12 months of the Board’s approval. If the Final Map is not recorded
by that time, this approval will become null and void.

Indemnification. The Property Owner warrant that the future use of land will conform to
requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal regulatory and legal
requirements; further, the Property Owners warrant that continued and future use of the
land shall so conform. The Property Owners agree to hold Storey County, its officers, and
representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or
liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this
Approval.

Corners. Per NRS 278.4725, the corners of each lot are to be set by a professional land
surveyor.

Public Comment

As of November 7, 2017, Staff has not received any comments on the proposed project

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action thereon
as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County Commissioners

upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This Section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is recommended
by Staff in accordance with the findings under Section 3.A of this report. Thase findings should be
made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and that motion should cite one or
more of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact determined appropriate by the
Board of County Commissioners should be made part of either motion.

A.

Recommended Moation (motion for approval)

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings
under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, |
[County Commissioner], hereby move to waive the requirement for filing a Tentative Map
and | hereby approve the Final Map Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-045. Two
existing large parcels over 40 acres will be divided and reconfigured to a total of five large
parcels over 40 acres. The subject properties are located at McCarran (McCarran Ranch
area of the River District), Storey County, Nevada, existing APNs 004-161-16 and 004-111-
06.

Alternative Motion (motion for denial)

In accordance with the Findings under section 3.B of this report and other Findings against
the recommendation for approval with conditions by Staff, and the Planning Commission, |
[County Commissioner], hereby move to deny waiving the requirement for filing a Tentative
Map and | hereby deny the Final Map Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-045.
Two existing large parcels over 40 acres will be divided and reconfigured to a total of five
large parcels over 40 acres. The subject properties are located at McCarran (McCarran



Ranch area of the River District), Storey County, Nevada, existing APNs 004-161-16 and 004-
111-06.

APPENDIX 1

PROPOSED TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP FOR DIVISION OF LAND INTO LARGE PARCELS

- ey

qun‘fs FEE 28 £ (ORAEN







o -
- o
e T et L U T T )

Tt v

11







(d) Except as otherwise provided in NRS 278.329, an easement for public utilities that provide water and
sewer services.

(e) Any existing easements for irrigation or drainage, and any normally continuously flowing watercourses.

(f) An indication of any existing road or easement which the owner does not intend to dedicate.

(g) The name and address of the owner of the land.

4. The planning commission and the governing body or its authorized representative shall not approve
the tentative map unless the person proposing to divide the land has submitted an affidavit stating that the
person will make provision for the payment of the tax imposed by chapter 375 of NRS and for compliance with
the disclosure and recording requirements of subsection 5 of NRS 598.0923, if applicable, by the person
proposing to divide the land or any successor in interest.

(Added to NRS by 1979, 1504; A 1989, 794; 1993, 2574; 1997, 2429; 1999, 895; 2003, 2347; 2007, 1381; 2009, 1117)

NRS 278.4715 Waiver of requirement to file tentative map; designation of easements.

1. The planning commission or, if there is no planning commission, the governing body or its authorized
representative may waive the requirement of filing the tentative map.

2. If the tentative map is filed with the planning commission or with the governing bady or its authorized
representative, the planning commission or the governing body or its authorized representative may within
60 days after the filing of the tentative map designate the location and width of any easements for roads and
public utilities as shown on the master plan if there is one applicable to the area to be divided, or designate
the location and width of any easements for roads and public utilities which may be reasonably necessary to
serve the area to be divided if there is no master plan.

3. The planning commission or the governing body or its authorized representative shall not designate
an easement after the expiration of 60 days from the filing of the tentative map.

(Added to NRS by 1979, 1505; A 1997, 2429)

NRS 278.472 Final map: Filing; form and contents.

1. After the planning commission or the governing body or its authorized representative has approved
the tentative map or waived the requirement of its filing, or 60 days after the date of its filing, whichever is
earlier, the person who proposes to divide the land may file a final map of the division with the governing
body or its authorized representative or, if authorized by the governing body, with the planning commission.
The map must be accompanied by a written statement signed by the treasurer of the county in which the land
to be divided is located indicating that all property taxes on the land for the fiscal year have been paid.

2. This map must be:

(a) Entitled “Map of Division into Large Parcels.”

(b) Filed with the governing body or its authorized representative or, if authorized by the governing body,
with the planning commission not later than 1 year after the date that the tentative map was first filed with
the planning commission or the governing body or its authorized representative or that the requirement of
its filing was waived.

(c) Prepared by a professional land surveyor.

(d) Based upon an actual survey by the preparer and show the date of the survey and contain the
certificate of the surveyor required pursuant to NRS 278.375.

(e} Clearly and legibly drawn in permanent black ink upon good tracing cloth or produced by the use of
other materials of a permanent nature generally used for this purpose in the engineering profession.
Affidavits, certificates and acknowledgments must be legibly stamped or printed upon the map with
permanent black ink.

(f) Twenty-four by 32 inches in size with a marginal line drawn completely around each sheet, leaving an
entirely blank margin of 1 inch at the top, bottom, and right edges, and of 2 inches at the left edge along the
24-inch dimension.

(g) Of scale large enough to show clearly all details.

3. The particular number of the sheet and the total number of sheets comprising the map must be stated
on each of the sheets, and its relation to each adjoining sheet must be clearly shown.

13






(a) Offer to dedicate for public roads the areas shown as proposed roads or easements of access, which
the governing body may accept in whole or in part at any time or from time to time,

(b) Offer to grant the easements shown for public utilities, which any public utility may similarly accept
without excluding any other public utility whose presence is physically compatible.

8. The map filed with the county recorder must include:

(a) A certificate signed and acknowledged by each owner of land to be divided consenting to the
preparation of the map, the dedication of the roads and the granting of the easements.

(b) A certificate signed by the clerk of the governing body or authorized representative of the governing
body or the secretary to the planning commission that the map was approved, or the affidavit of the person
presenting the map for filing that the time limited by subsection 1 or 2 for action by the governing body or its
authorized representative or the planning commission has expired and that the requirements of subsection 5
have been met. A certificate signed pursuant to this paragraph must also indicate, if applicable, that the
governing body or planning commission determined that a public street, easement or utility easement which
will not remain in effect after a merger and resubdivision of parcels conducted pursuant to NRS 278.4925, has
been vacated or abandoned in accordance with NRS 278.480.

(c) A written statement signed by the treasurer of the county in which the land to be divided is located
indicating that all property taxes on the land for the fiscal year have been paid.

9. A governing body may by local ordinance require a final map to include:

(a) A report from a title company which lists the names of:

(1) Each owner of record of the land to be divided; and
(2) Each holder of record of a security interest in the land to be divided, if the security interest was
created by a mortgage or a deed of trust.

(b} The signature of each owner of record of the land to be divided.

(c) The written consent of each holder of record of a security interest listed pursuant to subparagraph (2)
of paragraph (a), to the preparation and recordation of the final map. A holder of record may consent by
signing:

(1) The final map; or
(2) Aseparate document that is filed with the final map and declares his or her consent to the division
of land.

10. After a map has been filed with the county recorder, any lot shown thereon may be conveyed by
reference to the map, without further description.

11. The county recorder shall charge and collect for recording the map a fee set by the board of county
commissioners of not more than $50 for the first sheet of the map plus $10 for each additional sheet.

12. A county recorder who records a final map pursuant to this section shall, within 7 working days after
he or she records the final map, provide to the county assessor at no charge:

(a) A duplicate copy of the final map and any supporting documents; or

(b) Access to the digital final map and any digital supporting documents. The map and supporting
documents must be in a form that is acceptable to the county recorder and the county assessor.

(Added to NRS by 1979, 1506; A 1979, 1506; 1989, 503; 1991, 281, 1385; 1993, 1338, 2576; 1995, 199, 710; 1997,
2430; 1999, 790; 2001, 1561, 1970, 2813, 3218; 2003, 227, 2787; 2011, 1199)

15


















C

Variance. The applicant has requested a variance to the south side yard setback. The
south side yard setback is proposed to be 15-feet for a mechanical room, and 35-feet for
the main building. The 1999 Starey County Zoning Ordinance -2 Heavy Industrial zoning
requires a 50-foot building setback from all property lines. The 50-foot setback will be
met on the west, north and east side of the building. Section 17.60 of the 1999 Storey
County Code identifies the process for Variances. The applicant and this report follow
the requirements outlined in the Code.

Compatibility and Compliance

A.

Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land
uses, zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding
the proposed project.

Land Use Master Plan 1999 Zoning Code | 2015 Zoning Code
Designation
Applicant’s Land Vacant Industrial I-2 Heavy 12 Heavy
Industrial Industrial
Land to the North | U.P. Rallroad line, | industrial 1-2 Heavy 12 Heavy
vacant Industrial Industrial
Land to the East USA Parkway, Industrial 1-2 Heavy 12 Heavy
vacant Industrial Industrial
Land to the South | Pittsburgh Paints, | Industrlal 1-2 Heavy 12 Heavy
vacant Industrial Industsial -
Land to the West Pittsburgh Paints, | Industria! 1-2 Heavy 12 Heavy
Tire Rack, vacant Industrial Industrial

Variances. The 1999 Storey County Code 17.60 Variances states that a Variance to the
provisions of its ordinance title may be granted by the Storey County Board of County
Commissioners with action by the Storey County Planning Commission where by reason
of exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or shape of a specific piece of property at the
time of enactment of the regulations, or by reason of exceptional topographic
conditions or other extraordinary and exceptional situation or condition of the lot or
parcel, the strict application of the regulations enacted under this ordinance would
result in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties to, or exceptional and undue
hardships upon the owner of property.

Section 17.60.010 goes on to state “Such relief from the strict application of the
regulations of this ordinance, however, may only be granted without substantial
detriment to the public good and without substantially impairing the intent and purpose
of any ordinance or resolution and under such conditions as the board may deem
necessary to assure that the general purpose and intent of this ordinance will be
observed, public safety and welfare secured and substantial justice done.”

The proposed facility will be located on a 3.74 acre parcel. The facility consists of one
building and assaciated parking areas. The parcel is roughly the shape of a half circle,
with the Union Pacific railroad lines forming an arc boundary to the west, north and east
and Pittsburgh Avenue a straight line along the south boundary. The presence of the
railroad line on three sides limits expansion opportunities with adjoining parcels.
Adding a 50-foot setback from the property lines along the arc and the street frontage
leaves a minimal building footprint area on the parcel.



The building configuration is based on dimensions required for the specific thermal
destruction equipment and auxiliary equipment arrangements needed for safe and
proper aperation of the facility. This also includes the truck bay for the
loading/unloading of products within the confines of the building. The required 50-foot
setbacks will be met on all sides except for the Pittsburgh Avenue frontage, where the
proposed setback is desired to be 15-feet for a small mechanical room and 35-feet for
the remaining portion of the building. The design of the street system in this particular
location and the configuration of adjacent parcels make it unlikely for other buildings to
be located near this proposed facility. The closest building is the existing Pittsburgh
Paints facility which is approximately 350-feet to the south.

Storey County Zoning Code. The subject property is located within the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center pursuant to a development agreement between Storey County and the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC. Land located within this area is subject to the
provisions in the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance; the 2015 Storey County Zoning
ordinance does not apply to this area. The existing development complies with the
parcel size, loading area and building heights identified in Chapter 17.37 of the 1999
Storey County Code for I-2 zoning. The setbacks will be consistent with the 50-foot
requirement with the exception of the south setback for which this variance is
requested.

2016 Storey County Master Plan. The 2016 Storey County Master Plan describes
McCarran as a “prime location in which further industrial development can be expected
to occur” and as an area “highly suitable for high-intensity...industrial uses” (Chapter 3,
p. 84). Section 3.5.7 Goal 2 of the master plan encourages the diversification of
commercial and industrial uses in the area by attracting high-technology and
commercial uses in addition to distribution and manufacturing. Chapter 7 states that
Storey County strives to diversify and expand the local job base; recruit new businesses
to industrial centers; maintain regulations that promote industrial uses in the county;
continue to update standards for industrial growth in industrial centers; and promote
development within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center by facilitating efficient and
straightforward permitting processes.

The proposed variance to the south setback does not appear to conflict with any
elements of the 2016 Master Plan.

3. Findings of Fact

A.

Motion for approval. The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the
requested Variance when the recommended conditions of approval in Section 4,
Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

(1) This approval is for the applicant’s request for a variance to the required 50-foot
south yard setback allowing the south setback area to be reduced to 15 feet for
a portion of the principal building being a mechanical room, and to 35 feet for
the remainder of the principal building’s south exterior wall. This variance does



(2)

(3)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(@)

not apply to any other side of the subject building or property. The property is
located within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center at 475 Pittsburgh Avenue,
McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-051-54.

The subject property is located within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center and is
subject to the Development Agreement between Storey County and the Tahoe
Reno Industrial Center. The 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance |-2 Heavy
Industrial zoning applies to the property.

The property is currently vacant. A medical waste thermal destruction plant is
proposed for the property {Special Use Permit File 2017-044).

That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property,
including shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict
application of the zoning ordinance would deprive the subject property of
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone
classification.

That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the area of the subject property and will not be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property
or improvements in the area of the subject property.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and
Storey County regulations.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with 1999 Storey County Code 17.60
Variances and 17.37 I-2 Heavy Industrial Zones when all Conditions of Approval
are met.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives
and policies of the 2016 Storey County Master Plan.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Variance request, the
following Findings with explanation of why should be included in that motion.

(1)

This denial is for the applicant’s request for a variance to the required 50-foot
south yard setback allowing the south setback area to be reduced to 15 feet for
a portion of the principal building being a mechanical room, and to 35 feet for
the remainder of the principal building’s south exterior wall. This variance does
not apply to any other side of the subject building or property. The property is
located within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center at 475 Pittsburgh Avenue,
McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-051-54,



(2) There are no special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including
shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the
zoning ordinance that would deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed
by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone classification.

(3) The granting of the application is not necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

(4) That the granting of the application will, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the area of the subject property and will be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property
or improvements in the area of the subject property.

(5) The proposed Variance is not in substantial compliance with all Federal, Nevada
State, and Storey County regulations.

(6) The proposed Variance is not in substantial compliance with and does not
support the goals, objectives and recommendations of the Storey County
Master Plan.

(7) The conditions of approval under the Variance do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for the surrounding uses.

(8) No reasonable level of conditions of approval imposed on this Variance would
be sufficient to reasonably mitigate visual, safety or other potential impacts on
adjacent and surrounding residences and land uses.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

A.

Variance. This approval is for the applicant’s request for variance to the required 50-
foot south yard setback allowing the south setback area to be reduced to 15 feet for a
portion of the principal building being a mechanical room, and to 35 feet for the
remainder of the principal building’s south exterior wall. This variance does not apply to
any other side of the subject building or property. The property is located within the
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center at 475 Pittsburgh Avenue, McCarran, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-051-54.

Compliance. The Variance must comply with Storey County Codes, and submitted plans
and reports, as approved. The Applicant must provide the Building Department site
plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining a Building Permit.

Null and Void. If the Variance is not exercised within 12 months of the date of approval,
unless additional time is granted by the Board with acticn by the Planning Commission,
based upon consideration of the specific circumstances of the project, then without



further action, the Variance will be null and void and no non-conforming development
activity may be made on the property except on the granting of a new Variance.

D. Hold Harmless. The Property Owners agree to hold Storey County, its Officers and
Representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any
damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result
of this Variance.

F, Permits and Expiration. The Applicant shall apply for all Building and Fire permits for
the structure within 12 months from the date of Board approval for this Variance, and
continuously maintain the validity of those permits, as appropriate, or this approval will
become null and void.

G. Taxes Paid. Before obtaining a Building Permit, the Applicant must show the Planning
Department evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

H. Easement, The granting of this Variance will not affect any existing easements on the
subject property. No building may be constructed over an easement, ROW within a
building setback area not otherwise allowed by this Variance.

L. Boundary. The applicant must provide the Planning and Building Departments valid
evidence indicating the proper location of the property boundaries at time of
construction permit submittal.

Public Comment

As of November 7, 2017, Staff has not received any comments from the public regarding this
Variance request.

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the Findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the findings under Section 3.A of this report. Those
findings should be made part of the approval motion. A motion for denial may be made and
that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners should be made part of either
motion.



Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff, and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, | (county commissioner), move to approve the Variance request 2017-046 for
a variance to the required 50-foot south yard setback allowing the south setback area to
be reduced to 15 feet for a portion of the principal building being a mechanical room,
and to 35 feet for the remainder of the principal building’s south exterior wall. This
variance does not apply to any other side of the subject building or property. The
property is located within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center at 475 Pittsburgh Avenue,
McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-051-54.

Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by Staff, and the Planning Commission, but in accordance
with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.2 of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commission, | {county commissioner), move to deny
Variance request 2017-046 for a variance to the required 50-foot south yard setback
allowing the south setback area to be reduced to 15 feet for a portion of the principal
building being a mechanical room, and to 35 feet for the remainder of the principal
building’s south exterior wall. This variance does not apply to any other side of the
subject building or property. The property is located within the Tahoe Reno Industrial
Center at 475 Pittsburgh Avenue, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number (APN) 005-051-54.









